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Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited (the "Group"; SEHK stock code: 1929) was listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in December 2011. The Group celebrates its 95 anniversary
this year and forges ahead into a new chapter of success, guided by a vision: "To be the leading global
jewellery brand that is a trusted lifetime partner for every generation".

Founded in 1929, the Group's iconic brand "CHOW TAI FOOK" has become an emblem of tradition,
celebrated for its bold designs and an unwavering attention to detail. Building upon a rich heritage and a
foundation of trust, the Group is not only widely recognised for honouring traditions but also for fostering
deep, meaningful connections with a diverse customer base through its products. The Group's long-
standing commitment to innovation and craftsmanship has been integral to its success over time and has
become synonymous with excellence, value and authenticity.

As a leading Chinese jeweller, the Group believes in blending contemporary cutting-edge designs with
traditional techniques to create jewellery that can be passed down from generation to generation. Every
collection is thoughtfully conceived and crafted to reflect the stories of our customers, celebrating the
special moments in their lives. Committed to growing alongside our customers, the Group embraces a
spirit that aspires to inspire and captivate generations to come, weaving the story of CHOW TAI FOOK
into the fabric of their lives.

Offering a wide variety of products, services and channels, the Group's brand portfolio comprises the
CHOW TAI FOOK flagship brand with curated retail experiences, and other individual brands including
HEARTS ON FIRE, ENZO, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE.

The Group is committed to delivering sustainable long-term value creation for its stakeholders by
enhancing the quality of earnings and driving higher value growth. With an extensive retail network of
nearly 8,000 stores across China as well as multiple locations globally, and a growing e-commerce
business, the Group is implementing targeted online-to-offline ("O20") strategies to strengthen its
competitiveness in today's omni-channel retail environment.
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A SNAPSHOT OF

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY GROUP
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Chow Tai Fook Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Group Website Jewellery Brand Website Our Brands
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Corporate Presentation Corporate Video Our Sustainability Reports
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We value feedback from our stakeholders as it is important for us to ensure continuous

improvement of our reporting quality. We invite you to share your views by email to ir@chowtaifook.com.
HMEHRFNENER, NERESEEB/IUFEILSES,
R BTEAEHRNRSHESEBREBE iré@chowtaifook.com,
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ANNUAL RESULTS AT A GLANCE
FEREME

KEY HIGHLIGHTS

Despite macro challenges which impacted all businesses, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group achieved record high revenue and core
operating profit in FY2024. The Group's revenue increased 14.8% to HK$108,713 million during the financial year, or by 18.5% on a
constant exchange rate basis. Core operating profit increased 28.9% to HK$12,163 million

Hong Kong, Macau and other markets experienced excellent business momentum, with its revenue climbed 45.6% year-on-year,

which is attributed to the continued recovery in inbound tourism

We achieved encouraging profitability enhancement, core operating profit margin improved by 120 basis points to 11.2% during this

financial year

Our brand transformation is on track to elevate brand desirability, customer experience and fuel sustainable growth, with the

unveiling of our new consumer-facing logos, brand website and the signature CTF Rouge Collection

As we celebrate our 95" anniversary, we are embarking on a transformative journey with our vision "To be the leading global

jewellery brand that is a trusted lifetime partner for every generation”, with a steadfast commitment to driving higher value growth
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KEY FINANCIAL DATA
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=

HK$ million
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92.9%

84.6%
82.7%

74.5%

66.4%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Note: Special dividend excluded  Bfi&t : R ELFEFRIRE

1. Core operating profit, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of gross profit and other income, less 1. EBESEAN(MIFGERIBRSEASHE), BEEMRAMUGENES, MHER
selling and distribution costs, general and administrative expenses and unrealised loss (gain) on gold SR AN, — R R AT S LA K 3 & 15 6 0 A B IR A 4R (s ), m Tl‘ﬁ 15 1 55 BUiR
loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its AMEBEHTRACERRREBNERES

operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses
2. Included the proposed final dividend of HK$0.30 per share are subject to the approval of shareholders 2.

at the forthcoming annual general meeting

*For the year ended 31 March 2024
FHE2024F3A N BIEFE

MAs at 31 March 2024
AR2024493H31H

4 Overview
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CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY RETAIL NETWORK AND PERFORMANCE *
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Hong Kong & Macau of China Other markets
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CHOW TAI FOOK EMPLOYEES
JH R AsH T

Total number of employees

BTHAH

28,200+

Number of employees by reportable segment
RO 2MAEEINFETEE

8 3 . O% \fainland China

Hong Kong & Macau of China
1 7 O(y and other markets
. @) PEBE. DERPRE DT

3. CTF WATCH POS excluded

As at 31 March 2024
AfR20243H 318

Annual Report 2024
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CHOW TAI FOOK MEMBERSHIP PROGRAMME *
J& R A BEE

Total number of members

~6005000

Members' repeat purchase as a % of respective RSV

BERHEGBERTEEZBNL

3 5 8(7 Mainland China
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FINANCIAL AND

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
¥ S ETE S

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March H#EIASMHLEE BEET BEET BEET BHEET BERET
Revenue =S 56,751 70,164 98,938 94,684 108,713
Gross profit EF 16,096 20,075 22,340 21172 22,285
Core operating profit’ FTEEERN 5,687 8,630 10,002 9,439 12,163
Profit for the year FE A 2,983 6,176 6,880 5,490 6,607
Profit attributable to shareholders TR 2\ B RS 58 JE G % A 2,901 6,026 6,712 5,384 6,499
of the Company
Earnings per share (HK$) SrREBN(ET) 0.29 0.60 0.67 0.54 0.65
Dividend per share (HK$) SRRE(ET)
Full year dividend (HK$) =FERB(BT) 0.24 0.40 0.50 0.50 0.55
Special dividend (HK$) HRIRE(ET) - - - 0.72 =
Gross profit margin ER| = 28.4% 28.6% 22.6% 22.4% 20.5%
Adjusted gross profit margin? ERBEEMENZE? 29.6% 28.2% 23.4% 23.7% 22.8%
Core operating profit margin' TEEEEAFE 10.0% 12.3% 10.1% 10.0% 11.2%
Net profit margin B R 2 5.3% 8.8% 7.0% 5.8% 6.1%
Full year dividend payout ratio? EHIREZE? 82.7% 66.4% 74.5% 92.9% 84.6%
1. Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of 1. EERmA BB E(FEERUBRSERHE ), BEARENENRAMD
adjusted gross profit and other income, less selling and distribution costs and general and Wi K& at, R E R RIAR —RRITES, RASEEHHFSIRENES
administrative expenses, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete BWTRASERBREBNERBS
understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses
2. Adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of unrealised loss (gain) on gold 2. ERAEENERNR(FRERMBRS ERGTHE ), 0RTES GRS R AR k&)
loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its MEE, KASEGHBEENEBHTRASERELREBNERESR
operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses
3. Special dividend excluded 3. AEEFARE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
As at 31 March iK3A31H BHEET BEET BERET BHEET BEET
Non-current assets JERENE E 10,038 9,065 9,612 10,074 9,637
Current assets mEEE 55,205 55,243 78,126 77,267 79,182
Current liabilities neEaE 35,627 29,142 49,629 51,022 57,520
Net current assets mENE E IR 19,579 26,101 28,496 26,245 21,662
Non-current liabilities EREER 2,626 3,598 3,553 2,959 4,553
Net assets BEFH 26,991 31,568 34,555 33,360 26,746
Total assets BEMRE 65,243 64,308 87,737 87,341 88,819
Inventories F& 42,538 43,01 57,254 59,290 64,647
Bank deposits and cash equivalents* RITEMRRIBEHFEY 7,219 6,032 14,942 1,734 7,695
Bank borrowings RITER 11,431 6,418 9,065 5,855 4136
Gold loans BHEEE 11,280 5,725 15,721 15,086 24,488
Net debt® EIEFEE° 15,492 6,11 9,844 9,207 20,928
Net assets per share (HK$) SREEZFH(ET) 27 3.2 35 3.3 2.7
Net gearing ratio® FERE G ZER. 57.4% 19.4% 28.5% 27.6% 78.2%
Inventory turnover period (day)’ FEFEEEA( X8 ) 381 312 272 294 274
Return on equity® R 7K o) R % © 11% 19.6% 19.9% 16.5% 24.7%
4. Bank balances and cash and short-term bank deposits included 4. BUFIRITHBRRRE RIGHIRITER
5. Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents 5. RITEMRESBEZRBBE(OMRRTTFARBEEEMEN)
6. Aggregate of bank borrowings and gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents, divided by total equity 6. RITHRREBESBEZRFNRBIFEFARBESEN) RIAERER
7. Being inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, at the end of the reporting period divided by 7. BMRSHRFEHGEHR (ABFEEEME)BRIAFERNHEMNR, BRLA36587366
cost of goods sold for the year, multiplied by 365 or 366
8. Being profit for the year divided by total equity at the end of the year 8. FENEHARIAFRERHBEE
b Overview Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March H#EIAIALLEE BERET BRET BRERT BEET BEET
Operating cash flows before SEBE P2 K8E 9,912 1,572 11,984 11,619 15,491
movements in working capital RERE
Net cash from KEEHMRREESFEE 8,364 10,476 13,938 10,066 13,836
operating activities
Net cash used in REGEFTAREER (1,025) (693) (1,458) (1,782) (717)
investing activities
Net cash used in RlEEE AR EE (7,653) (11,188) (3,793) (10,705) (16,830)
financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in HERIEREBY (314) (1,404) 8,688 (2,421) (3,711)
cash and cash equivalents EnCRD )EE
Capital expenditure BB sZ (973) (839) (1,531) (1,982) (963)
Pro forma free cash flows? HEEHRIRSR’ 5,208 6,646 10,901 6,174 11,064
9. Net cash from (used in) operating activities less leases paid, purchase of jewellery collectibles, capital 9. EEEBMGAR)RRFARETAE. BEKEDH. ERHSRE G EFE
expenditure and net movements for gold loans
For the year ended 31 March #HEIAMBLEE 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Mainland China o & A i
SSSG FEIGHERE (151% 31.9% 1.1% (13.1)% 1.8%
SSS volume growth BEEHER R (24.0)% 8.2% 7.6% (18.1% (4.8)%
Hong Kong & Macau of China oh B & i 2 o B R
SSSG BEEHEE R (38.7)% (41.3)% 24.7% 18.3% 42.4%
SSS volume growth BEEHER R (43.5)% (42.9)% 51.0% (12.1)% 32.0%
Retail sales volume (unit) HE(HH)
Mainland China oh & A ith 12,699,000 15,893,000 22,118,000 21,988,000 23,774,000
Hong Kong & Macau of China and PEEE. PEEME 2392000 1,189,000 1,674,000 1,494,000 2,108,000
other markets HAhm 5
As at 31 March R3A31H 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
POS distribution ™ EEHAMm
Mainland China oo B X i 3,8291 45971 5,934 " 75101 7,640
Hong Kong, China PETE 87 82 76 66 68
Macau, China o [ 58 P 18 18 19 20 20
Taiwan, China hEEE 18 18 20 20 20
Cambodia RIf R 1 1 1 1 1
Canada JIE=PN - - - 1 2
Japan H 7k 3 1 1 2 2
Korea 14 9 7 7 7 7
Malaysia R PG R 4 4 5 6 7
Philippines FEEE 1 1 1 2 2
Singapore 045 4 4 5 6 7
Thailand e 1 1 1 2 3
United States = 2 1 1 1 1
Vietnam ildea] 1 1 1 2 2
Total st 3,978 4,736 6,072 7,646 7,782

10. SIS and CIS excluded
11. Restated to reflect the split and combination of HUA exclusive zones
Note: The percentages calculated are subject to minor rounding differences

Annual Report 2024
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MAJOR AWARDS AND

RECOGNITIONS

E:EE;I I/\)Qj:ll:ll:l

GOVERNANCE
i

Institutional Investor's 2023 All-Asia Executive Team Rankings — Asia (ex-Mainland China) — Consumer/ Discretionary

WEREE 203FEDNESESEEKETHEZNEMhE(RPBRE) - FUNFHE DR

All-Star Status — Rest of Asia

Most Honored Company — Combined — 1¢ place

Best CEO — Combined — Kent Wong — 15t place

Best CFO — Combined — Hamilton Cheng — 1% place
Best IR Professional — Combined — Danita On — 1 place
Best IR Program — Combined — 1%t place

Best ESG — Combined — 1¢ place

Best Board of Directors — Combined — 1t place

Best IR Team — Combined — 2 place

13t Asian Excellence Award 2023
58+ = JE 25 1 52 K 88 2023
Asia's Best CEO — Kent Wong
Asia's Best CFO — Hamilton Cheng
Best Investor Relations Professional — Danita On
Best Investor Relations Company
Best Corporate Communications
TMRETRAHN - =88
5 I B 15 B S 4 e — BB AW R
EERBEEHEERE - IR
REREERERETS
= gER e S C

Lorporatelivemanai

8 Overview
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RETHEAR - 76 - 282 -F—8

REEFEUBRER - 75 - SRR - 55—

EEREEHEEZES - K5 - YRG - F—5

BEEREBEEHENR - FE6 - %1
RERE. HBREB -6 -%—%8

REQNCIEEYE - 415 - F—1

REREEREERK - 46 - B°2%F

HKIRA 9t Investor Relations Awards
FBNESEBERESREKXE

Best IR by Chairman/ CEO — Kent Wong

Best IR by CFO — Hamilton Cheng

Best IRO — Danita On

Best Annual Report
RERBERE(LER/ITHRY) - ZEE
RIEREERE(VIFER ) - MMER
BREREEHEER - SBR&

REFR

Master-Insight ESG Awards 2023
K B 85 22 ESG K #2 2023

Top ESG Performance Awards
ESG 1 3% B & X #2

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BXBHREREARAE



GOVERNANCE
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HKICPA Best Corporate Governance and ESG Awards 2023
HFR GO RERFRE ISR ESGKHE 2023

Corporate Governance Award — Hang Seng Index Category
ExEIBR - BIENHKRER

IFAPC Outstanding Listed Companies Award 2023
FBRESNTEN R E LS FE K% 2023

2023 HKMA Best Annual Reports Awards
SHEEEEERT 0BFRIEFRIEE
Citation for Design
Best Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Award (Retail)
BRRT R
RERE. HERELGENRTR(ZE)

LACP 2022 Vision Awards Annual Report Competition
LACP 202217 BB F IR A E

Gold Award

HKEJ Listed Company Awards of Excellence 2023
SR AE T _E T A B = K% 2023

Blue-chip (Honor Award)
R (RIEKRE)

Wma s 311 ——
rEaEEEAr 2023

= LISTED COMPANY A
4 '
ce—

Annual Report 2024
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The 12t Junzi Corporation Award

BHTEIBFEFRE]
Junzi Corporation Award
BFTER

S&P Global Sustainability Yearbook (China) 2023
5 2 PR( O 48 3 R AR 8 ( T E AR )2023)

The International Annual Report Design Awards 2023

2023 [E PR $R 5% 5T K28
Bronze Award (Overall Presentation: Annual Report)
Bronze Award (Overall Presentation: Sustainability Report)
SEAE( ARG ER R )
AR REER  OTRERERRS )

LACP 2022 Vision Awards Sustainability Report Competition
LACP 2022 B RO EH RS KE
Gold Award

Jewellery World Awards
JWA K42

"Extraordinary 40" Awards — Kent Wong
[AFJL40 | K% - B8R

ctdi"a"y
*’D P
=
I

JEWELLERY WORLD AWARDS

Kent Wong Siu-Kee
S

;‘5 /maging Director,
" Tai Fook Jewellery Group
nan,

QA

JewELLERY ==
&GEM

Major Awards and Recognitions
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
g A S AT
UNSDG Achievement Awards Hong Kong 2023

G E O] {48 3z B 155 8 A 28 2023

Recognised Projects (Project Name: Neutralization of used
Acid and Alkaline to reduce the disposal)
BRAUIRE(IRESM  BEPMNIEE)

CORPORATE AND BRANDING
A 56 Bl i

2023-2024 World Branding Awards
2023-2024 1 57 53 & K 48

Brand of The Year — Jewellery Retailer — Hong Kong
FESBEHRETEH oM

Retail Asia Awards 2023
2023 T8 i = & K 42

Jewellery Retailer of the Year — China

FEKETERH(PH)

° PRESENTED BY:

retailasia REALESTATE ASIA

retail asss

A
JAWARDS |
iy

1. S|
#Re: ter iards
15 June 20’ ina Bi i, Singapore

10 Overview
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Consumer Caring Scheme 2023
2023 F B IS FE T BT El

Consumer Caring 10+ Years Award

INEREI +F+8

Forbes China Guochao Innovation Selection

7@ 10 A o B B ¥ Bl T 5T 3

Forbes China Guochao Innovation Brand 2023
& 7 B o [ [0 90 Bl T &2 hE 2023

China New Business Leaders Summit Award 2023
2023 th [ & SR A A T A U B 4R

China New Business Best Brand Leader Award 2023
2023 o [l 7 T 35 7] B 13 6B M B MR K AR

2023 HKRMA Top 10 O20 Retail Brands Award
03FRBFEEEMEG T KO20F Emig K

Top 10 O20 Retail Brands
T KO20FE R E

2023 Top Influential Brands Awards
0B FREFE N @

Most Trustworthy Brand Premium Jewellery

SHRWEER - RESEHRRM

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BXBHREREARAE



SERVICE
iz 5

2023 HKRMA Service Talent Award

03B BEZEEEM BRI IREE
My Favorite Outstanding Service Retail Brand (Top 10 by
public voting)
Best Training Award — Bronze Award
Individual Award Winner — Supervisory Level (Watch &
Jewellery Category) — Gold Award
Individual Award Winner — Junior Frontline Level (Watch &
Jewellery Category) — Gold Avvard & Outstanding

HREE+TARBREBEZEDH

REGIEE - 1748
BIERERE/SAEA - TEEALZ - &8
BIRRRE/EAMN - BEERAZ - €8 ( BHRERE

2023 HKRMA Quality Service Retailers of the Year
03 FBTEEEMTREBEARBTER AL

Service Retailer of the Year — Chain Stores (Gold Award)
REBERBEIER - EEHE(FE)

Singapore Retailers Association Excellent Service Award 2023

IO 2 & 7 fih & = IR s 8 2023

Visit our Group website for more
awards and recognitions

BIEESREEL THRESRIARET

The Straits Times — Singapore's Best Customer Service 2023/24
BIRET R - R0 & £ 5 P R 2023/24

"High Jewelry Retailers" category
[ BRREZTER | HAl

SENTATION CEREN
THURSDAY 9 NOVEMBER 2023 | 9.00AM TO 11.30AM

Annual Report 2024
2024 F 4R
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CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT
:_}_._iFE

"As Chow Tai Fook Jewellery celebrates 95 years of excellence, we
honour our legacy while looking steadfastly towards the future. We are
in the process of writing an exciting new chapter in our brand's story,
guided by our vision: To be the leading global jewellery brand that is a

trusted lifetime partner for every generation.”

[ AXBHREEERISFEMAM PR, RNIEEEIE®FS, MR
RHE, INE [ S|EBREITR, mﬁiﬁiﬁ/\ij HE R, #5EH G
M EGEENRE. |

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry 3 5 4§ {8 +
Chairman % &




DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

FY2024 marks a year of record high revenue and core operating profit
("COP") as we celebrate the momentous milestone of our 95t
anniversary. In light of these achievements, | wish to express my
gratitude to all stakeholders who have made this possible through

their unwavering support and trust.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery has uniquely shone as a globally recognised
icon of Chinese artistry and culture, committed to quality,
craftsmanship and customer satisfaction. To enhance our long-term
competitiveness and drive higher value growth, we continue to
diligently execute on our five strategic priorities: brand
transformation, product optimisation, accelerated digitalisation,

operational efficiency and talent cultivation.

DELIVERING SUSTAINABLE VALUE

During FY2024, the Group successfully grew its revenue by 14.8% to
HK$108,713 million. Thanks to our disciplined approach in cost
management, COP increased by 28.9% to HK$12,163 million, which
operating margin improved to 11.2%. This exceptional performance led
to record-high levels for both revenue and COP. Profit attributable to
shareholders grew by 20.7% to HK$6,499 million. Earnings per share
was HK$0.65. The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK$0.30
per share, bringing the dividend per share for the year to HK$0.55.
The full year payout ratio in FY2024 was approximately 84.6%.

As we make steady progress towards higher value growth, we expect
sustained momentum through the medium term driven by our ongoing

brand transformation journey.

REMAINING AGILE IN THE FACE OF CHANGE

Despite the macro challenges facing the global economy, the Group
achieved excellent results, a testament to our ability to enhance
earnings quality and deliver sustained value creation for all
stakeholders. We remain vigilant in our approach, monitoring and
responding promptly to evolving consumer behaviours to capture new

growth opportunities.
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In Mainland China (the "Mainland"), the 2024 Government Work Report
of the Central Government set a GDP growth target of around 5%.
Anchored by supportive policy that prioritises "new productive forces"
and promotes domestic consumption, we remain confident in the
Mainland jewellery market over the mid- to long-term. Furthermore,
due to the growing enthusiasm among young Chinese consumers for
purchasing jewellery products as part of the Guochao wave ("national
trend"), along with the value preservation nature of gold, we expect

that jewellery demand in the Mainland will remain resilient.

While in Hong Kong and Macau of China, we noticed that the surge in
visitors boosted our store traffic, but spending remained prudent.
Aligned with our five strategic priorities, we are working to enhance
the customer experience across omni-channel touchpoints to cater
the evolving consumption preferences of both the local consumer

base and travel retail market.

In other markets, we expect opportunities from the rising middle class
and projected economic growth in Southeast Asian countries. We look
forward to expand our retail network strategically in the region driven

by the recovery in tourism and sustained local demand for jewellery.

OUR BRAND TRANSFORMATION JOURNEY

Our history traces important stories and life moments of our
customers, while our jewellery pieces transcend generations of
families, as do our commitments to extend a legacy with quality and
integrity, as well as to relentlessly focus on consumer preferences and
needs. We commit to preserving and honouring Chinese jewellery
craftsmanship, drawing reference to China's rich history in our pieces,
while differentiating our design aesthetic and refining our products to

meet the evolving tastes of the next generation of our customers.

It is imperative that we stay relevant and modern in our thinking and
practices to continue our leadership position in the industry. As part
of this evolution, we have made it a priority to provide a crystal-clear
direction that aligns everyone towards a common goal. Through core
values revitalisation and effective communication via various internal
channels, we cultivate a corporate culture that unite our people and

empower them to work together towards shared success.
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EMPOWERING THE NEXT GENERATION
THROUGH CULTURAL PRESERVATION

At Chow Tai Fook Jewellery, we are committed to supporting the
sustainable development of the jewellery industry. Preserving and
passing on Chinese artistry and culture are among the key initiatives
that we have been pursuing to attract and develop the next
generation of talent for the jewellery industry. Through our dedicated
Incubation Hub in Shunde, China, as well as comprehensive
scholarships and internship programme for students in the Mainland
and Hong Kong, we will actively impart valuable knowledge and know-
how, and create significant opportunities to foster youth career

development in the jewellery industry.

Thank you once again to everyone who has supported the
development of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery: to our shareholders and
investors, customers, business partners, all our staff, management
teams, as well as my fellow Board members. We have had a
tremendous start to our five-year transformation journey towards
centennial celebrations in 2029, and we will remain steadfast in

driving long-term, sustainable growth for our stakeholders.

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, China, 13 June 2024
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OVERVIEW OF

CORPORATE STRATEGY

ERR IS

Despite ongoing macro-economic and geopolitical uncertainties, we
delivered record high revenue and core operating profit in FY2024.
This builds on our strong track record of creating value sustainably for
shareholders over the last 95 years and a testament to our positioning
as an industry leader. We adapted promptly to the fast-evolving
market conditions and complexities whilst focused on capitalising on
market opportunities as they emerge. We shall continue to pave the

way for innovation and leadership in the market.

By upholding the highest standards of Chinese jewellery
craftsmanship and fostering deeper relationships with the next
generation of customers, we are fully committed to driving higher

value growth.

PROGRESS ON KEY STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

The Group has been diligently executing the five strategic
priorities across brand transformation, product optimisation,
accelerated digitalisation, operational efficiency and talent

cultivation, to strengthen its long-term competitiveness.

With a focus on enhancing earnings quality with improved returns
on equity and capital, the Group also continues to adopt
disciplined cost management to deliver sustained value creation

for all stakeholders.

Brand transformation progressing as we celebrated our
05" anniversary
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery's 95™ anniversary is a momentous
milestone where we leverage our brand legacy to embark on a
transformation journey. Through the implementation of the five
strategic priorities, we aim to elevate our brand image and strive
to enhance the customer experience. This empowers us to

resonate with consumers in a stronger way.

We refreshed our brand image this April by unveiling new
consumer-facing logos that reflects the brand's rich legacy in a

modern and dynamic fashion.
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To celebrate our 95" anniversary, we unveiled the CTF Rouge
Collection in April, which is inspired by the passionate hues of red
and the auspicious symbol of good fortune "4&". The Collection is
a clear embodiment of Chinese culture, our innovation and
craftsmanship and with timeless designs featuring natural
diamonds, pearl, enamel and gold. A 360-degree global marketing
campaign, involving omni-channel tactics, was activated to
promote the signature CTF Rouge Collection and it received very

positive market response.

We have appointed Mr. Nicholas Lieou as Creative Director, High
Jewellery, to drive brand elevation and design new product
collections, including the CTF Rouge Collection. In his role, he leads
the creation of modernised high jewellery, catering to the desires
of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery's exclusive clientele. His appointment
exemplifies our focus on bringing the highest calibre creative and
business talent into the Group to help differentiate our brand and
product offerings that translate into long-term competitiveness

and resilience in revenue.

Refreshing omni-channels to elevate customer experience

18

New group and brand websites were launched in April to create an
enhanced customer experience. The new brand website's improved
features and streamlined design ensure a seamless shopping
experience, reflecting the Group's dedication to customer

satisfaction.

Also, the application of Artificial Intelligence ("Al") allows us to
deliver personalised content and product recommendations to CTF
Club app users and visitors of our brand website, enhancing their

overall retail experience and online engagement.

We are launching two stores with new image. The store in Central,
Hong Kong with a refreshed image, will launch in the third quarter
of 2024, and the new 5-storey store in Shanghai, the Group's first
flagship store in Mainland China, is expected to be revealed in
2025. Over the next five years, all stores will undergo a strategic
refurbishment, culminating in the celebration of our 100%™

anniversary in 2029.

Strategic Report
RIS S

HELRNISET, RMR4FEE TEXEEER
P, BEAIBRIREABHNARRHEN 8 | FHS
HRE, ANRETHPEXK, BIENBELZ, I
AEXAEZE. BIk. ERkaeSME, 2HREX
WHRTHIR T HMESREMEIOEZIRERITH,
HEERGEHEREXRBERERY, EMHRIEE,

M ES1EBIZ B (Nicholas Lieou) S % = 4R Bk & Al
BHE, BERAGEFERIRGTEMERRY, B
FRAXBEERRI, MEE3ERNSRKENA
B, WMEBERXEKESGSEENTF K, MHSEE
RTEBENNENEESKAIERBEEREAA, BEM
BEQEINERZENVERRENREN, UREE
BHRIEN T .

IR RIEME, IR R

EHMNEEN@EALER4AHE, RBRSHRE
FEHRER, =MflnBELSEETENTENER
fist, HEEWRERBNER, TORERER
BEmEENER,

tEgh, FMENATS D EXES S ERREFNA
J5 A0 Ga b 4 1k B0 51 R L E M L B0 N B A E G HERE
femiz BT ERROMEAR LT,

HMEMEEMERMAERRHEEEE, EPNURE
BRI RME R 2024 FE=FEME ; MR
i L8 BT VS Bl 2 SR B T oh B A B SR — RIE MRS
BEehE, RHR2025F M&E, 410 £ 2029 4F
100 & FF BB 8, F (P91 hS i 3 T 6 SR U 14 8 AT PR
BRI,

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BXBHREREARAE



Leveraging digital capabilities to make timely business
decision and enhance operational efficiency

In FY2024, we expanded the use of Al in our operations and
bolstered our data management capabilities by constructing a
comprehensive data lake that seamlessly integrates diverse data
sources. By building this centralised data repository, we are
empowered to derive deeper insights in less time and make data-
driven decisions across key areas, including product planning,
supply chain, and customer journey optimisation. For instance,
during FY2024, we conducted a trial run that incorporated
predictive analytics for more accurate product demand forecasting.
This allows us to optimise our production, automate replenishment
based on daily sales data. By doing so, we aim to deliver the right

products to the right place at the right time.

Talent cultivation and corporate culture

As part of our brand transformation, we revitalised our core values
recently, recognising their pivotal role in shaping our organisational
culture and driving our success. These values were co-created
through a series of collaborative workshops involving staff
members at different levels, fostering a more cohesive and
purpose-driven corporate culture. The workshops provided a
platform for active participation and collaboration, ensuring that

the values truly reflect the beliefs and aspirations of our workforce.

Our five core values — work collaboratively, act with integrity,
be open-minded, take ownership, and be passionate — serve as the
foundation for executing our five strategic priorities and achieving
our business goals. Through ongoing communication,
reinforcement, and the embodiment of these values in our daily
work, we are building a stronger, more resilient organisation that is

poised for long-term success.

Disciplined and prudent capital management

We continue to prioritise strong cash flow generation to ensure
ample liquidity. Inventory turnover improved, led by the strong
demand for gold jewellery and seasonal festive campaigns. In line
with management's expectations, we achieved our target of
improving inventory turnover days from 294 in FY2023 to 274 in
FY2024.

We intend to adopt a calibrated approach to ensure the capital
expenditure and selling, general and administrative ratio remain in
line with our annual historical average for financial prudence as we

sustain our growth trajectory.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
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MAINLAND CHINA

Market review

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the total
retail sales of consumer goods increased by 7.2% year-on-year in
2023. Notably, the retail sales of gold, silver and jewellery also
increased 13.3%, indicating the continued positive momentum of
the country's steady economic recovery. This growth trajectory
was reinforced in the first 3 months of 2024, with sustained

growth recorded in both retail sales figures.

Despite the challenging macro environment, jewellery consumption
in Mainland China remained resilient, fuelled by festive demand
and consumers enhanced appreciation of Chinese aesthetics and

craftmanship in gold jewellery.

Business highlights

Strong sales performance supported by festive period and
continuous product optimisation

22

Despite the dynamic market conditions, we continued to witness
resilient jewellery consumption during festive and holiday periods
throughout FY2024. Strength in gold products continued given its
nature of value preservation and defensiveness amidst the
uncertain macro environment and its increasing popularity among
youngsters. Our signature gold jewellery HUA Collection, which
blends traditional craftsmanship with modern designs, continued
to receive positive response from consumers and its RSV
experienced a year-on-year growth of approximately 20% in
FY2024.

Riding on the heightened appreciation of Chinese aesthetics and
craftsmanship in gold jewellery, we have been shifting focus from
weight-based pricing to fixed-price gold jewellery. These selective
products embody exquisite craftsmanship and differentiated value
from our weight-based pricing gold jewellery offerings. Since the
progressive roll-out in November 2023, the sales contribution of
higher margin fixed-price gold products has been steadily rising. This

reflects consumers' positive reception and a validation of our strategy.
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Our annual sale campaign alongside the successful launch of
Chinese zodiac themed products captured consumption
momentum for the Lunar New Year celebration. Brand new designs
of dragon-themed gold jewelleries and ornaments, such as the
Dragon of HUA Collection and "Dragon of Fortune" Collection
catered to festive demand and were well-received by the market.
With the auspicious meaning of "Loong" (Chinese translation of
dragon) in Chinese culture, these zodiac-themed gold products

were selling well.

Meanwhile, we launched the "Beyond Time" natural diamond
exhibition to raise consumer awareness of natural diamonds,
enhancing the desirability of gem-set jewellery. We brought
"Beyond Time" to Beijing in December 2023 and Shanghai in March
2024, following its successful debut in Hong Kong last September.
Through captivating multimedia interactive projections, the
exhibition offered a unique opportunity for the public to immerse

themselves in the allure of natural diamonds.

While we recognise that gem-set jewellery consumption was
influenced under the challenging external macro environment, we
have observed a stabilising sales trend across various gem-set
collections. With healthy sales, the performance of both the
Wonderful Life Collection and Chow Tai Fook Dancing Lily
Collection, exceeded management's expectations in FY2024. The
VELA Collection and the newly launched BARRE Collection of
HEARTS ON FIRE also registered strong sales. These encouraging
developments are testament that quality jewellery continues to be
favoured by consumers, underpinning our confidence on the long-

term prospects of diamond jewellery.
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Maximising capital efficiency and productivity for quality
earnings growth

Our capital management strategy to maximise capital efficiency is
aligned with overall POS management strategy. Our current
priorities are to maximise overall financial health of our POS
portfolio with a focus on store productivity and profitability. We
continuously optimise existing retail network strategically through
a combination of selective store openings and closures to enhance

operational efficiency and profitability.

As of 31 March 2024, there were a total of 7,403 CHOW TAI FOOK
JEWELLERY POS in Mainland China. Over 50% of our total stores
in the Mainland were opened in the last two to four years and we
have observed a healthy ramp-up across new stores in lower tier
cities. We continue to expect a gradual maturity of these stores to
generate an uplift to topline growth and operating leverage,

boosting our profitability in medium term.

We shall continue to support quality franchisees. For instance,
while top-down the Group will empower franchised stores with
data insights and guidance to drive business performance. Further,
we will strengthen our franchisee management and take
necessary rectifying actions to enforce our pricing strategy and

protect our brand.

Steady growth of e-commerce business

24

With our initiatives to enhance digital customer engagement, retail
sales value of our Mainland e-commerce business grew robustly at
18.8%. Its Average Selling Price ("ASP") increased by over 10% to
HK$2,080

E-commerce contributed to more than 10% in terms of volume in
the Mainland, with a steady year-on-year growth of around 20% in

terms of RSV during the period.

Our content marketing strategy relies on data as its cornerstone.
While we harness various third-party e-commerce and social
platforms, like Tmall, JD.com, Douyin, and Xiaohongshu, we gain
valuable insights into customer behaviour. This empowers us to
make well-informed decisions regarding product selection and live
broadcast planning, thus maximising our visibility and outreach to

our targeted audiences.
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HONG KONG & MACAU OF CHINA

Market review
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According to government statistics, the total retail sales in Hong
Kong and Macau, experienced a growth of 16.2% and 49.5% year-
on-year in 2023 respectively.

While the phenomenon of local population heading north for
consumption has had relatively moderate impact on jewellery
consumption, the Hong Kong and Macau markets may continue to
be influenced by evolving consumption patterns and lower

spending by both inbound visitors and local residents.

Given Hong Kong and Macau's pricing advantage and the role that
gold jewellery plays in Chinese culture, there is a solid demand for
jewellery. Also, the government's measures to drive tourism, the
expansion of the individual visit scheme to eight more Mainland
cities, and a relatively manageable rental levels, further contribute
to our cautiously optimistic outlook on the profitability of the Hong

Kong and Macau segment in FY2025.

Business highlights

In Hong Kong and Macau, the sustained growth trend was
supported by the inbound travel of Mainland tourists, coupled with
the Lunar New Year holiday. The average daily customer traffic at
our stores in Hong Kong and Macau experienced a substantial year-
on-year increase during the year, largely driven by the arrival of
Mainland tourists.

The Group registered RSV growth of 36.7% in Hong Kong and
Macau during FY2024.

We opened a net of 2 POS in Hong Kong and Macau in FY2024.
As of 31 March 2024, we maintained a total of 87 POS in Hong
Kong and Macau, which will position us favourably to drive higher
value growth. We shall continue to closely analyse data on
store performance, leasing terms and reassess market
opportunities for potential new additions. More importantly, we
shall stay competitive by innovating our product offerings and

customer service.
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OTHER MARKETS

Market review

Robust domestic demand and the rise of middle class continued to
support economic recovery across Southeast Asia, while the
resurgence of tourist arrivals from the Mainland further bolstered
the region's retail recovery. The World Bank said in its semi-annual
economic outlook that the GDP growth forecast for developing
Asia-Pacific countries is 4.6% in 2024.

Duty-free sales of Hainan's offshore duty-free zone saw remarkable
growth in 2023, with a 59.9% increase in the number of shoppers
and a 25.4% increase in total sales compared to the previous year,
according to statistics from Haikou Customs. Measures such as
simplifying purchase procedures and issuing duty-free consumption
coupons were launched at the beginning of 2024 and are expected

to help enhancing the recovery of duty-free consumption in Hainan.

Business highlights

26

The increase in tourism and strong local demand resulted in robust
RSV growth of 118.9% in other markets, especially for Singapore,
Malaysia, Canada and duty-free shops in Hainan, China.

Our Hainan offshore duty-free shops recorded robust sales,
prompted in part by consumer's spending fuelled by the local

government's consumer voucher programme and festive demand.

Looking ahead, we will continue to strategically expand our retail
network in popular tourist destinations and areas with a significant

number of Chinese residents, such as ASEAN countries.

We would also look to explore areas that had worked well with our
business model and adapt accordingly based on local nuances and
understanding of domestic markets. This ensures that we are
maximising our investment dollar and returns as we set sights on

pursuing overseas growth going forward.
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In light of the dynamic and uncertain market conditions, we stay
cautiously optimistic for FY2025. Nonetheless, we are encouraged by
the steady ramp up and maturity of performing franchised POS,
together with the positive momentum and new perspective brought
by our brand transformation, which will continue to support our sales

and core operating profit.

We shall continue to enhance store productivity and maintain our
disciplined cost management to ensure margin resilience in reaching a
higher value growth. Meanwhile, we shall also stay vigilant in
calibrating our financial and operational resources effectively, a
strategy that has been successful in navigating through the

challenging operating landscape.

Notwithstanding the near-term uncertainties, we stay confident in
the mid- to long-term growth prospects of the Mainland jewellery
market and economy with supportive government policies prioritising

economic stabilisation and reviving domestic consumption.

As we embark on our mid-term transformation journey towards the
100" anniversary, the Group's commitment remains unwavering in
uplifting brand desirability and broadening business horizons, while
staying focused in executing the five strategic priorities to strengthen
long-term competitiveness and industry leadership, supporting us to

deliver sustainable growth to our stakeholders.
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

7% 15 [o] iR

OVERVIEW

Despite FY2024 being a year of macro-economic and geopolitical

uncertainties, the Group achieved record high revenue and core
operating profit, thanks to our diligent execution of the five strategic
priorities and resilient demand for gold jewellery and products.

With a focus on product optimisation, we introduced signature and
differentiated gold jewellery and products that successfully captured
the strong gold jewellery demand trend especially during festive
periods. Further, our focus on store productivity and customer
experience enhancement supported progressive ramp up of the
stores opened over the past two to four years. These initiatives
drove our growth outperformance relative to the total retail sales of
gold, silver and jewellery, as reported by the National Bureau of
Statistics of China. In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, the
recovery of inbound tourism continued to support our business.
Hence, the Group's revenue grew by 14.8% and reached HK$108,713
million in FY2024.

The Group's adjusted gross profit margin moderated by 90 basis
points to 22.8% in the financial year, due to changes in product and
wholesale mix. The impact was partially mitigated by our optimised
pricing strategy and the benefits from strength in gold price. In our
push for higher value growth, we are continuously innovating and
exploring new ways to enhance our margin. Since November 2023, we
have seen good traction in our push from weight based pricing to
higher margin fixed price gold jewellery. These selective products
embody exquisite craftsmanship and differentiated features. We are
encouraged to witness a sequential increase of the sales contribution
from the fixed price gold products in 2HFY2024.

While we recognise that the consumption of gem-set jewellery was
influenced by the challenging external macro-economic environment
in recent years, we have also observed that quality jewellery
continues to be favoured by customers which underpins our long-term
prospects of diamond jewellery.

Building on our bottom-up approach, our focus on disciplined cost
management has supported a 28.9% growth in our core operating
profit to HK12,163 million. While core operating profit margin improved
by 120 basis points to 11.2% in the financial year. This validates our
clear focus and progressive towards higher value growth.

Profit attributable to shareholders increased 20.7% in FY2024, as the
increase of core operating profit was partly offset by the unrealised
loss on gold loans arising from gold price volatility in 2HFY2024.
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Revenue

Revenue by reportable segment *

RO EPEISTHIERE *

ik

HK$ million
BEiET YoY
change
EItkE 1Y
120,000
108,713 +14.8%
100,000 98938 54484
80,000 70,164
56,751 825% +9.9%
60,000 ! o
87.9% 86.2%
40,000 e 85.1% Mainland China
hE A
20,000 Ml Hong Kong & Macau of China
28.2% 1499, 121% 13.8% 175% +45.6% and other markets
0 PEEE. DEIRMREMTR
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
M EE MBEE
EF THE
Revenue (HK$ million) E¥xw(EREx) 1HFY2023 2HFY2023 1HFY2024 2HFY2024 G434 [ LE & 1k
Mainland China i 40,927 40,696 40,680 49,018 -0.6% +20.4%
Hong Kong & Macau &S, ERPYZ 5,608 7453 8,846 10,169 +57.7% +36.4%
of China and other markets B
Overall e 46,535 48,149 49,526 59,187 +6.4% +22.9%

The Group's revenue increased 14.8% to HK$108,713 million in
FY2024. On a constant exchange rate basis, the growth amounted
to 18.5%.

Revenue in the Mainland grew 9.9% during the financial year,
supported by strong festive demand and progressive ramp up of
the stores opened over the past two to four years. On a constant
exchange rate basis, the underlying growth would be 14.1% in
FY2024. Share of our Mainland business to the Group's revenue

amounted to 82.5% for the financial year.

In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, revenue climbed 45.6%
during the financial year, thanks to the continued recovery in

inbound tourism.

*For the year ended 31 March
FHEIAJNBLEFE
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Revenue by product (excluding jewellery trading and service income from franchisees) *

hiEREIN MEREA(REIERES 5 2R ENNERFRBEA) *

HKS$ million

EEBT YoV
change
[Eilikcitd
12
0,000 107,757 +15.0%
100,000 97.799 93,729 134% -13.3%
204% 7%
80,000 69,289
60,000 24250 241% .
- 0% +22.5% [ | (k‘:eml—csie.t, Pla”tlnum and
737 9% -gold jewellery
40,000 i BREERHR. HERKEEN
) 68.2% [ Gold jewellery and products
20,000 665% ELENRES
I Watches
o 61% 7.7% 60% 53% 46%  +0.5% sk
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

% of Revenue EREGLL 1HFY2023 2HFY2023 1HFY2024 2HFY2024
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery BREEHR. TR KEEM 19.1% 16.6% 14.7% 12.4%
Gold jewellery and products HEEEMKRESR 75.6% 78.2% 80.1% 83.5%
Watches 8 8% 5.4% 5.2% 5.2% 41%

Strength in gold jewellery and products continued in the financial
year, given its perceived nature of value preservation and
defensiveness and its increasing popularity among young
consumers. Revenue of gold jewellery and products increased
22.5% in FY2024. Its contribution to the Group's revenue expanded
510 basis points to 82.0% during the financial year.

To effectively capture this robust gold demand trend, we unveiled
new products of our signature HUA Collection, including the
launch of jewellery inspired by the Tang Dynasty and dragon, a

Chinese zodiac with auspicious meaning in Chinese culture.

Revenue of gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery declined 13.3%
during the financial year given that demand was more sensitive to
the challenging macro-economic environment. However, we have
observed that quality jewellery continued to be favoured by
customers. With healthy sales, both the Wonderful Life Collection
and Chow Tai Fook Dancing Lily Collection exceeded
management's expectation in FY2024, underpinning our confidence

on the long-term prospects of diamond jewellery.

*For the year ended 31 March
FHEIAJNBLFE
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SS5G

SSSG by major market
REEmEIASNREHERER

96.5%

.3%

4.5%
9o
-2.7%
—@— Mainland China (Self-operated)
hER (BE)
—®— Mainland China (Franchised)
hEAA (08E )
—®— Hong Kong &
1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q Macau of China
FY2023 FY2024 PEEE R P EIRPY
FY2023 FY2024
SSS volume SSS volume
SSSG growth SSSG growth

FIEHERE FEHEBR FEHERBER REHEER

PEANIMEE)
thE A (08 )
thE 8 R o [ )R P

Mainland China (Self-operated)
Mainland China (Franchised)
Hong Kong & Macau of China

-13.1% -18.1% +1.8% -4.8%
-11.2% -13.8% +7.4% -4.2%
+18.3% -12.1% +42.4% +32.0%

SSS in the Mainland was up 1.8% in FY2024. Separately, sales of
franchised POS calculated on same store basis grew 7.4% during

the financial year, thanks to the steady ramp up of younger stores.

In Hong Kong and Macau, the sustained recovery of inbound
tourism continued to support our business recovery. SSS registered
a growth of 42.4% in FY2024.

SSS in Hong Kong grew 40.0% during the financial year while that
in Macau surged 50.9%.

32 Management Discussion and Analysis
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Profitability &

Group *
% -

23.4% 23.7% -

14.1% 14.5%
12.2%
@ ® 1.2%
10.1% 10.0%
2022 2023 2024
Core operating profit? by reportable segment*
FOIE2RABEIRFIESEE G 2*
HK$ million
BEBT YoY
change
Blas-3t4
14,000
12,000
10,509 +19.6%
10,000
8,000
6,000
4,000
2000 +153.7%
0
2022 2023 2024
1. Adjusted gross profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of 1.

unrealised loss (gain) on gold loans, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a more complete
understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

2. Core operating profit and the corresponding margin, a non-IFRS measure, being the aggregate of 2.
adjusted gross profit and other income, less SG&A, which the Company believes is useful in gaining a
more complete understanding of its operational performance and the underlying trend of its businesses

*For the year ended 31 March
FHEIAJNBLFE
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A fig

—&— Adjusted gross profit margin'
AETRRAER

—®— Selling and distribution costs and general
and administrative expenses ("SG&A") as
a % to revenue
THER HRA AR — R R AT ( [ #HER
THA% | ) FrGEREE Nt

—®— Core operating profit margin?
Eetidyavilkg

Bl Mainland China
thEIA it

Hong Kong & Macau of China
and other markets

PEEE. PEIRPR AT

EEBEAENREBEENE(FRERMBRSEUFE), HRTHEESBELR
SRER(KE)NYE, AAGBGEHESRENERHTBRAEERERRBEN
HIREBH

FEEE RN RBMEERN R FREERV RS EANGE), EERABRENENREM
Wi S5t RHERTHMYS, RAGBELESEENEAMTREEERRRE
ELIELCS ke

Performance Review 33

ESUIEI



1HFY 2HFY

YoY change YoY change

L pg: 35 B BUEE P

FaT FE

(HK$ million) (BEET) 1HFY2023 2HFY2023 1HFY2024 2HFY2024 [ bk 1k B LE & 1k
Revenue EEH 46,535 48,149 49,526 59,187 +6.4% +22.9%
Adjusted gross profit PR EHER] 10,436 11,965 11,786 12,988 +12.9% +8.5%
Adjusted gross profit margin A B A2 1 E R E 22.4% 24.9% 23.8% 21.9% +1.4% pts -3.0% pts
iR =R

Other income HAUA 353 381 353 337 +0.1% -11.6%
SG&A HE RITE X (6,440) (7,256) (6,150) (7,151) -4.5% -1.5%
SG&A as a % to revenue HERITHFISZ il 13.8% 15.1% 12.4% 12.1% -1.4% pts -3.0% pts
EXREHALL EERE =R

Core operating profit FEEEER 4,349 5,090 5,989 6,174 +37.7% +21.3%
Core operating profit margin BEEE G AR 9.3% 10.6% 12.1% 10.4% +2.8% pts -0.2% pts

EEss A2

Between the two segments, the Mainland continued to be our - MENEPD, NihEER A2 T EAEE, R20248F
main profit contributor, accounting for over 85% of the Group's KWEEGREEESEERNBIEBS5%,
core operating profit in FY2024.

The Group's core operating profit grew strongly by 28.9% year-on- c 2024 MAFE, REBRNESEEHEANRFRINER
year to HK$12,163 million, while its margin expanded to 11.2% in 28.9% F 12,163 B &®BIT, MiEMZER FHZEN.2%,
FY2024.

Profit attributable to shareholders increased by 20.7% in FY2024, - 2024 FTKIEFE, RBREGERN LF20.7%, HIR2024

as the increase in core operating profit was partly offset by the MEFETHFEERNENEEBENRERER
unrealised loss on gold loans arising from gold price volatility in METEHN ETEEE BTG R,
2HFY2024.

34  Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Adjusted gross profit margin £ AR 1 B R R
AP LA AR A B2 12 00 B R 22 JF 157 B0 R BT % 3R 5 6 R BT
BN, BERBEBAENENRINRESEE
FRERERB(IE )NRE, MBEGEHER B
IMEENEERERAYN THREFRNERES,

We use adjusted gross profit margin, a non-IFRS measure, for
analysis. It represents gross profit margin generated from the
business after eliminating the effect of unrealised loss (gain) on
gold loans. We believe that this measure better reflects the
operational performance of the Group and is useful for the
understanding of the underlying trend of its businesses.

ARERER(ILE )

Unrealised loss (gain)

For the year ended 31 March H#EIHAITHILLEE 2022 2023 2024
Gross profit margin FE A= 22.6% 22.4% 20.5%
Unrealised loss on gold loans BEREERERER 0.8% 1.3% 2.3%
Adjusted gross profit margin ERBEMNENFE 23.4% 237% 22.8%

We use gold loans (short position in gold) for economic hedge
purpose to mitigate the financial impact of the gold price
fluctuations in our gold inventories (long position). In the near-term
and taking a snapshot view of specific financial reporting period,
we will incur recognition due to timing differences. In the longer
term, we expect the long and short positions in gold to offset,
through the sale of gold inventories over time. The unsettled gold
loan contracts are revalued at market price at the end of the
financial reporting period, while the gold inventories are not as it is
measured at weighted average cost, lower of its historical cost

and net realisable value.

As at 31 March 2024, an unrealised loss of HK$2,489 million arose

from such timing difference.
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Movements in adjusted gross profit margin *

EREENENREE *

25.0%

24.0% 23.7%

0.2%

23.0%
0.4%
0.2%

22.0%

21.0% 1:5%

[l Changes in Mainland
China, Hong Kong &
Macau of China and
other markets mix
hEAh, PETE.
hERPI R Bt TS E S S E

Impact from wholesale
business
1.4% 22.8% HEE BRI E

Impact from jewellery
trading
REBEANRE

Changes in product mix
EnilEEE

Changes in gross profit
margin by product in
retail business
TERBRERSN
BIFERIZ

20.0%
2023

-+ At group level, adjusted gross profit margin decreased by 90 basis
points to 22.8% during FY2024, mainly attributable to the impact
from a higher sales contribution from our gold jewellery and
products and wholesale business. This offset the benefit from
retail like-for-like margin improvement resulted from gold price

increase and our optimised pricing strategy.

*For the year ended 31 March
FHEIAJNBLEFE
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London gold price

RBEE
US$ per ounce
ESR=S L
2,300
2,100
1,900
1,700 ,
1,500
1 London gold price
1,300 ! RYEE
3 Average of T-180 days’
1,100 . T-180XFaME"
1.4.2022 1.4.2023 31.3.2024
1. Average of T-180 refers to the average gold price of previous 180 days on rolling basis, being a proxy of 1. T-180XFHEERTEMSOXNERHME, AENXBEMEH IESFENFAME
the average price of our hedged inventories. Average of T-180 days was used for FY2024 and FY2023 1o 2024 MM E K2 2023 WK F E B A T-180 X T HIE
FY2024 Closing price YoY change Average price YoY change
ST 8 = EL &2 1K TR L1k
London gold price _I_ ’I ’I Q Cy ’I O 2 (y
wHeE - 0] + c ©)
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SG&A

SG&A by reportable segment *
ROI2 R B EI 5B E R ITIGASE *

B M AT BB 32

HK$ million
BEBT YoY
change
Btk
13,964
14,000 13,696 13,300 -2.9%
12,000
10,000
8,000 80.1% 78.9% 76.6% -5.8%
6,000
4,000 M Mainland China
chE N
2,000 19.9% 211% 23.4% +8.1% Jl Hong Kong & Macau of China
and other markets
0 PEEE. PEIRPREMNTS
2022 2023 2024
SG&A to revenue ratio *
HERITHZIGERELLE
HK$ million
BEET
14.1% 14.5% —@— As a % of revenue
T YoY =S =palid
12.2% change Bl Staff costs and related expenses
EILEE . ATRZRRIBRZ
16,000 [ | ;c;é;::;;lonanre fees
14,000 13,964 13,696 13,300 -2.9% I Rental expenses
iiEa i
12,000 'l Depreciation and amortisation
5.4% 5.6% N o (Right-of-use assets, "ROUA")
10,000 9% +2.0% IFERm (EAMEE )
Il Depreciation and amortisation
8,000 . 5 (Property, plant and equipment)
24% 20% 17% 0.0% INERME (M. ERRRE)
6,000 1.3% 1.3% 12% +7.7% 1 AdvertEing and promotion expenses
11% 1.3% N N EEREEMX
4,000 1% . 1.2% +6.7% . _
0.8% 0.9% 07% 17.0% Il Packaging materials
2000 [ [ RR 0% -44.2% BRI
' 2.0% 2.2% 1.9% -2.1% I Other SG&A'
o HAMSHE RITEBE !
2022 2023 2024

1. Other SG&A mainly represented bank charges incurred for sales transactions settlement, royalty fees

for the sales of licensed products, certificate expenses and utilities

*For the year ended 31 March
FHEIAJNBLEFE
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1. HMhEERTHMXISOEHESAGHELNRTFAL, HESERERNEA

HA. BBEKNKEH
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Executing against our disciplined cost management strategy, the - RETRFE, REEERENNREEM, Bl

Group closely managed SG&A expenses during the financial year, as a IS E R ITHBAS, HERITHASZR LR 2.9% =
result SG&A expenses decreased by 2.9% to HK$13,300 million. 13,300B&EE Lo

SG&A ratio improved significantly by 230 basis points to 12.2%. - HERITHMXZIEERE THK230E8FE12.2%,
Fixed in nature expenses contributed approximately 50% to SG&A 2024 E, BEMERZGHE RITEHHAXA
expenses in FY2024 (FY2023: approximately 50%). 50%( 2023 T E : £150% )o

Analyses of the major SG&A components, including staff costs and - ARHERTHRAXTZENBEE(BFBE TR

related expenses, concessionaire fees and lease-related expenses TERA B 2« SEAE S AY K2 FE B A BA B Sz )B4 A S IR 3R
are provided on p.44 - 45 and p.56 - 57 of this report. EHRA44EASEHNRS6ESTH,
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MAINLAND CHINA Hh [ P HE
Revenue e
Revenue by operation model *
HEEET NSRS *
HK$ mi_lIion
BEiET Yoy
change
Lk,
100,000
86932 89,698 +9.9%
81,623
80,000
830% +3.6%
59,698 50.4%
60,000 . 45.6%
40,763
40,000 59.8%
65.7% o
570% +15.1% .
% 54.4% Retail
20,000 49.6% n v
40.2%
343% Wholesale
0 biintd
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

In Mainland China, our retail revenue represents sales from self-
operated POS, e-commerce and other direct channels, while
wholesale revenue mainly represents sales to franchisees and

provision of services to franchisees.

Revenue in the Mainland was up by 9.9% to HK$89,698 million in
FY2024. On a constant exchange rate basis, revenue growth

reached 14.1% during the financial year.

Wholesale revenue climbed 15.1% or 19.6% on a constant exchange
rate basis during the financial year, supported by the progressive
ramp up of our stores and the store opening over the past 12

months.

As at 31 March 2024, we had 5,679 franchised CHOW TAI FOOK
JEWELLERY POS. For the majority of these POS, we retain
inventory ownership until sales transactions are completed with
the retail customers, upon which wholesale revenue is recognised.
These franchised POS contributed approximately 63% of the

wholesale revenue in the Mainland.

*For the year ended 31 March
FHEIAJNBLEFE
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RpE A, HMHTEERBIEREEETER.
BErEBREMBERRENHESR, MitEEREN
T S5 01 /10 B3 7 41 6 5 6 K2 (8110 B8 7 32 AR AR BT UL o

2024 T, NMMBIEREF LETH9.9%%E 89,6988
B, WERERSE, NUKFENERE LT
14.1%,

ISR DR R B A 12 18 B 3B P IE BTS2 ET
SERERNMEBFEE EA151% VK IHE EZHRF
BH119.6%,

2024 3H 318, HMERHES5,679 6 EK4EIRE D
EE%EEE RAXBABXERENBZER, HME
EHEEZWHEXZAREFEHEARE, 525
EE)Z&, AlgmaattEgssg, WANHTERNE
FREENIMAL IR ERERK 63%,
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SS5G

SSSG of major products
SEmFEHEER

9.4% 9.9%

PN

-2.0%

1 14 3 £

Same Store ASP
[Bl/EFEIEE
FY2024

Gem-set jewellery

BRERIRE A

HK$8,100

(FY2023": HK$7,600)

Gold jewellery and products

BEEMRER

HK$5,600

(FY2023": HK$5,200)

32.5%

3.4%

—&— Gem-set, Platinum and
K-gold jewellery
PRETIRER. IR RKEER

—8— Gold jewellery

1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q and products

FY2023 FY2024 EREMRERD

FY2024

SSS volume
SSSG growth
FEHERR EEHEER
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery PREEiR . ERKEEM -14.4% -20.5%
Gold jewellery and products =B MR ER +6.4% -0.6%
Watches 8 % +2.8% -2.8%
Overall B +1.8% -4.8%

1. Same Store ASP on FY2024 Same Store basis

In Mainland China, ASP across product categories was resilient in
FY2024, thanks to our continued efforts in pricing strategy

optimisation and differentiated product offerings.

SSSG of gold jewellery and products was relatively strong at 6.4%
during the financial year. ASP of gold jewellery and products
increased steadily to about HK$5,600 (FY2023: HK$5,200).

Moreover, ASP of gem-set jewellery increased to approximately
HK$8,100 (FY2023: HK$7,600).

Annual Report 2024
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1. RUEFHEELIA 2024 fIBUF B[ 5 1F &2 18

@MW, BRFEMFEELEERBRELEHER
WER, SEDER2024 8N K FE KT HE 3R
F#tEs

KAUKFE, Stk ERNREEHESE B
o, MMEBA%BE, EEMRERNTHEEREE
EAHELS,600TT( 2023 BEE : 5,200 7T ),

b, BREEZEMNFEEHEE EFEL8,100E T
(20230TLEE : 7,600 T )o
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Profitability & fiE
Mainland China *

thE At *
9 23.3%
23"“’ - 22.5%
- '\.
12.9% 13.2%
L4 — o 11.4% —@— Adjusted gross profit margin

11.0% 10.8% AR ERERN =
—&— SG&A as a % to revenue
THERITHG S ATG ESREBE AL

—o— Core operating profit margin
FEIEFEENZE

2022 2023 2024
1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
i g: 3 AU E
ot 3 THE
(HK$ million) (5&8#ET) 1HFY2023 2HFY2023 1HFY2024 2HFY2024 [Eilid=34 B L 1k
Revenue =X 40,927 40,696 40,680 49,018 -0.6% +20.4%
Adjusted gross profit KRABEMNERN 9,070 9,970 9,615 10,523 +6.0% +5.5%
Adjusted gross profit margin #E 5 BE1E 1T E R 3 22.2% 24.5% 23.6% 21.5% +1.4% pts -3.0% pts
=R =R
Other income HABKA 256 303 282 272 +9.9% -10.1%
SG&A HERTHMAX (5,111 (5,701) (4,695) (5,487) -8.1% -3.8%
SG&A as a % to revenue fﬁi }Q 1TIE B 5% BT 1 12.5% 14.0% 11.5% 11.2% -1.0% pts -2.8% pts
ES =) EE7E 6 &5 &
Core operating profit FTEEERA 4,215 4,572 5,201 5,308 +23.4% +16.1%
Core operating profit margin TEEERNE 10.3% 11.2% 12.8% 10.8% +2.5% pts -0.4% pts

EEs4 AR

*For the year ended 31 March
CHEIHIIHLEFE

42  Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BIRESME T EXEHRESERRASE



Adjusted gross profit margin decreased by 80 basis points in
FY2024, mainly due to the impact from a higher sales contribution
from wholesale business and gold jewellery and products. This

offset the improvement in the retail like-for-like product margin.

The wholesale business has a relatively lower gross profit margin
than the retail business. An increase of wholesale mix in FY2024
led to a drop of 70 basis points in adjusted gross profit margin.
Revenue mix of gold jewellery and products also surged to 82.5%
(FY2023: 77.8%) due to strong demand for gold jewellery, which
resulted in a decline of 120 basis points in adjusted gross profit
margin. On the other hand, the surge of gold prices and our pricing
strategy optimisation improved the adjusted gross profit margin
by 110 basis points.

SG&A ratio was 11.4% for the period ended 31 March 2024. Fixed
in nature expenses contributed around 50% to SG&A expenses in
FY2024 (FY2023: approximately 45%).

Core operating profit margin was up by 90 basis points to 11.7%
in FY2024.

Annual Report 2024
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RFERENENER2024MBFE TIE8OEE T,
TESMBERFULETEMREnfHEEM LT
i, EMETEEEnENENIIE,

HBERBREMNERTEEBE, 2024 KFE, it
EHGEBINEHEREEMNENETR70EH T B
REEmNHRKEY, EcEMNERNEHERA
ST 2 82.5%( 2023 WBFE : 77.8% ), B4
FAEENEAMETHRI0OELEF. BS—T1H, &M
FFUARBPRE L EEREEEAZEBNENZE LT
MO @& Fo

HE2024F 3831 H LM, HERITHMASZERA
M4%, 2024 T E, BIEMBER(GHE RITE
BZ4150%( 2023 (T : K145% )o
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SG&A

SG&A to revenue ratio *

HER{THRAZIGEREALLER *

B M AT BB 32

HK$ million
BEET
12.9% 13.2%
- —O
o 11.4% YoY
change
Rttty
12,000
' 11,190
10,812
10,182 -5.8%
10,000
47% 5
8,000 4.4% -0.3%
6,000 27% 2.3%
21% 0.0%
07% 0.7%
4,000 1.0% 1.2% 0.7% +2.1%
0.7% 0.9% 1.2% +10.2%
1y 1.3% 0.6% -27.4%
2,000 - 1.4% - 0.6% -47.2%
1.6% 2.0% 17% -2.7%
0
2022 2023 2024
Staff costs and related expenses *
BT RN Rz ERARASZ *
HK$ million
BEET
47% 4.8%
4.4% YoY
change
Blas=3t4
4,500
4,13
4,000 3.938 3924 -0.3%
3,500
3,000 44.0% 38.5% 37.1% -3.9%
2,500
1,000
1,500 .
5275 57 6% 60.0% +3.8%
1,000
500
0 3.3% 4.0% 2.9% -26.5%
2022 2023 2024

1. Employees in production function excluded
2. Other staff related expenses mainly included staff messing, medical care, educational expenses, etc.

Staff costs and related expenses were slightly down 0.3% in FY2024.
+ Fixed component increased 3.8% year-on-year, mainly due to the

annual salary increment. Variable component decreased 3.9%,

mainly due to revision of staff remuneration of back office.

*For the year ended 31 March
FHEIAJNBLEFE
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—&— As a % of respective revenue

PGB ESRERE AL

Bl Staff costs and related expenses
B TR RABRARSZ

Concessionaire fees
EX b0

n
[l Rental expenses
TR

n

Depreciation and amortisation
(Right-of-use assets, "ROUA")
e (ERREE)

Depreciation and amortisation
(Property, plant and equipment)
IrEER e (Y. SRk )

I Advertising and promotion expenses
BEEREEMX

[l Packaging materials
[2E527 )

I Other SG&A
HAhHE R TR

FY2024

Average number
of employees’ YoY change

THETHE' G174

2010  -11%

—&— As a % of respective revenue

FGTEB ERERE 2t

M Variable staff costs
FEE TR
Ml Fixed staff costs
e 8 TR
Il Other staff related expenses?
Hith8 TAERIRX

FEMEEESMINET
HMhETHMAMYFSOFEETERIRN. BRENAEEHE

2024, B TRV AN K A BA B SZ B2 5 R B# 0.3%
EEMANBEERE EF3.8%, TEHRFEHHIG

Ro FENENIEE TIK3.9%, TESHMREES T 5o

R,
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Concessionaire fees and lease-related expenses ™

HiES Ry R T E1HEARSZ ™
HKS$ million
BEET

7.9% 7.9% 77%

*— o e
._/.\. YoY
4.4% o change

4.0% A% RILLE L
3,500

3,003
3,000

2,506 2,518 +0.5%
2,500
1,000 —8— Concessionaire fees as a % of
78.8% respective revenue
1,500 74.8% 74.4% 0.0% HiEN A FTETER E R AL
—®— Lease-related expenses as a % of
respective revenue
1,000 TR AR S T A L
M Concessionaire fees
500 HHEAY
10/ 0/ o 0,
22% 252% 256% #1.9% Ml Lease-related expenses’
0 THEERARS
2022 2023 2024

+ Concessionaire fees ratio declined to 7.7% as a result of a shift of
sales mix towards gold jewellery and products that are generally

subject to lower rates compared with other product types.

Lease-related expenses ratio down slightly by 30 basis points

during the financial year.

1. Under IFRS 16 - leases, depreciation and amortisation (ROUA) and finance costs on leases replace the
majority of rental expenses and therefore we combined these elements for the analysis of lease-related
expenses

*For the year ended 31 March
FHEIAJNBLFE
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HRHEEHECERNNERRANEEEMREm,
SEAMERETRET 7%,

IR EN, HEEREMASZERERMTER30ER T,

1. IRREIRUS RS LRI 16 9% - E. ERMME(LAREE )RHEEME N
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POS network

POS movement by store brand' — Mainland China

REHRMEANFEES - DEA

w

During FY2024

31.3.2022 31.3.2023 2024 B L £E & 31.3.2024
Total Total Reduction Net Total
As at i st @5t iR PR R st
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY? & Xig k= 2 5,629 ° 7,260 (422) 143 7,403
CTF WATCH JE K A& 8 ik 136 129 (22) (8) 121
HEARTS ON FIRE HEARTS ON FIRE 1 1 (1) (1) -
ENZO ENZO 54 30 (9) (7) 23
SOINLOVE SOINLOVE 39 21 (6) (6) 15
MONOLOGUE MONOLOGUE 68 60 (5) 5 65
1. SIS and CIS excluded 1. AEBEDERENHE
2. CTF WATCH POS excluded 2. AEERXBERTEND
3. Restated to reflect the split and combination of HUA exclusive zones 3. HEREBIURRNFEREHERRIER
RSV analysis T B
RSV by product
HERIINRZEE
3.7%
RSV YoY change
FY2023 FY2024 FEERBLLEHE
[ | [ | Gem-set, Platinum and BREER, 0E R -5.9%
K-gold jewellery KE B
| | Gold jewellery and products =xEMNRER +23.3%
[ | Watches B % +6.3%
Overall g +17.3%
RSV of gem-set, platinum and K-gold jewellery
HREZER. AISRKESENNZTEE
% of RSV FEHESEL FY2023 FY2024
Diamond jewellery 0 an 60.5% 57.7%
Other gem-set jewellery HAh Bk 2 8% 62 & & 20.8% 24.3%
Platinum and K-gold jewellery ek KEEH 18.7% 18.0%

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BXBHREREARAE
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RSV of gold jewellery and products
EEEMRERNZFEE

% of RSV FEEIGIL FY2023 FY2024

Weight-based gold products TEETAEM 85.0% 84.6%

Fixed price gold products TEEEED 7.0% 7.1%

Bullion EH/ E1% 8.0% 8.3%

RSV by channel
FHERESNNEFEE
4.3% 4.8%

RSV YoY change

FY2023  FY2024 FEERLLEK

| ] CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY B XKigPhE +17.4%

[ | Other store brands' HAth & & 6o hg ' +11.7%

[ | E-commerce? BRI +18.8%

Overall pge +17.3%

1.
2.

CTF WATCH, HEARTS ON FIRE, ENZO, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE included
Major platforms included Chow Tai Fook eShop, Tmall, JD.com, Douyin and Vipshop

Brick-and-mortar stores remained the dominant channel for
jewellery consumption, accounting for approximately 95% of our
RSV in the Mainland during FY2024.

Meanwhile the e-commerce channel enables us to complement
and further enhance the customer journey and omni-channel
shopping experience. Given our initiatives to enhance digital
customer engagement and stay agile in our product planning when
targeting online consumers, RSV of our Mainland e-commerce
business grew steadily at around 20% during the financial year.
Share of our e-commerce business, in terms of retail sales volume,
amounted to more than 10%. ASP increased to approximately
HK$2,080 during the financial year (FY2023: HK$1,870).

Annual Report 2024
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BB K ## k. HEARTS ON FIRE. ENZO. SOINLOVE & MONOLOGUE

. FETEOUEAXREGHEES. X#E. "R, HERERE

BEHBNMAURRIERERE, R4 HEFE,
NI EEEL 95%0

B, ERRENFMZERE-—DPRERABENDR
EEMERS, SEREMMaE LEZSEE, UKL
HIR FESEHEEERASMBM, NIETERE
KZEERTUBEENIRESL 205N BEBR. &
TEBE N SLEAE10%, KMKFEN, &
FEBETHEBRITEL2,0808 T 2023 M HFE
1,870 7T )o
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The following analyses focus on CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS
which contributed over 90% of the RSV in Mainland China:

CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS

RSV and POS by tier of cities'
EEMREANESSNEFEERFTERN"

15.5%

AXBHREZERIEPEAMTEEBIRI0%, IATH
RPZFEBIENN

IH
]

KEBHREFEE

18.2%

% of POS % of RSV
FEMIGIE TEEGIE

FY2024
RSV YoY change Net POS movement
FEERLEEE FEMIPED

23.7% 12.2%

[ | | ] Tier | cities
| | ] Tier |l cities
! . | ] Tier Il cities
21.9% 42.3% - -

_f.‘axtﬁjzr-ﬁ
3]
Eé\](tpﬁyr_ﬁ

Tier IV cities and others PO #4¢ 1 /1 k2 E i

+17.7% +14
+18.1% +98
+15.5% +17
+17.7% +14

1. As an initiative to better reflect the economic development and strategic significance of cities in
Mainland China, we adopt the city-tier ranking published by Yicai Global. New first-tier cities were

HEGHEMRRDE N THEERRIONEEE, WORACE &) B HEN
MERHAES . H— AR AR R MBI ch g i Z AR T, E2 812023 £5 B30

grouped under Tier |l cities in our analysis. Please refer to the ranking released on 30 May 2023 BofgHEE
RSV and POS by operating model
REERNENNEZTEARTER
o FY2024
30.4% % of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
FEMIGIE FEEGIE FEERELEK FEMHFEH
23.3% | | Self-operated HE +5.8% +21
[ | [ | Franchised o8 +23.4% +122
RSV and POS by store format
RIESHERENNETEEARTER
FY2024
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
FEUGIE TEEGIE FEEELEE TEHFEH
| | Shopping mall D +21.0% +167
| | Department store BEAQT +10.3% +6
[ | Others HAh +21.1% -30
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The current priorities of our POS management strategy are to
maximise overall financial health of our POS portfolio with a focus
on store productivity and profitability. We continuously optimise
existing retail network strategically through a combination of
selective store openings and closures to enhance operational
efficiency and profitability. In FY2024, we opened a net of 143
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY POS in the Mainland.

We registered a broad-based RSV growth across different tiers of
cities in FY2024. Growth in the higher tier cities was similar to that
of the lower tier cities.

By operating model, the net openings in FY2024 were primarily in
franchised format and the new openings were mainly located in
shopping malls.

As at 31 March 2024, franchised POS comprised approximately 77%
of our store count in the Mainland. RSV of franchised POS in the
Mainland rose by 23.4% year-on-year in FY2024, driven by the
steady and progressive store ramp up and new store additions. As
over 50% of our total stores in the Mainland were opened in the
last two to four years, we expect the gradual maturity of these

stores will boost our RSV and store profitability in the coming years.

Annual Report 2024
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EZEHEEREBE, RMBNERREAIEHEEN
FOBNAETT, BHEPIEHESHIRENHERKL. &
MMEEEARIGMEEERIIBEE, B RENLEE
FIZEREE, BIRAEEIZEMENGE], 202457
WEE, MERMBEMRI43ERKBIRESTER,

HPR 2024 M BFEERRERNMEREZNFE
BERE. SRHNTHE R RTR N THEERBR,

REERILEI Y, 2024 BB Z KB F R JE &0 8
J&, RS ESURBI DL,

BZE2024F3H31H, MNHEZERAG TN S &S
BRI 77%0 2024 I AFE, ZTHEMIE MY BER T
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Ratio of RSV per store to RSV per Same Store by store age
RIERENNEEFEERRAEEAFEEZLES

137.3%
115.8%
94.2%
76.0%
64.9% I
Less than 2 years'  2-4 years 4-6 years 6-8 years 8 years or more
DRR24EE! 2F4%F 4Z65F 6FE8F 8HFEYIA L
3/2016
or before
POS opening date Bl Ji B 4/2022-3/2024 4/2020-3/2022 4/2018-3/2020 4/2016-3/2018  3/201638¥ LA Total 485t
POS BEH 2,287 2,165 1132 408 1,41 7,403
% of POS ZEFh{5EL 30.9% 29.2% 15.3% 5.5% 19.1% 100.0%

1. ERARIENZEH TEAMEHEERE

1. For POS of age less than 1 year, RSV is adjusted on an annualised basis

The progressive ramp up of our young stores in the Mainland in 2024 T E, BFMERIMKFEN/SHIZRERE
FY2024 strengthened the resilience and stability of our store R, M@ 7THMPIEEBSHDNENBEL, 5RAE
network. The average RSV for stores aged less than two years was MBS 3 T B R EEA G A E R RS T &S BN
approximately 65% of overall Mainland RSV per Same Store, 65%, RILFERKFESKFE,

marking the highest level in recent years.
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Average quarterly sales’
FrIFEHER"
HK$ million
BEBT
32.6%

20.8%
18.0%
5.0 5.2
4.4
3.9
35 3.6
3.2
I I |
Q 2Q 3Q 4Q
1. Self-operated and franchised POS included for same store calculation; FY2023 data on FY2024 same 1.
store basis

- FY2024 was a year of normalisation after the pandemic, with
2HFY2024 contributing approximately 55% of annual SS§,

reflecting normal seasonality under the normal course of business.

The fourth quarter of our financial year, our peak season as
driven by festive occasions such as Lunar New Year and
Valentine's Day, usually accounts for the highest quarterly SSS

contribution in the year.

Annual Report 2024
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—@— FY2023 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
20230 AF E 2 2 5 TH 5 8t
FERIGHERNEM

—&— FY2024 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
2024 U FE 22 RS H e gt
FEEEHERNZM

B Y2023 average quarterly SSS
20230 UFET AT EREHE

B Y2024 average quarterly SSS
2024R G T E RIS E

ESSHEAEEERNMEZFER ; 2023 W KF EHIEIL 2024 BB F E R /5ZEETE

04 T FERERELESEME —Fo 2024 W B F
ETHFNFEREHERTMAS5%, RFBEE
THIZEE PR,

e 179 B IUEF 2 B 56 0 25 2 08 0 R JB R O A B A BN S
BEAF, NBHRMNEREE, TERSHESME

EREFRS
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HONG KONG & MACAU OF CHINA AND HOB A R BR T A T 8
OTHER MARKETS

K 2

Revenue =X
Revenue by operation model *
HEERTENMERE ~
HK$ million YoY
BEET change

Eilik=4td
20,000 19,015 +45.6%

15,988
15,000
13,061
12,006
10,466
10,000 854% +40.4%
93.0%
84.2% 88.5%
87.2%
5,000
M Retail
BE
" 15% 146% +85.6% Ml Wholesale
7.0% 128% 15.8% E
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

In Hong Kong, Macau and other markets, our retail revenue - BMRESE. EMREMHMENEZEEXREEES
represents sales from self-operated POS, e-commerce and other B BETEBEELEMBERRENHES, MitEE
direct channels, while wholesale revenue represents sales to FBAERANEE R ERHEEER R RBIREERS
franchisees, sales to retailers and sales from jewellery trading. B & &
Retail revenue surged encouragingly by 40.4% in FY2024, - 2024 E, AMMIRESETER, FETEEEHA
supported by the progressive return of Mainland tourists. R 40.4%, HRBEENERNEEBRE, LS
Wholesale revenue increased strongly by 85.6%, thanks to the FEAKNE - F+85.6%,
rebound of our duty-free business in Hainan Province.

*For the year ended 31 March

FHE3ANBILLEE

52  Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited

B E RN T AXBEHRERERRAE



SS5G

SSSG of major products
SEmREHEER

116.5%

1 14 3 £

Same store ASP
BEFLEIEE
FY2024

Gem-set jewellery

BREGERIRE A

HK$16,700

(FY2023": HK$16,500)

Gold jewellery and products
EREMRER

HK$8,100

(FY2023": HK$6,900)

101.1% 89.0% 104.3%
Wf%\ 16.6%
T —
-—
-18.49 -11.4% -4.3%
18.4% -27.2%
—&— Gem-set, Platinum and
K-gold jewellery
BREFiEHR. IR RKEEN
—8— Gold jewellery
1Q 20 3Q 4Q 1Q 20 3Q 4Q and products
FY2023 FY2024 EEEMRER
FY2024
SSS volume
SSSG growth
FEHER R FEHERR
Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery BRE SRR . B RKEEHM -4.8% -4.4%
Gold jewellery and products BEEEMKLERD +67.7% +43.0%
Watches i &% +3.9% +1.3%
Overall A +42.4% +32.0%

1. Same Store ASP on FY2024 Same Store basis

Annual Report 2024
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In Hong Kong and Macau, SSS climbed 42.4% in FY2024, driven by

a significant volume increase and steady ASP growth.

SSS of gold jewellery and products surged 67.7% in the financial
year, outperforming other product categories. Its ASP reached
HK$8,100, up by 17.3% comparing to the previous financial year,
backed by a higher contribution of HUA Collection and gold

price surge.

SSS of gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery declined 4.8% in
FY2024. Yet, ASP of gem-set jewellery was stable at HK$16,700
during the financial year, demonstrating resilience.

REBRRM, BREEXEERLTHEERET R
T, BIEIHER 2024 MIFEER T 42.4%,

RWHFEE, BEEHMRERKRSHEEMETT
67.7%, ZRRBREMEREN. BREARIINE
ETFREEETT, ESEMRERN THE®EE
8,100, B E—EMBFERTT17.3%,

ThEEE . TR KE B 2024 A F K E S5 H
ETH48%, PAMM, ThE RS H TS /AR IR
BEEREE16,7008T, RELHIME,

Profitability L HBE )
Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets *
hEEE. hERM Rz AW *
—@— Adjusted gross profit margin
SRR ENERN =R
—&— SG&A as a % to revenue
THERITIB S TG E 5B L
—— Core operating profit margin
s yiavilES
2022 2023 2024
1HFY 2HFY
YoY change YoY change
AIBEE RIS
EEE THEF
(HK$ million) (B8EnT) 1HFY2023 2HFY2023 1HFY2024 2HFY2024 Elig=314 Bl
Revenue e 5,608 7,453 8,846 10,169 +57.7% +36.4%
Adjusted gross profit SR EENER 1,367 1,995 2,171 2,466 +58.9% +23.6%
Adjusted gross profit margin £ 58 %¢ 1& 01 E F| R 24.4% 26.8% 24.5% 24.2% +0.1% pts -2.6% pts
EEx4 BEREH
Other income B At A 96 78 71 64 -25.9% -17.2%
SG&A HE RZITHBISZ (1,329) (1,555) (1,454) (1,664) +9.5% +7.0%
SG&A as a % to revenue HERITHHY 23.7% 20.9% 16.4% 16.4% -7.3% pts -4.5% pts
S I=b EBEx4 BEaEH
Core operating profit FTHEE RN 134 518 788 866 +487.1% +67.2%
Core operating profit margin & 45 & i FI| 24% 6.9% 8.9% 85%  +6.5% pts +1.6% pts

EEAE BEAH

*For the year ended 31 March
CHEIHIIHLEFE
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In FY2024, adjusted gross profit margin decreased by 130 basis
points to 24.4%, mainly due to the impact from a higher sales
contribution from gold jewellery and products which offset the

improved like-for-like margin.

SG&A ratio decreased by 570 basis points to 16.4% due to

favourable operating leveraging.

Fixed nature expenses contributed approximately 65% to SG&A
expenses in FY2024 (FY2023: approximately 65%).

Core operating profit escalated by 153.7% and reached HK$1,654
million in FY2024. Its corresponding margin was up 370 basis
points to 8.7%, as a result of an improved SG&A ratio.

Annual Report 2024
2024 F 4R

2024 M E, ERBERNENETEIBOBHRTE
24.4%, TEHMREES MK E o KHE = RS 0T
HTEmENELANRZE,

TEREENT, HERITHMZLETRES70EE
TE16.4%,

2024 BEE, BEMHEMZGHERITERMEZA
65%( 2023 T E : £165% )o

2024 M E, T EEEHF KNI EF153.7% %
1,654 B BB, SEREERTRMAILEERNNS,
HIBEHERNZ= A 370 FE 8.7%,

Performance Review 55
KIREIEA



SG&A

SG&A to revenue ratio *

HER{THRAZIGEREALLER *

B M AT BB 32

HK$ million
BEET
23.1% 9
227% —&— As a % of respective revenue
16.4% YoY FHGIEB S5 ERE At
change Bl Staff costs and related expenses
EILLE L KT AR RBRRSE
Ml Concessionaire fees
3,118 +8.1% HES Y
2,884
3,000 2,775 [l Rental expenses
a3
B o [l Depreciation and amortisation
0.0% 102% 7.6% +8.7% (Right-of-use assets, "ROUA")
2,000 : FEREE (fRAEEE)
Il Depreciation and amortisation
01% 01% 0.1% +8.9% (Property, plant and equipment)
' IrEER e (Y. SRk )
5.2% 4.6% 3.6% +13.4% L. .
I Advertising and promotion expenses
1,000 BEEREEMX
1.7% 1.5% 0.9% -10.8% . .
1.2% 11% 10% +37.6% [l Packaging materials
L 05% L 04% 0.3% +10.1% el
4.4% 4.0% 2.8% -0.5% | Other SG&A
0 HMHE RAITHRR
2022 2023 2024
Hong Kong and Macau of China hEEERDEIREM
Staff costs and related expenses *
& TR RAERIRAE * FY2024
HK$ million
BERET Average number
of employees’ YoY change
10.9% n.2% FHATHE' FILEg
O,
: 2,560 -23
8.7%
’/\ e , O /0
[Elan-114
1,500
1,302 +9.4%
1,190
1,050
1,000 36.2% +12.3%
35.2%
38.3%
—@— As a % of respective revenue
PHGIEB ESERE At
500 " o M Variable staff costs
56.9% S5k 4BTR FBAT AR
54.7% Pl Fixed staff costs
BlE& AR
I Other staff related expenses 2
0 7.1% 7.8% 7.3% +2.0% Hitha TAERIR 2
2022 2023 2024
1. Employees in production function excluded 1. AEEEESMOET

2. Other staff related expenses mainly included staff messing, medical care, educational

expenses, etc.

*For the year ended 31 March
FHEIAJNBLEFE

56 Management Discussion and Analysis
F1EE 5T AT

2. HMBTHEFMAXISOESTRRRN. BRENNEEES

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
BXBHREREARAE



Staff costs and related expenses were up by 9.4% in FY2024.
Yet, the staff costs and related expenses ratio dropped by 250
basis points to 8.7%, attributable to a faster growth in respective

revenue.

Fixed staff costs increased 8.7% year-on-year, mainly due to
revisions of the staff remuneration packages to attract and retain
talents. The variable staff costs rose by 12.3% as retail revenue

increased.

Lease-related expenses ™

E7S

7o

2024 ML E, BT ANMRMEREBSZ EFH9.4%,
M, HRERAEERIBESER, B TAHANKERMS
b R B 250 B8 F = 8.7%.

BEBS TAKRELLIENS 7%, TEEHREBITTEL
FolfriE, WRSIRBEAA, FRETINRREE
EREBMNMm EF12.3%,

FHE1BBARSZ ™
HK$ million
BaEBT
5.8%
51%
N YoY
4.1% change
Blas-304
1,000
662 +15.3%
597 574
500 32.6% 301% 37.2% —@— As a % of respective revenue
e S =P e
Bl Rental expenses
THERISZ
64.8% 67.4% 58.8% Ml Depreciation and amortisation (ROUA)
FEREE (EAEEE)
Il Finance costs on leases
o 2.6% 2.6% 4.0% FRERLE AR
2022 2023 2024

Under IFRS 16 - leases, depreciation and amortisation (ROUA) and finance costs on leases replace the
majority of rental expenses and therefore we combined these three elements for the analysis of lease-
related expenses

The average increment on lease renewal during FY2024 relative
to the last leases was approximately 18%. This led to a 15.3%
increase in lease-related expenses during the year. The lease-
related expenses ratio reduced by 100 basis points to 4.1% during
the year.

*For the year ended 31 March

FHEIANBALEE
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IREE PRSI S RIS 1605k - A, EREBMH(EAREZE )REEHE iR
REAMEMSZ, BMAMKILE=BRESH, LETHIERMSZZ AT

2024 FE, BEHEESRLE-MEATH ALK
18%, EEMFNHEERMZIBMIS.3%, FN, M
BEMEMAXEETEI00ER FE4.1%,

57

Performance Review

ESUIEI



POS network 7 B 4 4k

POS movement by store brand' — Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets

REHmRENNETERES - PEETE. DERMREMMIS

During FY2024

31.3.2022 31.3.2023 2024 FIUEESE 31.3.2024
Total Total Addition Reduction Net Total
As at it fast #ast byl R B IG R ast
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY & XtgathE 133 135 13 (3) 10 145
Hong Kong, China P EEE 74 66 3 (1) 2 68
Macau, China o [ )R PY 18 19 2 (2) - 19
Other markets HAh /5 4 50 8 - 8 58
HEARTS ON FIRE HEARTS ON FIRE 10 10 - - - 10
1. SIS and CIS excluded 1. AEUHENS PSR S N HAE
RSV analysis FEEAL M
Hong Kong & Macau of China and other markets hEEE. PEIBMREMMIS
RSV by product
FERISNETERE
5.2%
RSV YoY change
FY2023  FY2024 FEERFLLE Mk
[ ] | Gem-set, Platinum and REER. TR -3.7%
K-gold jewellery KESam
[ ] [ | Gold jewellery and products =EEBEMKLEGRD +69.4%
| Watches 8 % -7.0%
Overall R +45.6%
RSV of gem-set, platinum and K-gold jewellery
GRhERR. HERKEEMNSIEE
% of RSV FEEIGLE FY2023 FY2024
Diamond jewellery 2R =]i] 71.0% 64.4%
Other gem-set jewellery HihhE iR E e 15.5% 20.2%
Platinum and K-gold jewellery HERKESE 13.5% 15.4%
58  Management Discussion and Analysis Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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RSV of gold jewellery and products

EEENRERNSEE
% of RSV FEHEISLE FY2023 FY2024
Weight-based gold products FTEETEM 78.6% 84.7%
Fixed price gold products EEETEM 1.1% 9.7%
Bullion TR/ IR 10.3% 5.6%
RSV and POS by geography
EMESSNETEERTERNS
FY2024
% of POS % of RSV RSV YoY change Net POS movement
FENSIE TEEGLE FEERLEEL FENFEH
[ ] [ | Hong Kong, China PETE +32.0% +2
[ ] [ | Macau, China o &) 2 P +53.2% -
[ | Other markets HAh iz +118.9% +8

RSV in Hong Kong, Macau and other markets surged robustly in
FY2024, thanks to the recovery of inbound tourism.

In the financial year, RSV growth in Hong Kong and Macau were
32.0% and 53.2% respectively. The average daily customer traffic
at our stores in Hong Kong and Macau experienced a substantial
increase year-on-year, especially during the National Day and

Lunar New Year holidays.

RSV of other markets jumped 118.9% in the financial year, driven by
new store additions, buoyant demand at our duty-free shops in

Hainan and the recovery in key Southeast Asian markets.

In Hong Kong and Macau, we net opened 2 POS in the financial
year. In other markets, we opened 8 stores, including 4 duty-free
shops in the Mainland, 1 POS in Canada and 3 POS in key
Southeast Asian markets to capitalise the emerging opportunities

from retail demand in these markets.

Annual Report 2024
2024 F 4R

2024 FE, FB. BMREMMGHNZTEEM
T EERARREEE,

RMEFE, SBERBMTEEBRNAA32.0%
K2 532%, BEERBMPISHEH THERER LT
BERE, THERBEERZBHFENE.

NMBFE, Rt FEEMIT118.9%, LHLT1H
AIBIEEH. BmaR/ERRYIFRARREEESH
15048 B P o B o

EEBRIEM, RMRMKEERNFHRR2EZTER,
Htfitmmm, HMEART8EME, 81 4RNMKA
MERRIE. URMNERIEZTER AR ESRE
DHHERSEZER, BRILEEZSFMHETEZF KN
R ETHT S
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Hong Kong and Macau of China

Average quarterly sales'

FEIFEHERR"
HK$ million
BEET

1.

60

33.7%

18.8%

Self-operated and franchised POS included for same store calculation; FY2023 data on FY2024 same

store basis

The third quarter of our financial year, being the peak season for
the industry as driven by Christmas, typically accounts for the
highest quarterly SSS contribution in the year for the Hong Kong

and Macau market.

Nevertheless, seasonality in FY2024 and FY2023 deviated from
the normal course of business. In SSS terms, 2HFY2024 contributed
approximately 52% to annual SSS, which is slightly below typical
seasonality levels. Meanwhile, the higher contribution by
2HFY2023 was driven by the inbound visits from Mainland
travellers and pent-up bridal demand, following the lift of

pandemic related measures in the fourth quarter of FY2023.

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRESME T

hEEFERPEIRM

—&— FY2023 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
20238 E RS E g
FERIEHERITER

—®— FY2024 quarterly SSS
contribution to annual SSS
2024BN I E 2 2 ST S 2R
FEREHERENEM

B FY2023 average quarterly SSS
2023 F ETHFEREHE

I FY2024 average quarterly SSS
2024 ETF I ERIEHE

ESSHEEEEE RMBEFER ; 2023 W BUF Z HIE LA 2024 BT BUF E B )5 2 EHE

HMUREENE=-ZERERRE, BENEHKIT
Z, HEHMEERBMMENEZER/EHESME
BhRTTERESE.

SAT, 2024 B BUAF B A0 2023 B B4R & 0 86 & 15 5 1@
BTRMERERBEFOENRT, KESEHSERS
8, 204 FEETHFENFERIEHERITMAL
52%, BRI IEERZEEIFE, BikE R, 2023 81
ESZEEF*%éﬁfﬁ'fﬁmﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ%fﬁ, A 3 ik 25 AT

%&Hmmﬁnﬁéﬁﬁ?ﬁ B 2023 BEE THFENE
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OTHER FINANCIAL REVIEW

SRR

Other income, other gains and losses and other expenses

FofbleA | oAt i ai B s 1R L R A B 5

2022 2023 2024
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March H#EIAMHLEE BEET BEET BEET G143 4
Other income HAUZA 793 733 690 -6.0%
Other gains and losses HAD UL 7 K2 5 18 7 (318) (330) +4.0%
Other expenses HAh Bz (95) (88) (74) -15.1%

Other income mainly arose from the government grants received in
Mainland China and Hong Kong, commission income, other income
received from franchisees and other interest income.

Other gains and losses mainly represented a net foreign exchange
loss of HK$289 million (FY2023: HK$328 million) due to the
depreciation of RMB.

Other expenses mainly represented donations of HK$34 million
(FY2023: HK$48 million) and the amortisation of other intangible
assets of HK$40 million (FY2023: HK$40 million).

Annual Report 2024
2024 F 4R

HAMUW A TSR o E A i K2 5 8 1 15 0 BUFT 6 Ad <
EOBA L RE M B FE MU A R MR B WA

Hihwm R EEFSENAREREMELENERE
I8 289 B BB IL( 2023 KEE : 3283 BB T )o

HBASZ F B AIBARI4 T EBL( 2023 HEE : 48
BEBT ) REMEREE#EI0TEBT(20230
BEE - 4J0HEEIT o
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Interest income, finance costs and taxation

FLE WA L Rl B R AS B B T

2022 2023 2024

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million YoY change
For the year ended 31 March H#E3ASIHILLEE BEEx BEERX BEEx [l Lk & 1k
Interest income from banks HRITRI B UIIA 70 228 183 -19.6%
Finance costs on bank borrowings IRITE R E RY K (68) (294) (297) +0.8%
Finance costs on gold loans FEEEME RN K (234) (252) (357) +41.8%
Finance costs on lease liabilities HEEEMENK (36) (39) (51) +28.8%
Taxation wia (2,103) (1,957) (2,121) +8.4%

Interest income from banks decreased by 19.6%, mainly due to a

relatively lower average bank deposit balance during FY2024.

Finance costs on gold loans increased by 41.8% in FY2024,
resulting from a relatively higher average gold loan (by weight)

outstanding during the year.

62 Management Discussion and Analysis
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2024 TR 2, £ 2B BB B BT HF IR 1T 7 5k AS
Bk, SURTTAIBEUWARL19.6%,

2024 E, ESEEmMEMARIEBN41.8%, J1H
REAREBEEFHEEBE(HESFE )THEHERS
KF,
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Return on equity

We use return on equity ("ROE") to measure the efficiency of
generating profits from each unit of shareholder equity.

Net profit margin increased to 6.1%. ROE was up by 820 basis
points to 24.7% while the equity multiplier increased.

e NUE &
191 PR AR I [0 4R 22 51 8 £3 4 AR AR R AR 35 B R 0

W,

BIHARLEAZE61%, BABIIRE EF 820 T2
24.7%, MEDZEEA EFH,

Net profit jBit
ROE _ L +8.2% pts EEA Y
N E kR Total equity fE25485A (FY2023: 16.5%)
Net profit margin jFizFlIZ2 Assets turnover B EE#E Equity multiplier fEZRfSEL
(FY2023: 5.8%) (FY2023: 1.1 times &)

T T

(FY2023: 2.6 times f&)

T

Net profit jHimFl Revenue &% Total assets # &=
Revenue E 38 Total assets & E Total equity E#54R5E

Annual Report 2024
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Inventory balances and turnover period 17 55 45 6 e i
Inventory balances by product ™

REREINNFEGSR ™

HK$ million
BaEBT YoY
change
70,000 Eli%=414
64,593 +9.2%
60,000 57,073 59172
50,000 44.6% -9.2%
. 53.7%
40,000 522%
30,000
M Gem-set, Platinum and K-gold jewellery
20,000 52.7% +32.3% pRESEH. B RKEEN
44.9% 43.5% Ml Gold jewellery and products
10,000 EHREMRER
I Watches
0 2.9% 2.8% 2.6% +3.1% sE
2022 2023 2024
1. Packaging materials excluded 1. AaEaEmE
Inventory turnover period by category *
ERI BN R E RS 2>
Day
X YoY
change
Eili%=414
350
300 294
272 274 -20 daysX
250
200
213 o
212 -9d
150 aysX
100
Bl Finished goods
50 73 BAY &
59 62 -11 daysX Il Raw materials
) A
2022 2023 2024
2. Being inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, at the end of the reporting period divided by 2. EEERSERFHGH A EEERE PRAFNHEM, AERLA3658 366

cost of goods sold for the year, multiplied by 365 or 366

Inventory balances, excluding packaging materials, increased by - R2024F3H31H, FEGEM(AREREYAE )L
9.2% and reached HK$64,593 million as at 31 March 2024. FH9.2% ZE 64,593 B & B ITo

Inventory turnover period reduced by 20 days when compared to - FEREBE 2023 MIEER D 20X,
that of FY2023.

As at 31 March 2024, approximately HK$16,535 million or 25.6% of + fR2024%F3A31H, NBEFEHFERMBTFELR
our total inventory balances were held by franchised POS (31 #116,535 8 BBV 25.6%(2023F 3310 : &
March 2023: approximately HK$15,570 million or 26.3% were held FERRFEL15570 B & BT 26.3% ).

by franchised POS).

If the inventory balances held by franchisees were excluded, c BRI EFAENFEGWN, 2024 MHFERFER
inventory turnover period in FY2024 would have reduced to 204 S TERZE 204 X( 2023 HFE : 216K ),
days (FY2023: 216 days).

*For the year ended 31 March
*HEIANOLEE
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Capital structure AN
Increase
% to % to (decrease)
31.3.2023 total equity 31.3.2024 total equity  IG/I( ji 2> ) Denominated Interest rate
HK$ million  {51EZZMREE HKS$ million  {SiE#E428 HK$ million currency' structure’
As at i Y =P, 4 BEET Btk BEET SHEER FIERIE"
Non-current assets EREFERE 10,074 30.2% 9,637 36.0% (437) N/ARERA N/AARNiE A
Inventories 78 59,290 177.7% 64,647 241.7% 5357 N/ARER N/ARiE A
Bank deposits and RITERRES 1,734 35.2% 7,695 28.8% (4,039) Mainly Mainly
cash equivalents? HEY? HKD, RMB variable
and USD interest
TE% rate
HEIT +TE%
AR®E FER=
ESYI
Total borrowings? wmE 20,941 62.8% 28,624 107.1% 7,683
Bank borrowings IRITEM 5,855 17.6% 4,136 15.5% (1,719) HKD and Fixed and
RMB variable
A TT R interest
NG rate
& & &2
F IR =
Gold loans =EEE 15,086 452% 24,488 91.6% 9,402 RMB and Fixed
usb interest
AR¥BR rate
Xt EBlEN=E
Net debt* EIREER 9,207 27.6% 20,928 78.2% 1,721 N/ARNER N/AAE A
Working capital ® EEE®S 26,245 78.7% 21,662 81.0% (4,583) N/ARTER N/AARE
Total equity T AR 33,360 100.0% 26,746 100.0% (6,614) N/AAE R N/A A iE

1. Information about denominated currency and interest rate structure related to the condition as at 31

March 2024

2. Bank balances and cash and short-term bank deposits included
3. As at 31 March 2024, bank borrowings amounted to HK$794 million and all the gold loans would be
matured within 12 months while bank borrowings amounted to HK$3,342 million would be matured in

more than 1 year but not exceeding 2 years

4. Aggregate of bank borrowings, gold loans, net of bank deposits and cash equivalents

5. Being net current assets

Annual Report 2024
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1. ARGHEERRAZERNER R 202453 A 31 BHKER

2. BUEIRATHEBRRIA®RIEWIRITIFR
3. [R2024%3A31H, 794ERBINRTENEKMARSEEMR2EBANEE, @
3342BBBANRITERBERBB1FERSR2FNEHN
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We principally meet our working capital and other liquidity
requirements through a combination of capital contributions,
including cash flows from operations, bank borrowings and gold
loans. Gold loans are also used for economic hedge purpose to
mitigate the financial impact of the price fluctuations in the
Group's gold inventories.

The Group's daily operation was mainly financed by operating cash
flows, and mainly relied on short-term borrowings to satisfy
inventory financing needs during peak seasons, working capital for
future expansion plans and unexpected needs. The Group has not

experienced any difficulties in repaying its borrowings.

The Group's income and expenditure were mostly denominated in
HKD and RMB, while its assets and liabilities were mostly
denominated in HKD, RMB and USD. No hedging instrument is
deployed against RMB fluctuation as most of the daily receipts and
payments for our Mainland China operations are both made in
RMB, which do not pose a substantive currency exposure to our
business.

It is our treasury policy to maintain high liquidity in response to the
requirement of operating cash flows; and to maintain financial
prudence by not engaging in highly leveraged or speculative
derivative products.

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRESME T

HMESERRECERTRE. RITEAREEHE
EHERRREMEEESREAMRNETE R, &
EEETAFCEERBNNEE A EEESFER
IBIRENETI B & o

REBHERERFMFECTSRBEERETRE, T

ZEIEURHNEEREREFTHAFEEEFT R, KRR
fERstEI TR EEE T RRET 2 INIFH K, m%!ﬁé
1815 & FR 77 [ f £ 1 fo] O B

REBZWARMIXESUBIRARKESE, ME
ERBBEUEFSZABIT. ARBRETTEH. BRI
MPEANEBERBEEENESX XS UARBES,
HEMERBUIEBNYEXOEERER, RmKEH
HARBKIFATOUEIPTE,
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Effect of RMB fluctuation

As part of our business operation is in Mainland China, the

fluctuation in RMB would have some impact on our performance.

Transactions entered by the Hong Kong entities but denominated
in RMB, including the inter-group transactions with the Mainland
China subsidiaries, are converted into HKD, the functional currency
of the Group, initially using the spot rate at the date of transaction
and the unsettled transactions are retranslated at closing
exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Such translation
differences between the spot rate and closing exchange rate are
recognised in profit or loss, negatively affecting our profit for the

year when RMB depreciated.

Exchange difference also arises when i) incomes and expenses of
the Mainland China segment are translated into HKD, the
presentation currency of the Group, at the average exchange rate,

while the corresponding assets and liabilities are translated at

UN

RS DB 5
BREMEBAEBEEDEN TS,
HEMORRERE TR,

A B B0 #0

FBASLUARBSHERNZ( 8 E R E R i E
NFETHEREBRXZ IGRXZERNEEEXRT
BRAHBIT, MRKERINGEEY, MAKEENZZA
GLEMERREEHENRE, REEXEIHE
RPBREERREDRPHEDR MARBEZESHI
MEFNENENRARZE,

e, ERZERIR ) S E AR5 8P 6 52 182 T 14
RBERKBT, MAKEZ2IEE, MBENEER
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closing exchange rate and ii) the change in closing exchange rates BIEH, ARERRERDINIREHENREAR.
at the current financial year of the net assets of the Mainland
China segment from the closing rates at the previous financial

year. Such differences are recognised in the translation reserve in
equity.

The table below illustrates the fluctuation of RMB and the impact TRARMIIRA R REN AR EEF MRS RENZE

on our financial performance:

FY2024 Closing exchange rate YoY change Average exchange rate YoY change
ISt B 22 [e] EE 2 1k THERRELEEK
RMB to HKD
AR¥ERET
2023 2024

Constant Constant

exchange exchange

As reported rate basis As reported rate basis

R R

For the year ended 31 March HEIAMHILEE FiF £ 3R EX5H Fi 23 EXsH

Revenue YoY change ERGELLLENW -4.3% +0.5% +14.8% +18.5%

Core operating profit YoY change S EHAE e -5.6% -0.5% +28.9% +33.1%

Changes in inventory balances FEGEREL +3.6% +8.7% +9.0% +11.4%

Changes in bank deposits and cash equivalents $R1T17 A &2 18 & S @ W) 8 {1 -215% -15.6% -34.4% -31.9%
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Cash flows and others

Bl B

fib

2022 2023 2024
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
For the year ended 31 March BEIAIHLEE BEREET BEET BEET
Operating cash flows before movements gEERENpIZEERERE 11,984 1,619 15,491
in working capital
Leases paid’ EffEE" (1,017) (953) (893)
Net cash used in inventories 2 FEMAREIEHR? (4163) (6,304) (829)
Net cash from (used in) other operating HihvEE /5 ME( A )RS F%E 5,628 3,794 (1,742)
activities
Capital expenditure =W (1,531) (1,982) (963)
Pro forma free cash flows HEZEHRERE 10,901 6,174 11,064
Net change in bank borrowings IRITE P SN 2,641 (3,216) (1,749)
Dividends paid EfRE (4,689) (5,079) (12,538)
Other movements EL{th 5 #) 57 (1,126) (777)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and ReRBEEFEIEN(RLY )FE 8,910 (3,247) (4,000)

cash equivalents

Major cash flows items for FY2024
20240 FEEFEREFEAE

HKS$ million
BEET

Pro forma free cash flows & BHIEE i E

11,064
|

30,000
15,491

26,000

893 829

22,000
18,000
14,000 11,695
10,000

6,000

2,000

1,742 963

1,749

12538

As at iR
31.3.2023

1. With adoption of IFRS 16, leases paid was included in financing activities 1
2. Net cash used in inventories included net change in inventories and repayment of gold loans 2.
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7,695

As at 12
31.3.2024

Operating cash flows
before movements in
working capital
SEEEEFIZEE
RERE

Leases paid’
EfffsE!

Net cash used in
inventories ?
FEAREIEE?

Net cash used in other
operating activities

H i & EB T AR S P
Capital expenditure
piNE g

Net decrease in bank
borrowings
IRATERUF IR
Dividends paid
BEffR

Other movements
Hith& )

PRAVE BRI IR S RSB 16 SR8, EMEESIARMBEIEE
FEAMARTPROEFEFLENEERES

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Capital expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure incurred during FY2024 amounted
to HK$963 million (FY2023: HK$1,982 million).

Capital expenditure by nature *

E A B 3L
REER204 M BEENENRMESZ AT E BT
(2023 EE : 1,982B&EIBIT )o

RS 8|53 BENBASE *
HK$ million
BEBT
1,982
2,000
1,600 1,531
1200 74.8%
963
BB Furniture, textures and equipment and
800 89.5% leasehold improvements
il FE KRR EFIERELEE
749% Ml Land and buildings and construction in
400 progress
21.0% TR T AR T2
67% 23.9% Il Plant and machinery and motor vehicles
0 3.8% 41% 1.2% TS R g ER R0 &
2022 2023 2024
Capital expenditure by function *
RETNRESI 5y BB NBAST *
HK$ million
BEET
1,982
2,000
21.3%
1600 1,531
8.3%
1,200
963 )
60.4% Projects
800 69.5% 22.0% =B
POS
TR
400 54.3% J Productions
2.9% 4.8% *E
. 19.3% . 13.5% ;‘5@) M Offices
0 MAE
2022 2023 2024

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the Group's capital commitment as at 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.

*For the year ended 31 March
CHEIAIBLLFE
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREIEASH

E = =1 X B >~ FIEﬂ )|
Executive Directors I{TEE Responsibilities B &

1 Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry#, GBM, GBS (Chairman) @@@ Strategic direction and overall performance of the Group
HRALEL *(GBM, GBS)(EF) REBEBIRIB I R BERE

2 Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy * (Vice-chairman) @@ Strategic direction, performance and corporate transformation of the Group
BEE R A H(BIERE) REEREE 8. RERERSLE

3 Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia* (Vice-chairman) @@ Strategic direction, performance and corporate transformation of the Group
BEEZ+ H(BIEE) REBERE I, REREHELE

4 Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent (Managing Director) @@ Overall corporate management, strategy and operations of the Group
HRESE(EREKNE) REERERBERESE. HIRHEEE

5 Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian?, JP Strategic investment
EEmEL *UP) rigrE

6 Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson * Bank and landlord relationship management
EDSRAR ST A # IRITAIRERAEEIE

7 Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton @ Financial management, corporate governance and investor relations
EPIMER S & WHEE, CREERREBME

8 Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter Business in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan of China
BERELE PEEE. PEIRMRPEG SR RS

9 Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby Development of individual brands, ENZO, SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE,
BiRATE and watch business in Mainland China

&M &R ENZOL SOINLOVE A1 MONOLOGUE, £z th [ A th #8 8% 2 55 00 3% 2

Independent Non-executive Directors BIIFEHITEE Responsibilities B &

10 Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon @@ Independent Non-executive Directors ("INED", or "INEDs" in the
ot Pited plural) serve a significant role in the Board to bring independent

11 Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBM, GBS, JP @@@ judgment on the performance, development and risk management
855 4 (GBM. GBS, JP) of the Group. As chairmen or members of the Nomination

' ' Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and/ or

12 Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, JP @@@ Sustainability Committee, they also undertake detailed governance
S ¥EE 4 (SBS, JP) work under the respective terms of reference of the committees.
13 Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily QO® rnurnrssnssenEEESHE, ANEENER. BRER
LR AREEETEIER, FARESEE. FHSEE. ENSEE
14 Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert, JP @@ %/ zmgfsﬁf%%{fﬂqjiﬁﬂﬁ\zé; MPTRIESSESHEN
BT REEME B T1E,

EmEELE (UP)

15 Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina @@

kLt

16 Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric @@
Waskt

NC = Nomination Committee member RC = Remuneration Committee member AC = Audit Committee member
RESAGHNE HMESEGNE H#HUSEGHE

SC = Sustainability Committee member STC = Strategy and Transformation Committee member *  Committee Chairman
IHEYREEGNE RENNEESEGHNE SETER

#  Five of our directors are family members related to the Company’s major shareholders. Apart from them, all other directors of the Company are not related to each other.
hBREBRRANSEERRAMARKEN R PRIk 29, RNATI A HNE S 2 Bl #5HiE,
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CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, GBM, GBS
Aged 77, joined the Group in 1971, was appointed as Chairman and an

executive Director in July 2011. He is also a member of the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Strategy and
Transformation Committee of the Company. Dr. Henry Cheng is
responsible for the strategic direction and overall performance of

the Group.

Dr. Cheng is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is also
a director of several substantial shareholders of the Company,
including Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings Il) Limited and Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited.

In addition, Dr. Cheng is chairman and an executive director of New
World Development Company Limited and NWS Holdings Limited,
and also chairman and a non-executive director of FSE Lifestyle
Services Limited and i-CABLE Communications Limited, all of which

are listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng is chairman of the Advisory Council for The Better Hong
Kong Foundation. He was a Standing Committee Member of the
Twelfth Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference of the

People's Republic of China.

Dr. Henry Cheng is the father of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and Ms.
Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, an uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and a

cousin of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson.
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VICE CHAIRMEN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
Aged 46, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive

Director in July 2011 and became Vice-chairman and executive
Director in June 2022. Mr. Conroy Cheng is responsible for strategic
direction, performance and corporate transformation of the Group. He
is a member of the Nomination Committee and the Strategy and
Transformation Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng is also a

director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng has been in the jewellery industry for over 15 years, with
extensive knowledge of the global diamond market. He is currently a
member of the executive committee of the Diamond Federation of
Hong Kong, China and a board member of the World Diamond
Council.

Mr. Cheng is a non-executive director of New World Development

Company Limited, a listed public company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from The
Western University (formerly known as The University of Western
Ontario). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng worked at a Hong
Kong-based investment management company as a corporate finance

executive.

Mr. Conroy Cheng is a nephew of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry and
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson, and a cousin of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia.
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Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia
Aged 43, joined the Group in April 2019 as a non-executive Director,

re-designated as an executive Director in April 2021, and became
Vice-chairman and executive Director in June 2022. Ms. Cheng is
responsible for strategic direction, performance and corporate
transformation of the Group. She is a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Strategy and Transformation Committee of the

Company. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. Sonia Cheng is the chief executive officer of Rosewood Hotel
Group. She is an executive director of New World Development
Company Limited and a non-executive director of Giordano
International Limited (appointed on 3 April 2024), both of which are
listed public companies in Hong Kong. She is also an independent
non-executive director of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited. Ms. Cheng was an independent director of
Primavera Capital Acquisition Corporation, a company listed on the

New York Stock Exchange, until her resignation in December 2022.

Ms. Cheng serves as a member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board and
chairman of its Marketing and Business Development Committee. She
is a council member of The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a
member of its Committee on Institutional Advancement and
Community Relations, a member of Human Resources Planning
Commission and a member of The Standing Committee on Disciplined
Services Salaries and Conditions of Service of the HKSAR. She is also
the Vice-Governor of Guangdong Youth Development Foundation.
Furthermore, Ms. Cheng is a member of the Thirteenth Guangdong
Provincial Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative

Conference of the People's Republic of China.

Before joining New World Development Company Limited, Ms. Cheng
worked in a major international investment bank and a global US
private equity firm specialising in real estate investments. She holds a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Applied Mathematics with a concentration

in Economics from Harvard University.

Ms. Sonia Cheng is the daughter of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, the sister
of Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy

and a niece of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Aged 68, joined the Group in 1977, was appointed as Managing
Director of the Company in July 2011. He is responsible for the
Group's overall corporate management, strategy and operations. He is
a member of the Sustainability Committee and the Strategy and
Transformation Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong is also a

director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Wong has over 45 years' diverse experience in the jewellery
industry with a proven track record in business development in
China as well as in corporate operations and management. He has
been feted with the highest accolade of the JNA Awards 2020,
the "Lifetime Achievement Award", for his outstanding lifetime
achievements and contributions to the global jewellery community.
He also received "Extraordinary 40" Awards from Jewellery World
Awards in 2023. Mr. Wong was awarded Director of The Year
Awards 2015 by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors in December
2015. He was ranked the 1%t place as the "Best CEOQO" by
Institutional Investors 2023 All-Asia Executive Team Rankings, in
Asia (ex-Mainland China) in the Consumer/ Discretionary sector,
combined vote type; was recognised Best IR by Chairman/ CEO by
Hong Kong Investor Relations Association in 2023; and has also
been named as "Asia's Best CEO (Investor Relations)" by Corporate
Governance Asia, an authoritative regional journal on corporate

governance, at its Asian Excellence Awards in 2023 and 2024.

Mr. Wong is dedicated to giving back to the community and the
industry through his participation in public or non-profit
organisations. He serves as a member of the 2024 Fair Organising
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council for its
Hong Kong International Jewellery Show and Hong Kong
International Diamond, Gem and Pearl Show, a council member of
The Hong Kong Management Association, chairman of the
Jewellers' and Goldsmiths' Association of Hong Kong, chairman of
the supervising committee of the Hong Kong & Kowloon Jewellers'
& Goldsmiths' Employees' Association, a permanent honorary
president of the Kowloon Gold Silver and Jewel Merchants' Staff
Association, and a board member of CIBJO, the World Jewellery
Confederation. He is also president of the executive committee
2022/2024 of Youth Outreach.

Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director of Crystal
International Group Limited, which is a listed public company in
Hong Kong.
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Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian, SBS, JP

Aged 44, joined the Group in 2007, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Dr. Adrian Cheng is responsible for the strategic
investment of the Group. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group.

Dr. Cheng is an executive vice-chairman and chief executive officer of
New World Development Company Limited, overseeing the strategic
direction for its property development and investment activities. He is
also chairman and a non-executive director of New World Department
Store China Limited, chairman and a non-executive director of Arta
TechFin Corporation Limited, and a non-executive director of NWS
Holdings Limited (re-designated from executive director with effect
from 1 April 2024), all of which are listed public companies in Hong
Kong. He was a non-executive director of New Century Healthcare
Holding Co. Limited, until his resignation on 1 June 2022; a non-
executive director of Giordano International Limited, until his
resignation on 1 December 2022; and a non-executive director and a
co-chairman of Meta Media Holdings Limited, until his resignation on 5
October 2023, all of which are listed public companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng serves as a member of the Fourteenth National Committee
of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference of the
People's Republic of China, a vice-president of All-China General
Chamber of Industry and Commerce, the chairman of the Mega Arts
and Cultural Events Committee, a board member of the Hong Kong
Financial Services Development Council and the chair of the board of
Hong Kong Academy for Wealth Legacy, a non-official member of the
Task Force on Promoting and Branding Hong Kong, and a member of
the United Nations Economic and Social Commission for Asia and
Pacific (ESCAP) Sustainable Business Network (ESBN) Executive Council
and the chair of the ESBN Task Force on Innovation. He is the chairman
of New World Group Charity Foundation Limited, the vice chairman of
CTF Education Group, the founder of K11 Art Foundation, the founder
of The WEMP Foundation, and the chairman of China Young Leaders
Foundation. Dr. Cheng is a Justice of Peace appointed by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region since
2016 and was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star in 2022. He was made
an "Officier de I'Ordre des Arts et des Lettres" by the French
Government in 2017, and an "Officier de I'Ordre National du Mérite" in
2022.

Dr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree (cum laude) from Harvard
University and received the Honorary Doctorate of Humanities by the
Savannah College of Art and Design in 2014. He was conferred an
Honorary Fellowship by Lingnan University in 2014, an Honorary
University Fellowship by The University of Hong Kong in 2022 and an
Honorary Fellowship by the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 2023. Dr. Cheng worked in a major international bank
from September 2003 to April 2006 prior to joining the Group, and

has substantial experience in corporate finance.

Dr. Adrian Cheng is the son of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, the brother of
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, a cousin of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and a
nephew of Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson.
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Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson

Aged 65, joined the Group in 1979, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in July 2011 and re-designated as an executive Director in April
2019. Mr. Wilson Cheng is responsible for the Group's bank and landlord
relationship management. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries

of the Group.

Mr. Cheng is chairman of the Supervisory Committee of The Chinese
Gold and Silver Exchange Society. He has over 45 years' experience in
administration and finance in jewellery retail business. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from the University of Hawaii,

Honolulu.

Mr. Wilson Cheng is a cousin of Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry, and an
uncle of Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy, Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian and
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia.

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Aged 49, joined the Group in 2004, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Hamilton Cheng is the Chief Financial Officer
responsible for the Group's financial management, corporate
governance and investor relations. Mr. Cheng is a member of the
Strategy and Transformation Committee of the Company. He also
serves as a joint company secretary of the Company and a director of

certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Business Administration Degree in
Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He
is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
Chartered Financial Analyst. He completed The Prince of Wales's
Business & Sustainability Programme designed by the University of
Cambridge Institute for Sustainability Leadership and obtained
Executive Diploma in Corporate Governance and Sustainability

Directorship from The Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2018.

Mr. Cheng is currently a council member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and a member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel of the

Accounting and Financial Reporting Council in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheng was ranked the 1 place in the "Best CFO" category in
Institutional Investor's 2023 All-Asia Executive Team rankings, in Asia
(ex-Mainland China) in Consumer/ Discretionary sector, combined
vote type. He was recognised Best IR by CFO by Hong Kong Investor
Relations Association in 2023. He has also been named as "Asia's Best
CFO (Investor Relations)" by Corporate Governance Asia, an
authoritative regional journal on corporate governance, at its Asian
Excellence Awards in 2023 and 2024. Mr. Cheng was awarded
Director of The Year Awards 2015 by The Hong Kong Institute of

Directors in December 2015.
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Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter

Aged 59, joined the Group in 1985, was appointed as an executive
Director in July 2011. Mr. Peter Suen is responsible for the Group's
business in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan of China. He is also a

director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Suen has been in the jewellery industry for almost 40 years. He is
a member of the Jewellery Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council, the executive committee of The
Jewellers' and Goldsmiths' Association of Hong Kong, the executive
committee of the Hong Kong Retail Management Association,
Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee of Hong Kong
Qualifications Framework and the committee on fundraising of Youth
Outreach. Mr. Suen holds an Executive Master's Degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Aged 49, joined the Group in 1999, was appointed as an executive
Director in January 2016. Mr. Bobby Liu is responsible for the
development of individual brands of the Group, including ENZO,
SOINLOVE and MONOLOGUE, as well as that of the Group's watch
business in Mainland China. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Liu has over 25 years of experience in retail business and
operational management. He is a member of the Yantian District
Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference
in Shenzhen, executive committee member of the Shenzhen
Federation of Industry & Commerce and vice chairman of the
Federation of Industry and Commerce of Yantian District, Shenzhen
Municipal, and vice chairman of the council of Shenzhen Performance

Excellence Management Foundation.

Mr. Liu holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from The
Western University (formerly known as The University of Western
Ontario) and a Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer Mathematics
from Carleton University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Aged 74, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is chairman of the Audit Committee and a

member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Gordon Kwong is a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong was a Partner of
PriceWaterhouse from 1984 to 1998, an independent member of the
Council of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from 1992 to 1997, during
which, he had acted as convener of both the Compliance Committee

and the Listing Committee.

Mr. Kwong is an independent non-executive director of Agile Group
Holdings Limited, Henderson Investment Limited, Henderson Land
Development Company Limited, FSE Lifestyle Services Limited and
COSCO Shipping International (Hong Kong) Company Limited, all of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Piraeus Port Authority SA (a
company listed on the Athens Stock Exchange) and Shanghai
Commercial Bank Limited. Mr. Kwong was an independent non-
executive director of NWS Holdings Limited, a listed public company in
Hong Kong, until his retirement on 21 November 2022.
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Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey, GBM, GBS, |P

Aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
November 2011 and is chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of

the Company.

Mr. Jeffrey Lam is an independent non-executive director of C C Land
Holdings Limited, China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited,
Wynn Macau, Limited, CWT International Limited, i-CABLE
Communications Limited, Wing Tai Properties Limited, Analogue
Holdings Limited, CSC Holdings Limited, and Golden Resources
Development International Limited (appointed on 2 April 2024), all of
which are listed public companies in Hong Kong. He was an executive
director of USPACE Technology Group Limited (formerly known as
Hong Kong Aerospace Technology Group Limited), a listed public

company in Hong Kong, until his resignation on 28 November 2023.

Mr. Lam is a non-official member of the Executive Council of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and a member of the Legislative
Council in Hong Kong. He also holds several other public and
community service positions, including being a general committee
member of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, an
honorary member of the Court of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, and a director of the board of Heifer Hong Kong. Mr. Lam
was a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People's
Political Consultative Conference, and a director of Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited. Mr. Lam was awarded the Grand
Bauhinia Medal by the HKSAR Government in 2023.

Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor Degree in Mechanical Engineering from Tufts
University in the United States. He has over 40 years of experience in
the toy industry and is currently the managing director of Forward

Winsome Industries Limited, which is engaged in toy manufacturing.
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Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, SBS, |P

Aged 74, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in November 2011 and is chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee and Audit Committee

of the Company.

Dr. Raymond Or is also chairman and a non-executive director of
CSC Holdings Limited, and an independent non-executive director
of Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited and Playmates
Holdings Limited, all of which are listed public companies in Hong
Kong. He is also an independent non-executive director of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited.

Dr. Or holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree in Economics and
Psychology from the University of Hong Kong and was awarded
Honorary University Fellow from The University of Hong Kong in 2009.
Dr. Or was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Social Science from the
City University of Hong Kong in 2014 and was conferred Honorary
Fellowship by Hang Seng University of Hong Kong (formerly known as
Hang Seng Management College) in May 2017.

Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily

Aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
April 2019 and is a member of the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Sustainability Committee of the

Company.

Ms. Lily Cheng has served in the technology and internet industry for
over 20 years, both as an entrepreneur and as a corporate executive.
She is the founder and an executive director of Hubel Labs Limited, a
software lab developing Al-powered edtech games and applications.
She served as the President of TripAdvisor, APAC from 2014 to 2016
and held various management roles at TripAdvisor, Inc. and Expedia,
Inc. from 2008 to 2016. She was a management consultant with The
Boston Consulting Group from 2006 to 2008.

Ms. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Engineering and a Master
of Engineering Degree from the University of Cambridge and a Graduate

Certificate in Artificial Intelligence from Stanford University.

Ms. Cheng is an independent non-executive director of Sunevision
Holdings Limited and Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (appointed on
20 May 2024), both of which are listed public companies in Hong
Kong. She is also an independent non-executive director of Octopus
Cards Limited, a board observer and advisor to HBX Group and a
non-executive member of the Global Council of Herbert Smith
Freehills, LLC.. Ms. Cheng has been an independent non-executive
director of Swire Properties Limited, a listed public company in Hong
Kong, from 17 March 2017 to 7 May 2024.
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Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert, |P

Aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
April 2021 and is a member of the Nomination Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Sustainability Committee of the Company.

Mr. Chia is a member of the board of director of Hong Kong Science
and Technology Parks Corporation. He has around 15 years of
practical experience in big data strategy and application with unique
insights into the future trends of e-commerce. He joined Alibaba in
2010 and served as the Vice President of Alibaba (China) Co., Ltd. and
the President of Data Committee. During his tenure with Alibaba, the
data team of Alibaba was awarded "China Excellent IT Team" in the
"Excellent Chinese CIO" selection in 2014. Mr. Herbert Chia was rated
as "China Top 10 Most Influential Big Data Entrepreneurs" by the
State Information Center of China in 2017 and garnered Outstanding
Achievement Award in 2021 Al Golden Goose Awards of China. He is

also a former Venture Partner of Sequoia Capital China.

Mr. Chia has been making significant contributions in helping to bring
China's big data industry to a new level and has actively promoted
Hong Kong to become the big data pilot city in The China Great Bay
Area and The Belt and Road. In Hong Kong, he serves as a co-opted
member of the Information Technology Services Committee of the
Hospital Authority of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, a non-
official member of the Education Commission and the Digital Economy
Development Committee, and Vice Chairman of GBA International

Information Technology Association.

Mr. Chia is the Adjunct Professor of the School of Management of
Zhejiang University and the Alibaba Business School, and the Adjunct
Associate Professor of The University of Hong Kong (Institute for
China Business). He is also the author of various best-selling books
including The Big Data and The Nature of Big Data. He holds an
Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) Degree from
Tsinghua University and an EMBA Degree from the Institut Européen d'
Administration des Affaires (INSEAD).
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Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina
Aged 52, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in December 2022, and is a member of the Nomination

Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Ms. Fung is the group managing director of Fung Retailing Group, a
non-executive director of Convenience Retail Asia Limited, a listed
public company in Hong Kong, and the chief executive officer of Asia
Retail Company Limited, a company of the Fung Group (a Hong Kong-
based multinational group which comprises major operating groups
engaging in trading, logistics, distribution and retailing) focusing on
supporting and growing international brands in Asia. She also serves
as the chair of Wellness Med Limited, a company under the Fung

Group that serves the growing global health and wellness market.

Ms. Fung is also the investment director of Fung Investment
Management Limited. She started working at the private investment
arm of the Fung Group in 2000 as investment manager running the
family's investments. Prior to joining the Fung Group, Ms. Fung worked
for Brown Brothers Harriman & Co in New York and Hong Kong until
1999. Ms. Fung is experienced in the retail industry and had held
positions in marketing and public relations for Salvatore Ferragamo
Asia, as well as in merchandising, sourcing and branding for Li & Fung
group in Hong Kong and the USA. She was named in the Business of
Fashion 500 in 2016, and Women's Wear Daily 10 of Tomorrow in 2017.

In Hong Kong, Ms. Fung is a member of the Major Sports Events
Committee of HKSAR, a member of the board of Alibaba Hong Kong
Entrepreneurs Fund, an advisor on Retailing and Fashion for NBA
Greater China, a member of the Executive Committee of the
International Advisory Council of the Faculty of Business and Economics
of the University of Hong Kong, an honorary member of the Advisory
Committee of the Roger King Center for Asian Family Business and
Family Office at Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
Business School, and a member of the advisory panel of IBM
Collaborative Innovative Program, the Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong-Europe Business Council and the Hong Kong-France Business
Council of Hong Kong Trade Development Council. Internationally, Ms.
Fung is a member of MclLaren Advisory Group, Harvard Global Advisory
Council, the board of trustees of The Camnegie Hall Corporation in New
York, and the co-chair of Asia Council of St. Paul's School in New
Hampshire, USA.

Ms. Fung is also an independent non-executive director of China
Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (appointed on 29 April 2024),

which is a listed public company in Hong Kong.

Ms. Fung graduated from Harvard University, with a Bachelor of Arts
Degree in Economics. She attended Harvard Business School's
Program for Global Leadership and its Business of Entertainment,

Media and Sports program afterwards.
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Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric
Aged 59, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in December 2023, and is chairman of the Sustainability

Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Tang has over 35 years of audit and assurance experience, with
clientele covering listed companies in Hong Kong, state owned
enterprises, MNCs and SEC registrants. He has in-depth experience in
consumer business industry and capital market transactions including
initial public offerings, re-organisations, and strategic acquisitions. Mr.
Tang was a Partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 1999 to 2022.
He had held different leadership roles during his tenure which
included National Leader of Consumer Business & Transportation
Industry, National Leader of Audit Learning, National Audit Risk
Leader, and National Professional Practice Director, and he had served
as a member of Deloitte China Governing Board. Mr. Tang has been
appointed as an advisor of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu since his

retirement from Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in 2022.

Mr. Tang currently serves as a member of the Financial Reporting
Review Panel of the Hong Kong Accounting and Financial Reporting
Council. He is a Fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants; a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants; and a Certified Internal Auditor of the Institute of

Internal Auditors.

Mr. Tang holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master of Science in Electronic
Commerce Degree and a Professional Diploma in Professional
Accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton

Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton is an executive Director and Joint
Company Secretary. His profile is set out on p.78 of this annual report

under the sub-section of "Executive Directors".

Mr. Lai Sau-Cheong, Simon

Aged 63, joined the Group in 2017, is Group General Counsel and Joint
Company Secretary. Mr. Simon Lai is also the Chief Legal Officer of
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited, a subsidiary of a substantial

shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Lai is admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Wales,
and New South Wales, Australia and has over 30 years of experience
in corporate, commercial and related regulatory practice. He was a
long-standing partner and later on, consultant, of a leading law firm
before joining the Group and has extensive experience on corporate
finance matters. Mr. Lai has also served on a number of public

appointments.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Annie Wong

Aged 60, joined the Group in 2023, is the Chief Operating Officer
responsible for the Group's commercial and business strategies, the
development of end-to-end value chain efficiencies and integration of
demand/ supply management and fulfillment. Ms. Wong has over 30
years of experience in luxury retail operations, and an impressive
range of expertise in management consulting, operations, and
executive leadership. She holds an Executive Master's Degree in
Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
She is also a Graduate Diamonds Gemologist of the Gemological

Institute of America.

Mr. Chan Yee-Pong, Alan

Aged 52, joined the Group in 2010, is the Chief Brand Officer responsible
for the branding and marketing functions of the Group. Mr. Chan has
around 30 years of experience in luxury brand management

and marketing.

Ms. Lui Yin-Ming, Theresa

Aged 52, joined the Group in 2022, is the Chief People Officer
responsible for the strategic direction of the Group's human resources
function, to ensure that right people strategies are in place to support
the long-term development of the Group. Ms. Lui is a seasoned HR

veteran in the retail industry and has over 25 years of experience.

Mr. Cheung Wang-Kwong, Patrick

Aged 35, joined the Group in 2022, is the Chief Digital Officer
responsible for technology, eCommerce, loyalty and data governance
functions of the Group, steering the enhancement of digital
experience and enterprise systems to drive sales growth and
maximise efficiency for the Group's development. Mr. Cheung has
extensive experience in deriving transformation roadmap, devising
digital transformation strategies and driving operational excellence

across China and globally.

Ms. Danita On
Aged 47, joined the Group in 2012, is the senior director of Investor

Relations and Corporate Communications of the Group, responsible
for maintaining effective communications with investors and media.
Ms. On has over 25 years of experience in auditing, management
consulting, equity research, asset management and investor relations.
She is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst.
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Mr. Wong Kim-Ming, Mark
Aged 62, joined the Group in 1986, is the director responsible for the

procurement planning and manufacturing management of diamonds
of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 35 years of experience in the

jewellery industry.

Mr. Cheng Ming-Chi, Tony
Aged 52, joined the Group in 1994, is the director responsible for the

procurement planning and management of gemstones such as jadeite,
colour stones and pearls for the Group. Mr. Cheng has around 30

years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Mr. Tam Chun-Wah, Daniel

Aged 61, joined the Group in 2011, is the assistant general manager
responsible for manufacturing technology transformation of the
Group. Mr. Tam has over 30 years of experience in jewellery

manufacturing with a focus on advanced technology application.

Mr. Lam Hung-Shing, Max
Aged 41, joined the Group in 2011, is the general manager responsible

for the creative design and development of jewellery products. Mr.
Lam holds an MA in Design, Innovation & Brand Management from
University for the Creative Arts, United Kingdom. He has over 20
years of experience in the jewellery industry, specializing in jewellery
design and strategic product innovation. Mr. Lam was awarded Hong
Kong Ten Outstanding Designer Award and was conferred Fellowship
and Chartered Manager by the Canadian Chartered Institute of
Business Administration. He has been a committee member of the

International Jewellery Designer Association since 2017.

Ms. Liu Po King
Aged 49, joined the group in 2006, is the general manager responsible

for scaling the Group's business outside of China as well as in travel
retail. Since 2015, she has been leading the Group's global expansion
across diverse markets spanning the ASEAN region, North America,
Japan, and Korea. Ms. Liu has over 18 years of experience in the
jewellery retail sector. She serves as the director of Training and

Learning of the Institute of Shopping Centre Management in Hong Kong.
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Ms. Yuan Jie

Aged 47, joined the Group in 2002, is the executive general manager
responsible for managing the Mainland China Management Center of
the Group, orchestrating the overall enterprise management in the
Mainland China. Ms. Yuan has over 20 years of experience in change
management, process efficiency optimisation, risk control, corporate

culture building and talent development.

Ms. Yang Xiao-Lin
Aged 44, joined the Group in 2004, is a general manager responsible for

the Group's financial management, strategic finance and shared service
center as well as leading the finance team in the Mainland China. Ms.
Yang has over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting, financial
management and risk management. Ms. Yang is a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEE MRS

OUR "4T" FOR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AT A SR [ 4T 5t

Corporate governance provides a framework within which the Board TRECIREFEHEIRKRNMARKEEFEBRER,
forms their decisions and builds the Group's businesses. Our "4T" HMREEEGI 4T RAESTEREBERNTER, X
principles for corporate governance guide the development of our FAREEEYEENRBEMEEE, ARoFEBRINER,
corporate governance practices, supporting the Group in better

achieving our strategic objectives towards sustainable growth and

development.

Implement transparent disclosures and constructive dialogues to foster genuine

'_Il'a‘nsparent mutual understanding with stakeholders
EifliER HiETA BEBERAMNRENEIMHE, ARRERSHENEETR

Embrace leaders with independent mindset, versatile expertise and business
Thoughtful acumen who steer our long-term pursuit for sustainable business growth and
: attainment of common values with stakeholders
SHEE AAAE HEREURE. HETENEXRNHUEFEREMNEMR, FTEEMRYE
ROFEREBFEBERNERFNENEREER

Truthful Uphold long-established culture of integrity to safeguard the fundamental
EEHE BT interests of stakeholders and build trusting relationships with them

H - BERAZBUMNHEXL, RERDEFRERNERKIEETBEEREF

Traceable Enhance accountability via institutionalised structures and measures to drive

better utilisation of resources and fulfilment of stakeholders' interests

HEME HiR0S i i L I RB AN S AR R R R, NEANERERMNEBERENE KNGS

OUR BOARD GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK AR

Board Structure + Board of directors + Responsibilities and main tasks
EEERIE FEG MEMESTIHE
+  Board committees
EFXEEE

Board Composition * Board diversity + Continuing professional development
EETHEN EFgZT HEEEERE

Board refreshment + Remuneration

EEREGEM i B

Director roles and functions

EFNAEfEEE
Board Operations + Board independence + Compliance and accountability
EERTEF EFFEUM SR E

-+ Communication and information support +  Evaluation

BB E M FTE
Shareholder Communications +Interactive engagement - Shareholder rights and other information
B R ENEIE & 0] 5 &1 B (& RERERFOEHMmE R
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BOARD STRUCTURE

E e

i

2 H

The Board

E5g

Nomination Remuneration Audit
Committee Committee Committee
REEEE sNEEE BENEEE

Board of directors

Responsible for steering the sustainable success of the Group by
overseeing the overall strategic direction, risk appetite and
directing and supervising its affairs.

Sets the Group's core values, corporate culture and adopts proper
standards to ensure that the Company operates with integrity and
being responsible to our shareholders and other stakeholders for
the Group's performance.

Establishes board committees to undertake governance duties as
specified in their respective terms of reference.

Sets out the list of reserved matters that are significant to the
interests of the shareholders for the Board's review and/ or
decision, such as approving results and dividends, transactions over
a specified threshold limit or which are subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules, matters involving conflict of interest related to

certain directors or which require to obtain shareholders' consent.

Nomination committee

Responsible for board nomination, diversity, succession plan,
independence assessment and continuing professional
development.

Conducts performance evaluation of the Board and the directors.

Remuneration committee

90

Determines remuneration for directors and senior management;
oversight on the Group's remuneration policy and structure,
incentive mechanisms and share schemes.

Advises on strategic issues related to organisation structure,

corporate culture, people development and succession pipeline.

Governance
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Strategy and
Transformation
Committee

REMNESET

Sustainability
Committee
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Audit committee
Oversight on financial statements, financial reporting systems,
corporate reports; and the appointment of auditor.
Oversight on risk management and internal control systems,
internal audit function, cyber-security and data governance;

compliance with Corporate Governance Code.

Sustainability committee
Oversight on sustainability strategy and performance,
stakeholders' feedbacks and sustainability reporting.
Oversight on sustainability risks and opportunities, review of

trends, major issues and policies related to sustainability.

Strategy and transformation committee
Assumes leadership and monitoring responsibilities in strategy and
corporate reforms, business operations, financial performance,
investment projects, corporate administration and compliance.
Being delegated with all the powers to act like a standing
committee of the Board to make decisions and report back to the
Board, except for matters reserved for the Board's decision or

other board committees which require INEDs' oversight.
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Main tasks of the board of directors

Area of focus

FY2024

ERENEE T

REHDE (Number of meetings EiEIXEL : 4) Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Strategy planning and Review on the medium to long-term goals and strategies v
execution st P E R B R0 R
RESRBNFOHAT Comment on the current corporate plan and financial budget v/ v
% BRI ASIE M BERE
Recewe the reports from the Strategy and Transformation Committee v v v
BIREBINNESEEHRSE
Business and financial Approve annual results and report, and recommend final dividend v
performance WEFEXENRSARERZRERE
ESGRIBIEES Approve interim results and report, and interim dividend v
HEPREENRSARPHRE
Review recent business development, industry trends and v v v
market outlook
RETIE AR RE. TREANTIGN=R
Receive the investor feedback report v
ERREENRERS
Corporate governance Receive the reports from the Nomination Committee, Remuneration 4 v 4
TEER Committee, Audit Committee and Sustainability Committee
ERNRESEE. FHEEE. SRSEENIURKENRSEEN
WS
Approve changes in board committee and board positions v
HEESCEERESTEHHKENEE
Approve granting of share awards v
HE T H AR 17 22 8
Review sustainability performance and approve the report v
R O A R R RIRAHEBR RS
Approve the proposed resolutions to put forward to the annual general v
meeting and the publication of related circular
HEETR 2 7 B SR E A K 00 2 58 IR 5% 52 A0 111 35 48 B i oR
Private meeting between Board chairman and INEDs v 4

EETIREBUFATESHNMMSH

During the year, the Board has increased attention on:

Business resilience and cost optimisation amid the market

uncertainties.

FRN, EFFERMINTEIR

5 B RO AY 718 1 LA FE #5710 15 & A B A B B T

Refining of brand identity and product strategies to enhance the - RAGMERNERRE, LAG@®KEKEEREMS

leading position of the Group in the jewellery market. SOEEE 1RV
Rationalisation of market development and management strategies BUHMEHERDEERIBILE RIhAREEET TS,
catering for different market segments in the Mainland market to LA T ZE R B’\]%%*ﬂ%ﬂ BE /1o

enhance the quality and profitability of POS.
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Main tasks of the nomination committee it

ZEBEHEETA

Area of focus FY2024
BEFE (Number of meetings & & IAEL : 2) Q1 Q3
Board performance Evaluate on the structure, delegation and memberships of Board committees v
assessment HEESSEBIRE. BEA TN EEN
BEEERIRTMG Evaluate on the roles, functions and performance of executive directors v
FEHITEFNMAE. BEEREY
Re-define the status, delegation and composition of Sustainability Committee 4
EMREHERRSEEHNEM. BENEN
Assess and confirm on the independence and time commitment of INEDs v
ST A SR XL AR AT E S BB I AR A B
Review and monitor the training and continuing professional development of directors and v
senior management
RERREFNSREBASHBEIRGESRER
Review the implementation of the mechanism to ensure independent views and input are v
available to the Board
MEREFTEIE BN E BT HIERME SN EmER
Board composition review Discuss on the board mix of competence and diversity in perspectives required by future 4
B EHAEMNRET strategic needs
FERRRE RS RESGMBRENESNS T B
Review the current board matrix, diversity objectives, and progress v
BT BRINESEEN. S BENEE
Board refreshment or Follow up and review the progress of board refreshment with respect to INEDs v v
succession MBUFATESHNESTEMFIF L IREN BT EE
ESEEMO AT Review and discuss on executive directors' future development and succession plans v
ST R0 57 o #AL 1T B BRI R AN AR A 51 2
Determine on the rotation and re-appointment of directors v
REBEFNMENENSE
Directors' nomination and Nomination and selection of directors and recommendation on the relevant appointment v v
appointment RENMESEREDBESE
EENRERESE Plan for induction programme for new directors v

MESHEIRE 5

During the year, the Nomination Committee has increased attention on:

Board independence and INED refreshment plan.

Management succession and development of a pipeline with
diversity of perspectives.

Revamp of the Sustainability Committee to separate the
governance function and management function and ensure the
proper discharge of board oversight responsibilities in respect of
strategy and performance, risk and opportunities and the reporting

related to sustainability.
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Main tasks of the remuneration committee

4

Area of focus FY2024
REHEE (Number of meetings B IR B : 2) Q1 Q4
Performance and rewards ~ +  Assess on the linkage between Company's performance and remuneration level for v
for executive directors and executive directors and senior management
senior management FERABIRFEATESNSREEA 85 B IKF 2 [ 685 B
HITEERSMEEAE - Determine the remuneration packages and annual adjustments for executive directors and v
BRI RO 42 @ senior management with reference to the Group's performance, remuneration strategy and
market competitiveness
SERKEFRGE. FHRBNTSERFINUNEENTEFRSREEA BHH TS
FOF = B
Consider and approve on the granting of share awards to executive directors and senior v
management, including but not limited to determination of the number of awards, vesting
period and performance target, with due regard to effective motivation and retention of
corporate leaders
REAYHMBAOREERBOAT, EEOMEARTESNSHRERASR B RN K
B, BEEFRREERBMEE. BEANENE R
Remuneration policy - Determine and supervise on the remuneration policy and structure respectively for v 4
and strategy directors and employees
i B ISR A 2R 8 FEEM BB E AR B 50 F DN BUR A 45 18
Determine and approve on the terms of share award scheme v
e T2 DL R AR 1 22 80 51 &1l B0 1% 5K
Review and approve the mechanism and metrics for short-term and long-term incentives v 4
i 5T RO AL AT HA K2 = HA 22 BN B0 1 AR A0 15 1R
Endorse the annual pay rise budget for frontline and back office staff with reference to v
market salary survey, the Company's performance and incentive strategy
S2EMGHFMAES. ROSIRBIOEBMRE, BMRAKLEHNE LNFRENFESR
Strategic development + Supervise on human resources strategies and action plans v
REG R B ANEIRREE ZITEEE
Review on the organisational structure, major changes in the management members, and v v

overall manpower statistics

RETARMIRIE. EBASNESHIMINER A NHTEUIE
During the year, the Remuneration Committee has increased attention on: FA, HWESEGERBAEIUTEIR .

Mechanism and metrics for both short-term and long-term - FEHAR REERNEH SR, ReEBIEmME,

incentives to enhance staff motivation.

- Corporate culture, talent development and pipeline building. - BENW. ATEREREITZYIEE,
Efficiency of organisation in terms of team structure and division of - EBREFE S B T 0 AR,

responsibilities.
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Main tasks of the audit committee FEREAR g EE T
Area of focus FY2024
REHE (Number of meetings & IXE : 3) Q1 Q3 Q4
Financial statements Receive the management's analysis on the business and financial review v v
LIPGEE B BN 1 J 5 S 65 A0 s [ RR B ) AT
Review the presentation and disclosures of the financial statements for the v v
Group's interim and annual results
i el I 6% [ o HA K2 F 2 SR G MRS SRR B 2 A0 IR 28
External auditor Comment on the annual audit plan v
ShEB 1% BB HEEEZTEARERR
Receive auditor's audit report, or interim review report, including the key v v
audit matters
PN SRSy PHEHRSE, AGEEEFEH
Private meeting with auditor v
B BB R 1T P G 5%
Review on the independence and objectivity, performance and fees of auditor, v
and recommend on their re-appointment
ERZEEMEITENEELE. RENERA, URESZEMSE
Review on the implementation of policy to regulate non-assurance services v v
provided by external auditor
TR 5T AR & I 8B 12 BUBM 12 111 IF 28 38 AR BUR 1) E Jiff
Review of auditor re-tendering policy v
1% 57 1% B BT BB HT B R BUR
Risk management and Receive risk management reports 4 v
controls RRERERRS
[ B B TR O3 Receive internal audit reports v v v/
BN E GRS
Receive anti-fraud reports v v v
RN SR S
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Area of focus

REHE FY2024 Q1 Q3 Q4
Corporate governance -+ Annual review on the effectiveness of risk management and internal control v
hEEB systems, reporting processes, and external and internal audit
FERSTAREENNBRERGENEYE. BRER, URIMEERZ
N BB & 1%
Annual review on the continuing connected transactions v
@R E N B B IE XX 5
Review the compliance with the Corporate Governance Code v
BREFREBTANETER
Annual review on the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders' v

communication policy

F 2 % 51 iR 7R 1 SR 0 8 i k2 B

Review the disclosures in the results announcements, interim and annual reports v v
(including Corporate Governance Report therein)

REFELS. PHRSRFR(AFHEHPHEREIGRS FIMKE

Strategic alignment - Receive the management review report on franchise business v v
RIEREG TRENA RN BR R A E BB EsT RS
Oversee the digital transformation, data governance and cybersecurity v v v
BEHFHEE, JReENRAEEE
Comment on the internal audit plan and adequacy of resources supporting the v
internal audit function
BRNBEZ BN FANBEABENERES TR
Comment on the work plans and resources of finance and governance functions v

R AR R )6 AL 0 TIF 3 BIF0 B R

During the year, the Audit Committee has increased attention on: FRN, ERTCETFABETIATESIE -

Performance and risk management of the franchise business in - MEERTEBAISERBERZ T XIEMERE

view of the significant expansion in the previous few years. B,
Re-alignment on the risk appetite and risk rating standard amid the - EEARIEREEY, TR R RR S E N E TR
changes in the external and internal environment. =,
Core systems upgrade, cloud migration and cybersecurity. - RINRBAR. EmBRREALT D,
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Main tasks of the sustainability committee

MRS EZE B e R T

Area of focus FY2024
REHE (Number of meetings B IR 8 : 2) Q1 Q4
Strategy and goals Oversee the sustainability strategic roadmap, goals and action plans v

REGEE IR

HEURFERRRIBBRE. BERITENE

Performance review and Review on the current status of the Group's sustainability development in "Craftsmanship, v
risk management Innovation & Technology", "Responsible Sourcing", "People Focused" and "Resource
KR R A R B 1R Efficiency & Carbon Reduction”
CIEEREREE] AR | [ SERE LT AARBK | R RREYE |50 £
RN
Review the benchmarking assessments in relation to sustainability indices rating and v
investors' expectations
REARTHFESRIEETALREZT HENEIRANT
Review and advise on the preparation works for compliance with new rules and government v
policies on climate risk management and related disclosures
L SR ) B 1 A% A B e B T AR A Rz IBURT BUR B 6 AR ME TR AT iR 5T b 14t
BR
Reporting Review the sustainability report (including the independent assurance statement therein), v
RS key metrics and the compliance with statutory requirements

BEHUHEXRRS(BBEEPNBIMEERN ). HEEEREFIESTER

Accountability

&

Review on the management committee structure in support of the effective execution of
sustainability strategy

B REESESTHRRIE, NZHoIFEERREBEIGLT

Review and update the terms of reference of the Sustainability Committee

e R EM O FEERES ST R EDE

During the year, the Sustainability Committee has increased attention on:

FN, IFEEREEGERAMIUTEIR

Proposal of a comprehensive sustainability strategy roadmap and
goals in alignment with the new mission of the Group.

Preparation for the compliance with enhanced climate-related
disclosure requirements proposed by the Stock Exchange.
Customers' perspectives and industry benchmarking on the

Group's sustainability strategies and initiatives.
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Main tasks of the strategy and transformation committee

Area of focus

SRS Rk 2R B B AR

REEE
Strategy Competition and market development strategy Supply chain strategy
SR B PN T I5 3 R RIS e 32 3R B8
Customer strategy and business model People and IT strategy
FRERIBFAOFEBREI AT R E LB R
Execution Business targets and progress tracking Organisation and management system
T B BIRAIE Z 18 HENEESE
Goals and reward system for the management Investment budget and appraisal
A 850 B AR A0 4% ) = KR ERE G
Monitoring Business alignment with risk appetite Compliance with laws and regulations
B FHRERIG B RATE BT IERAER
Efficiency in operations and use of resources Financial performance
EEA EIRE A E HI
Accountability Governance policy and practices Social and environmental impacts
i BB EERIAE G HENERYZ
Investors' perspectives Corporate culture and ethics
REZHAE EEIERE

98

Formulate market-driven and customer-focused strategies to
achieve performance targets and strategic goals endorsed by
the Board.

Organise broad-based engagement activities to align strategic
vision and encourage collaborations across functions through clear
annual plans and co-owned KPIs.

Hold monthly meetings to review the performance reports, monitor
the progress of strategy and reforms implementation, financial
budget and make timely adaptations.

Supervise on critical aspects of the business operations such as
strategic prioritisation, resource allocation and performance
measurement, as well as aligning various strategies on talent,
reward, culture, risk appetite and controls.

Set up and supervise on the sub-committees, which assist in the
implementation of corporate reforms, such as branding, product
supply chain, people development, digitalisation and sustainability.

Report back to the Board on the performance of the Group.

Governance
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BOARD COMPOSITION

Independence

Bt

;7m@
BUENTES

B INED B HITES
B ooHnaEs

56%

Board tenure

EFEEEIM

Average years of service
T 1R 55 F A

0-3 years £
4-6 years
7-9 years

memm QO

10 years or more & a¥ LA £
62%

The Board consists of 16 directors. During the year, Mr. Tang Ying-
Cheung, Eric joined the Board as an INED.

The Board has been orderly refreshed in the last couple of years to
bring new skills and perspectives to support the Group's strategy
and governance.

The Board considers that the current composition is suitable in
view of the balanced mix of board tenure and age group, and also

an appropriate level of INED and female representation.
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31%

Gender

TR

81%

5 8 Average age
38% FFE
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Bim655%
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3 Female directors
UMES

B Female &
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Our board diversity policy
Appropriate combination of competency and diversity of
perspectives in order to achieve the Company's long-term goal and
strategy.
Thorough considerations in board decision-making leverage on
broader insights and risk intelligence, as well as better understanding
on customers and stakeholders.
A broad concept of diversity attributable to various attributes:
— Personal skills and professional knowledge
— Regional and industry experience, reach to stakeholders

— Gender, age, length of service and other qualities

Our current board mix of knowledge and experience
Broad business exposures
Typical industries: retailing, manufacturing, property development
Emerging sectors serving for customers' lifestyle and enjoyments
Worldwide market: China, Europe and the United States
Connections with public bodies and community groups

Diverse professional knowledge
Retail, jewellery and brand development
Technology and data analytics
Corporate strategies and listed company governance

Capital market, finance and risk management

Our diversity objectives for the future Board
A broad spectrum of connections and intelligence across multiple
commercial fields.
Together contribute to high standards of corporate governance
and stakeholders' interests.
A balanced mix of age groups and board tenure.
Gender balance with at least 3 female directors as an immediate
target and a minimum 20% representation by 2025. This target will
be reviewed on an annual basis by the Board and the Nomination

Committee.

The Nomination Committee will give due regard to diversity
objectives, among other objective criteria, in the board candidate
search and selection process. The Board will also continue to take
opportunities to increase the proportion of female members among
the management over time as and when suitable candidates are
identified so as to develop a diversified pipeline of potential

successors to the Board.

As at 31 March 2024, the ratio of females to males in the senior
management was 50%:50% while in the overall workforce was
79%:21% (covering the Group's core and material business units in
Mainland China, and Hong Kong & Macau of China). The Group's
recruitment and promotion policy is underpinned by the principle of
appointment of the right person for the right position, in order to
achieve diversity across the workforce. The Board considers that the
current gender ratio of the workforce of the Group is appropriate for

its operations.
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Board refreshment i
Board nomination EETRAB

Nomination policy and process

Status update

B8 BERER B E

Stage 1 + Look into future challenges, opportunities, business model and strategic goals Reviewed in FY2024
Preparation IRET/RZEATHLEY . W8 . EBETARE BE 2024 T F E 2R 5T
H—IER +Identify desirable perspectives and experience an optimal Board requires Retail and China experience
T WAEREFERSORTUER FER P EIER

Evaluate the strengths and weaknesses of the current Board composition
G IR EEFE G AEN @55 IR

Set out requirements and objectives in searching for potential candidate(s)
il E B 0B 1 1R E A B SR A B IR

Propose the timeline for Board refreshment

EBREFGEMORREE

Technology and data application
o 5 A0 B 1R AR

Finance and governance

M RES
Gender and age diversity
PERIFDF 882 o1k

Stage 2 . Invite nomination of candidates from Board members or professional consultants
Nomination HEFENENEERBIRESEREA

RSB -+ Consider a broad range of candidates who are in or outside of the Board's circle
ﬁ% EZEEESEETNIMOREA

Meet with the shortlisted candidates and then evaluate on the suitability
HABRBREABHDINGEEEGE

Put forward the recommendation to the Board, including the role and function,
and committee membership

MEFERIMEBES, OFAEERE, UREEGHESH

Nomination in FY2024

2024 T F IR
Search for INED candidates either
excel in China retail industry or
with financial expertise
MEREPESTEENTKE
FAFOVBEIIIFRITES AE
Approached some candidates
and received their feedbacks

B BB > A 2R 15 i I K HLE (5]

Stage 3 - The Board considers the recommendation and decides on the appointment FY2024 appointed Mr. Tang Ying-
Appointment EFEERESBURESE Cheung, Eric
AR - Determine the communication and transition plan, as well as induction activities ~ 2024 MHFESESBUETE
St BB B0 HE, AR BUEIEE) Appointment letters
Publish an announcement, fulfil statutory filing requirements and issue letter SiTH )
: Onboard and re-election
of appointment [y
TUBE A SEAATE BRI S (E =
Induction activities
Propose the re-election of the newly appointed director in the next general By 1
meeting and make adequate disclosure on the respective nomination process ‘
AT ERRATESEENSEES, TNERRBEFFLHRIKE
Note:  Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric obtained legal advice on 23 November 2023 from a qualified firm of MiEE . ERIME LA 2023411 A 238 8 LA RIS 3.09D K FT 5 00 & B S & 6H 1T ELS
solicitors as referred to in 3.09D of the Listing Rules. He has confirmed he understood his EREER. MEERTHESFARLIEFNE T,
obligations as a director of the Company.
Management succession planning BIEEETE
Strategic talent identification and accelerated leadership BEEAAFANMRBEEAALERE — BMAFKLD
development — implemented a systematic and data-driven HFWEIBIAAHANER, HMEANEAFI1008
approach to the talent identification process, we have successfully AT RETRARESAE,

identified the Top 100 talents to assume critical leadership roles.

Driving sustainable succession planning — by identifying successors - HEBN O AR AR R ST Sl — Ho U o 5 A B B AR L AR T
for critical roles, we mitigate potential leadership gaps and sustain g, RIBEERREFMEER. RIAOKRBH AL

success by nurturing a pipeline of capable leaders who embody N\EEE, B EBEERE

our values, vision, and strategic direction.

A B JE WA 5 RV Do

Invest in talent management and differentiate us as an employer - MAAEBRER, SRMEGREERE — FM
of choice — by establishing the CTF Academy, offering unique Bl XEERR, REBEFNSRES, TRAF

growth opportunities and recognising their potential through ot ¥ Y 3 R AR

& omon 2 M PIEERE, FTIET — @R

targeted development initiatives, we create an environment that EAA2Z28® TFnEEMNBHENRR,

fosters talent engagement, job satisfaction, and loyalty.
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Director roles and functions

H

Y iy K fE

Number of directors INED Executive directors
EEHAH BUIERTESE WITES

Board of Directors EE 5 & 16 44% 56%
Nomination Committee 12 2L B & 7 71% 29%
Remuneration Committee i Bl & & & 7 71% 29%
Audit Committee BT B E 5 100% 0%
Sustainability Committee Ol B R T E T 4 75% 25%
Strategy and Transformation Committee SRIEFI N L EE T 5 0% 100%
The profile, role and function of each director, their relationship with BEFEE. BHEREE. RIEZENBRIARESS
each other and the membership of the board committees are set out BN EHMRE/2E85H,
on p.72 - 85.
Executive directors WITES

Chairman and Managing Director are Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
and Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent respectively. This segregation ensures
a balance of power and authority.

Chairman provides leadership for the Board and ensures that the
Board works effectively and sound corporate governance practices
and procedures are established.

Vice-chairmen Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy and Ms. Cheng
Chi-Man, Sonia are delegated by the Chairman to assist in leading
the Group's strategic direction and driving the corporate
transformation.

Managing Director leads the management team to execute the
strategy agreed by the Board and is responsible for the overall

business and operations of the Group.

Independent non-executive directors

Bring strategic insights to the Board driving for long-term value.
Exercise independent judgement on the strategy, performance and
risks of the Group.

Balance the interests of the Company, shareholders and stakeholders.
INEDs act as chairmen or members of major Board committees and
undertake detailed governance work under the respective terms of
reference.

Being appointed for a term of not more than three years, subject

to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles.
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Annual review on INEDs' independence

Based on the Nomination Committee's review of a number of factors:
Business relationship and transactions with the Group
Offices held in other companies, organisations and other
significant commitments
Cross-directorships or significant links with other directors through
involvement in other companies or bodies
Each INED's annual confirmation of independence received by
the Company
Years of service as INED

The Board is of the view that all INEDs are independent, free from any
business or other relationship which could materially interfere with
the exercise of their judgement. Detailed elaboration on the Board's
assessment are made in the circular to shareholders in respect of the

INEDs to be re-elected in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Notwithstanding Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina is the daughter of
Dr. Fung Kwok-King, Victor, a former INED who retired within 2 years
prior to her appointment date of 1 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee believes that this fact should not be perceived to have a
negative impact on the independence of Ms. Fung given her attributes
and Dr. Fung's satisfaction of all independence criteria under 3.13 of
the Listing Rules throughout his tenure as an INED. The Stock
Exchange has also agreed with the Company's point of view on the
independence of Ms. Fung. For further details, please refer to the

Company's announcement dated 24 November 2022.

Although Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric is a former partner of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu whose related entities have provided certain non-
audit services to the Group within 2 years prior to his appointment
date of 1 December 2023, the Nomination Committee believes that
his former role has no bearing on his independence as an INED given
the nature and materiality of these services provided to the Group
within the said 2-year period and that Mr. Tang was not involved in
these services. To the Company's best knowledge after making
relevant enquiries, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu did not provide any
audit, assurance, financial advisory or legal services of a material
amount to the persons referred to in Rule 3.13(3) of the Listing Rules
within the said 2-year period. Mr. Tang has satisfied all other
independence criteria set out in 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Stock
Exchange has also agreed with the Company's point of view on the
independence of Mr. Tang. For further details, please refer to the

Company's announcement dated 23 November 2023.
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Directors' time commitment

Based on assessment with reference to a number of factors:

Directors' confirmation

Meeting attendance rate

Preparation for and degree of participation in meetings

EFENRERA
ERELATZIRERETS -

Participation in continuing professional development to keep

abreast of knowledge relevant to the directors' duties

The Nomination Committee is of the view that all directors, including

INEDs, have given sufficient time and attention to the Company's VI,

affairs.

o s

EE TS

GRNEFRIDSEE
SHFESRTRIARGEEFH S8 0005

RESEERA, cREF(UEBUFNTES )EH

A BRI E A T 7 B B0 05 R A0 BT o

Number of meetings attended/ eligible to attend for FY2024

2024 M EEHE/ GERHRTERY

Annual Continuing
General Board Nomination ~ Remuneration Audit  Sustainability profi |
Meeting Meeting Committee Committee Committee Committee  development
MEFARR
RRBFRE EFEEE REEEE HHEEE EREEE GEHE REZRER
Executive Directors HITES

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry PrRAHEL 11 4/4 2/2 2/2 - - v/
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy BEEkE 171 4/4 2/2 - - 11 v
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia BEER L 1/ 4/4 - 2/2 - il v/
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent HRELE 1/1 4/4 - - - 2/2 v/
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian EDEE L 11 4/4 - - - - v/
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson BIRERE 1/1 4/4 - - - - J/
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton BIREELE 11 4/4 - - - - v/
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter BEREE N 4/4 - - - - v/
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiRALE 11 4/4 - - - 1/1 v/

Independent Non-executive Directors BUENTES
Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon BTt 1/1 4/4 - 2/2 3/3 - v/
Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey 5t 1/1 4/4 2/2 2/2 3/3 - v/
Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond @t /1 4/4 2/2 2/2 3/3 - v/
Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily PEELT N 4/4 2/2 2/2 - 2/2 v/
Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert mELE 1/1 4/4 2/2 - 3/3 2/2 v/
Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina mER T 1l 4/4 2/2 2/2 - - v/
Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric* WOELE" - 1/1 - - 11 1/1 v/

Note: Bt St -
v All incumbent directors have submitted their training records for the year, showing that each of them v Z2REFSEFERIAFENEINICZE, HPRRSASEKQSENE 105 GHH

has fulfilled the training requirement by participating in the activities on p.105 organised by the Company.
# Appointed to the Board with effect from 1 December 2023
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Continuing professional development

Align knowledge and experience acquisition with a view to driving
performance towards our strategic goals and exercising critical
oversight on risk and performance.

Sharpen the strategic vision and competency in embracing the era
of innovation and disruption.

Foster a Board culture of ongoing learning and knowledge sharing.

Our approach to ongoing learning

Organise Board seminars, management forums and workshops on
themes relevant for propelling the business priorities, where our
leaders can interact with inspirational guest speakers.

Arrange on-site visits to explore on the competitive edges of other
advanced organisations.

Custom-made newsletters sharing articles and videos related to
the Board's hot topics.

Conduct surveys for the Nomination Committee to understand
learning needs of each director and analyse the directors' training

records to prioritise the Board education activities.

Onboarding induction

- Assist incoming directors to have a proper understanding on the
business and operations, strategies and competitive environment
of the Group, and directors' duties.

Help the new directors to get an understanding of the Board
culture and corporate culture.

Efficient and tailor-made on needs, depending on their Board roles,
expertise and experience, enabling them to make contributions as
early as possible to the Board, particularly on providing advice on

the strategies.

Induction activities guide

Briefing sessions.

Networking luncheon with other Board members and management
presentation on selected topics relating to potential contribution
expected from the new director.

Meet with our management teams and visit our facilities to
understand the Group's existing plans and needs.

Online resources centre for directors:

— Business model and strategies

— Industry trends and market profiles

— Business and financial performance

— Statutory duties and responsibilities of directors

— Corporate governance policies

Invite the new director to share on selected topic relating to

his/ her expertise topic in a Board and management seminar.
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Remuneration

Put in place a well-designed incentive system to attract, motivate
and retain talented corporate leaders in order to support the
achievement of long- and short-term strategic goals of the Group
as well as to promote value creation for the benefit of
the shareholders.

Offer fair and competitive level of rewards to ensure comparability
with the market competing for talents with similar leadership

qualities.

W

P

et T EHREIGIE, ARSI BUEADEE £ B 7T 5 50
ESRGE AT, s 55 N ER B AY & B A0 X8 B R 1S
BiR, URARREIAN @S HESNEEIS,

REATHNREBIFNNER, BRETSRSEFEEE
ERERNOAAE, HFEFOLHE,

Executive directors HITES

Fixed portion  Salaries, benefits and pension + Director's fee

& & 8B 53 HEX#HE. @AMNRIRE EEFoka

Variable portion Short-term incentives (STI) Long-term incentives (LTI)
FENE REAZE N

o HA 22
* Link to achievement level of the Group's annual
business performance targets
BRI 65 [ ) 4F JE 32 1 4B 3 B R X a2 A = B A
+ Payable in cash

LAIR & 57 ft

+ Link to achievement level of the Group's 3-year
business performance targets
ERIER B = FF SR AR A S0 B IR B4 12 A 22 i 84

+ Payable in a combination of cash and share awards

LA A0 R 10 22 BN B0 AR & T TUS2 A

* Pre-set Group performance parameters and numerical targets approved by the Board
HEFTHFNNERERGUEEERNERHT

+ Progressive payout ratio reference to performance achievement level to incentivise outstanding performance
132 BRAE U AY R E IR 18 B SR B S AT EE B, LA B R IR

+  Minimum threshold set for achievement level of performance parameters and maximum payment limit
RERIEFRENZFSTRERME, RESZTIRE

Incentive-based, with a significant portion of the variable portion
correlated with the short-term profitability and long-term value of
the Company. Targeted remuneration structure consists of about
25% basic salaries, 25% STl and 50% LTI.

Alignment of their rewards with the performance of the Company
and interests of its shareholders.

Determined by the Remuneration Committee.

L

BRI, AESLHAEZFENB RN SHIEE
NENNEHEEHA, BRFMGRBIEH25%E
INFRE . 25% G MR 2 50% REAZEREN .

77 At 1P B¢) 252 ) B 7K 2 B 2 3R RO AR SR 2 #5840 o

BHMSEEERE,

TEHITES

Independent non-executive directors

Fixed portion

& xE & 53

» Director's fee
EE2kn

(Remark: Starting from FY2023, the remuneration of INEDs comprised fixed portion only in order to strengthen the independent roles of INEDs.)
(fiest : B2023 WU ER, RIMBBUFATESHNBUAC, BUFNTESHFIMHROSEESN. )

RIESENFHFMIRSINEEEBR Y EGERNEIL

Offer appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain high
calibre directors with sufficient governance experience and
independence in thinking.

Proportionate to the time commitment and workloads of Board

BENBRESE,

HEHRKREFSESTREFBRANIIFEMNIELL,

committees they serve.

Benchmarked against market practice, according to their roles,

WREAR. SENFERARMGEG RO,

responsibilities and time commitment.

Determined by the Board, after discussions in the Remuneration

Committee.

More details on directors' remuneration for FY2024 are available on
p.200 of this annual report.
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BOARD OPERATIONS

Board independence

- CpLE(E
e ol A

The Board has established the following mechanisms to enhance EFTRUNTHAERBIFEATESNARD, B
the role of INEDs in order to obtain independent views and input BNEBUHBNE R,

from them.

Composition of the Board and
board committees
EFEENEFTEGHEMN

INEDs represents at least 1/3 of the Board
BUFNTESLEFEELI =N —

INEDs are appointed to board committees as far as practicable
HOURSERITFATEFTNIAEZESTEEE

Independence assessment upon
nomination and annual reviews
12 5 12 B8 XL A 1 K2
FE®ET

Strictly adhere to the nomination policy and the independence assessment criteria with regard to
the nomination and appointment of INEDs

BIEETARRS RS EBEIIFAITERFIRE BURRE TG 4R

Assess suitability of director candidates objectively based on their qualification and time
commitment, the Board's composition, skill matrix, the list of selection criteria, nomination policy
and the board diversity policy

IREEFAZNEFERRAGE. EFEHEN. REHEHS. BEERNEE. RIBRE
EFGSECR, SHHUEFARREGTE

Assess annually by the Nomination Committee on the independence of all INEDs to ensure that
they can continually exercise independent judgement, and also each director's time commitment to
the Company's affairs

RESEGEFNOMBEBEIIFNTESINELY, BEREFUFETEBEIAE, LA
ISE= B S PINANETE SRR SEE ES PN

INEDs' remuneration

BRI TE B R

INEDs receive fixed fees for their role, no equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to INEDs as this may lead to bias in their decision-making and compromise
their objectivity and independence

BUFATESHEEBICNEERNE, A0 EE T 5 4SS0 B A0 DR R % 2 08 60
&, RNEFEHNHERKRBRILZELSEHENE I

Remuneration of INEDs is determined by the Board and subject to a regular review mechanism to
commensurate with their responsibilities and workload

BUFATESNHWHESERETE, BATHRSANREBSN TFSEHE

Board decision making
BEBFFHRRK

INEDs are entitled to seek further information and documentation from the management on the
matters to be discussed at board meetings. To facilitate proper discharge of their duties, they are
entitled to seek assistance from the Company Secretary and, where necessary, independent advice
from external professional advisers at the Company's expense
BUFATESERINESTEEZ LA YIRNSFEOEEBERINE—TER R,
AOBESERITHES, WEIMEQSIMWME = KI5 B R S 056 9 5B 25 5% 5 = 5808 11
BR, EHARASKRE

The chairman of the Board annually hold meetings with INEDs without the presence of other
directors to discuss major issues and any concerns

EFEEREGFREEMESAEGRNBER TREIFATESTETEH, UTREESH
18 % 1 fol ¢ i

Conflict management
e

Declaration of any actual and potential conflicts between their personal interests and duties as

an INED

BRBANGZRFABIIFATESNES 2 BHREMERRZBETESR

Abstain from voting on any board resolution approving any contract or arrangement in which such
director or any of his/ her close associates has a material interest
WEAMEZESFYEONEEREHBAREAEARTHEOGHATTHRENESTEIR

R R
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Communication and information support

Board communication

Focus the Board's time and dialogues on key aspects of strategy,
risk and performance.

Enable meeting efficiency with high-quality information.

Make sure the questions raised or matters arising from meetings
are followed up.

Arrange private session between Board chairman and INEDs.

Provide prompt assistance and advice by the company secretary.

Meeting scheduling and agenda planning

Schedule meeting dates and provisional agenda one year in
advance, in line with the annual corporate planning and reporting
cycle, particularly for items requiring Board approval.

Coordinate the Board and committee meetings to pursue the
strategic goals altogether and reflect on the forward meeting plans.
Reallocate the Board's time between strategy, operational
performance and governance and compliance matters according to
the Board priorities changing over time.

Include outward and forward looking agenda items for the Board
to chart the course ahead, and encourage interactions and
insights.

Board paper preparation

Search for broad-based information that is most relevant and
valuable to the current decision or action that needs to be taken
by the Board.

Being concise and focused on priorities, objectives and the
analytics based on facts.

Set out relevant considerations and implications in the meeting
papers that the Board should be aware of.

Make it clear on what action or input is needed from the Board.
Distribute Board papers early enough for directors to consider the
matters thoroughly before the meetings.

Provide access to the current and the past Board papers and

minutes record via Board meeting apps.
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Information updates between Board meetings

Monthly updates include:

- Consolidated financial summary against budget

- Media reports about the economic trends, peers, industry,
consumer behaviour, etc.

- Corporate bulletin about our key events, milestones
or achievements

Quarterly updates on the operational performance with

management analysis.

Knowledge about the future of our business and market, emerging

strategic, risk and governance issues, more details on p.105 about

the "continuing professional development".

Compliance and accountability

The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, primarily the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance; and for developing,
reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance, the code of conduct and compliance manual

applicable to directors and employees.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company's corporate governance practices are discussed in this
"Corporate Governance Report". During the year ended
31 March 2024, the Company was in full compliance with all applicable
principles and code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the

"CG Code") as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

Model Code and relevant employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code") as set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules regarding the securities transactions by all the directors
and those employees who are likely to come across inside information
because of their duties. Having made specific enquiry of all our
directors and relevant employees, they confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
and the Company's code of conduct during FY2024.
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Inside information disclosure
The Company has established its policy for inside information
disclosures as well as its internal controls on the reporting and

monitoring systems.

Formal escalation path of material information

Material matters concerning the business, finance and operations
are escalated to the Strategy and Transformation Committee in a
timely manner for them to judge whether inside information exists
and an announcement is required.

Investor Relations and Corporate Communications Department
assists the Board to monitor market signals, including investors'
feedback, share price movements, media and analyst reports, etc.
to see whether a material gap exists between the market

expectation and the Company's real situation.

Controls on the sources of information and the
communication channels
Information used for investor meetings and conferences should be
consistent with published corporate announcements and reports.
Only designated executive directors, the investor relations and
corporate communications team and authorised personnel are
authorised to speak to or hold meetings with investors or media
on behalf of the Company.
Code of practices for investor communications:
- Set out a quiet period to refrain from investor relations
activities before results announcement
- Prepare scripts and Q&As to manage the information released
to the public
- Obtain approval from the Board on the results presentation materials
- Keep meeting or conference attendance notes and call logs for

future reference

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group. The directors
were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. Please see the section headed
"Independent Auditor's Report" on p.160 - 167.
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Risk management and internal control

Risk is defined as a potential action, event or circumstance that could
impact the Company's ability, favourably or unfavourably, to meet its
strategic goals. The Group adopts a holistic risk management and
internal control framework to proactively manage risks, in line with
the commitment to deliver sustainable value. The Audit Committee
has reviewed and was satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy
of our risk management and internal control systems. Further details
are included under the section headed "Risk Management Report" on

p.120 - 144 in this annual report.

Independence of external auditor

The Audit Committee has reviewed and was satisfied with the
external auditor's independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the
audit process. The external auditor may provide certain non-audit
services to the Group given that these do not involve any
management or decision making functions for and on behalf of the
Group; do not perform any self-assessments; and do not act in an
advocacy role for the Group and all approved non-audit services shall

be approved by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration of external auditor

The remuneration paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated

firms for services rendered is listed as follows:
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FY2024 FY2023

Types of services HK$ million HK$ million
PR 5 KR B BEET BEET
Audit and related services' B ISEEE N R 8.1 7.0
Non-audit services? IETEIZ ARG 2 383 25
1.4 95

1. Audit related services comprise review services on interim results, continuing connected transactions
and tax compliance service

2. Non-audit services comprise cybersecurity and security operations centre service and other IT related
services provided to the Group. None of these services provided compromises the independence as
auditor, in terms of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants, and were reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.
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Evaluation a1

Area of focus Purpose and approach Information source
REHE BiFFIat EHIE Y

Board process - Get the right information for the Board, and make the best use of its time - Survey
BEEERER REFGWERGBEN, WEMBHERRH B&EhsE

Obtain feedbacks for the company secretary to improve on the information
support, meeting agenda setting and time allocation

BRATMEERNREER, UNBENXE. QRBHERERFHENE
Comprehensive review to be carried out when there are major changes in strategy
and risk landscape, or Board composition

EREAOE R, VESSTHEHNBIRRXGHFETEERE
Ongoing review based on observation and feedback for the last meeting
BERE-RGHRNBRIOREERFERE
Board structure - Appropriate allocation of responsibilities between the Board and various board - Benchmarking
EEERE committees to oversee all critical areas of governance FIEH R

AESENRESSEGZHBERNRERE, UREMAEREBHNEGHE
Well-defined delegation and reporting obligation between the Board and the management
HiERTESTREEB BIEERRSSE

Annual review by the Nomination Committee

HREEEEBFRE

Board composition - Appropriate board mix of competency and diversity of perspectives in order to - Survey

EFgHN achieve the Company's long-term goal and strategy BEhE
EFTOENENNZ B AN, LAENNE BRI BZEMNRE - Benchmarking
Annual review by the Nomination Committee HIZW 5T
HRBESEEGFmE

Director performance  + Performance of executive directors in the achievement of strategic goals, -+ Benchmarking

EEE 8! performance targets and financial returns HIER R

HOTESFHESRBER. GUBRNVBORAIRER

INEDs' time commitment, contribution and independence
BITFNTESFHEBRA. SRA0BIIMNT

Annual review by the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee

HHEWEEGNREESEGTF R

Director development  +  Continuously refresh the knowledge and vision of directors to make sure that they +  Survey
EETE stay ahead in the changing environment and challenges in the market BENE
FEEMEFNNENRE, BREANESNRE0MNGIE PP DRE

Review the knowledge needs of directors and design appropriate training programmes
IRsT EF A0 E H SN RS @IS EH &l
Annual review by the Nomination Committee

HiEEEE@E8FRE

Board leadership - Private session held at least once a year between INEDs and chairman of - INEDs' feedback

and strategies the Board B AFATEEHIR
EETMRERTN BUFATESHEFSEEIRFEFEORIT-RMAMER Sh=ac)

R BE - Open agenda discussion on matters of concern of the Group

FREKBEBIESEEETIFRAIBEN S

May cover a wide range of topics, such as the Group's strategies, leadership of
the Board, performance of the management, etc.

OREEZNSE, GINARKERRIE. EFREERT]. EEBENXRES
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SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS

A shareholders communication policy, which is available on the Group
website, sets out the key principles and practices for an effective
communication and engagement with shareholders and the
investment community for them to make an informed investment

decisions and exercise shareholders' rights in an informed manner.

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders and the investment
community are provided with two-way communication channels to
understand the Group's performance, strategies and prospects; and
also to express their views to our management and the Board on

various matters affecting the Group.

The Audit Committee reviewed and was satisfied with the
implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders communication
policy during the year after the annual assessment based on a number
of factors:

Quality and timeliness of disclosures

Frequency of two-way investors communication

Convenience of communication channels or information platforms
Participation of the seasoned and well-trained management
Clarity of investors' understanding of the Group's strategies and
prospects

Reliability of performance guidance set by the management
Management's responses to the propositions of investors,
especially about corporate governance issues or the protection of
minority's interests

Compliance with obligations to handle or disclose inside

information
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Interactive engagement

We adhere to the principles of providing timely, transparent and
effective disclosures with the aim of keeping the market regularly
informed of the Group's performance and prospects.

We welcome a two-way dialogue with capital market stakeholders
which include our valued shareholders to learn of market's views,
correct misperceptions, if any, and allow us an opportunity to
share a comprehensive overview of our business through
management's perspectives. This includes our views and
approaches towards growth and development as well as market
outlook. Our dedicated Investor Relations and Corporate
Communications team is fully committed to maintaining an open
and constructive dialogue with our stakeholders, and convey
timely corporate information to a diverse range of stakeholders,

including investors, media and the general public.

To ensure our stakeholders are well-informed about our business
and strategies, we hosted online and offline activities, including
post-results briefings, non-deal roadshows, visits to our production
sites and brick and mortar stores, as well as launch events of our
key collections. Our senior management also took an active role in
conducting regular virtual and physical meetings with institutional
investors and attending media interviews. These engagements
facilitate an open and constructive dialogue, as well as
comprehensive updates to our stakeholders, ensuring transparency

and effective communication.
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We value feedback from the investment community. Our multiple
channels of communication and engagement help deepen our
understanding of their concerns and drive effective communications.
Key investors' concerns included the rationale of our retail network
management strategy, impact from macro-economic uncertainties,

progress and goals of our five strategic priorities, etc.

As part of best practice, we are continuously reviewing the depth
and breadth of our disclosure to enhance the quality and content
across our investor relations collaterals. This will help with
educating the investment community to better appreciate our
corporate narratives and investment proposition. Our commitment
to investor relations best practices and guidelines is also
demonstrated through our pledge to the Hong Kong Investor

Relations Association IR Pledge Program since 2021.

The Group is a constituent of key indices, including Hang Seng
Index, MSCI China Index, Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability
Index, Dow Jones Sustainability Asia Pacific Index and FTSE4Good
Developed Index. The Group has also been granted an 'A' rating (on
a scale of AAA-CCC) in the MSCI Rating Assessment and
membership of the "Sustainability Yearbook (China) 2023" of S&P

Global. These recognise our efforts on ESG.

In FY2024, the Group received various accolades in recognition of
our relentless effort in corporate governance and investor relations.

Please refer to Major Awards and Recognitions on p.8 — 11.
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Meetings by investor event in FY2024
2024 FEEHR(HREFTEHNNE)

44%

20%

Summary of investor relations activities in FY2024

2024 T EEREERF TS

One-on-one and group meetings

—H-REEEES

23]

Non-deal roadshows

EZZBIE

19

Meeting and conference call
EHERETEE

Investor conference
REEHAE

Non-deal roadshow
AR

C-level participation rate !

44%

Investor conferences

RESEHAE

10

1. Ininvestor conference and non-deal roadshow meetings
REREENAERIFZIABRPHEH

Major investor conferences that we participated in FY2024 are set out below:
[R2024MFES R XEREEGH !

JUNE 2023
2023%6H

Guotai Junan Securities Conference

ERESREENAE

116  Governance
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SEPTEMBER 2023
2023%9H

Nomura China Investor Forum 2023

FNREEHTE

Citi's 2023 GEMS Conference
HEREEHTE

Jefferies 4t Asia Forum
EhREEHE

30t CITIC CLSA Flagship Investors' Forum
PEERREEHIE

BofA Chinese Luxury & Consumer Trip
EZRBREEMAE

Goldman Sachs China+ Conference
EEREEHRTE

DECEMBER 2023
2023%12AH

Citi's Global Consumer Conference
HEREEHAE

MARCH 2024
2024%3AH

GF Securities Conference

EHAFEREERAE

Jefferies 5% Asia Forum
ERREEHE
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BXBHREREARAE



Multiple channels of communication and engagement ZRENBEETEH

Channels Ej#

Analyst and media results

conferences

SAMERRESRME

Held analyst and press conferences for interim and annual results.
HOPHREFEENNITERMERLES

Hosted conference calls on announcements of quarterly key operational data
RTEFEIEEEHELSHENEFTEZH

Announcements, presentations and webcasts are available on the Group website

FEHAS. BRAMMBREHFRESEREG

Annual general meeting

("AGM")
RRAEXS

Held face-to-face communication with shareholders in AGM

R RIEFXE HERRRS

The Board and external auditors presented to answer the questions raised by shareholders
EE TR INEPIZEED HJE S 55 LA [0 FE AR SRR

Detailed explanation for each proposed resolution in the circular, with high approval rate on
resolutions passed

REBHFHTELRRZAS, LERESZ@ B

Active engagement
with analysts

Organised visits to our production facilities and POS for investors in FY2024
2024 MM FECTHIRESZINFHMAEERBRTEER

;;\%;%eg%i;ﬁ% Invited investors to the launch events of our key product collections
é@ﬁﬂl B IREE 2 H M E S E @ H)EE
Arranged small group or one-on-one gatherings with prominent media in FY2024
2024 FE G HRESHBRIF/N\E —H—-RE
Handled enquires from investors. Received around 50 media interviews and enquires
RIEREEEN, HEASOERIGENM RS
Over 20 research analysts cover our Company in their reports on a regular basis
B20BHAANTEMRA S EMRBERRS
Corporate Announcements, annual and interim reports, results presentations and press releases
;ggg NG 2ERPHRSE . FEMMAONARE

Quarterly voluntary announcements of key operational data

SN EPNGES RIS §

Investor meetings,
conferences

and non-deal
roadshows
BEEEE.

eI EMAEZ A BIE

Stayed connected with investors around the world through both virtual and physical events
in FY2024

[R2024 IR IERR ERE T SRR SMEFRE S RITHE

Executive directors responsible for different business areas attended meetings to address
investors' concerns

BEARFRBEENNTESHRESRNERREERTNEIR

Group website

SEAE

Updated on results, quarterly announcements and corporate activities
EHMEELNRE. TEASRERTHNEN
Enriched content to demonstrate the Group's business initiatives

2HEENST UNRRERENRERE

Electronic communication

BFE

Email alert service

BHE IR AR

Email to Investor Relations and Corporate Communications team: ir@chowtaifook.com (for
investors); media@chowtaifook.com (for media)

REERERTEENEENE N EE .

ir@chowtaifook.com( &% ); media@chowtaifook.com( )
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Shareholder rights and other information
Shareholder(s) are entitled by the Articles and are also encouraged to
participate in the Company's general meetings or appoint proxies to

attend and vote.

Request to convene a general meeting and put forward
proposals

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the Company's paid-up
capital may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and put forward proposals. The objectives of the meeting
must be stated in the related requisition signed and deposited with
our company secretary at the Company's headquarters at 33/F, New
World Tower, 16-18 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong.

Nomination of director for election

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as director
in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate must be stated
in a nomination notice signed by such shareholder and deposited
together with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate to our
company secretary at the Company's headquarters or at our Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar (Tricor Investor Services Limited, 17/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong) of the
Company. The notice should be given at least seven days prior to the

date of such general meeting.

Making enquiries
Email to Investor Relations and Corporate Communications

Department and the Board at ir@chowtaifook.com.

Dividend policy
Strikes a balance between making an efficient use of capital to
strengthen our business development and rewarding our
shareholders with a participation in the Company's profits.
No pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
Factors considered by the Board in determining the amount and
form of dividend:
- the Group's cash flows and financial position
- its earnings capacity and the economic outlook
- its business development plans and capital requirements etc.
Usually declares dividends twice a year, in the absence of special

circumstances.
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Full year dividend payout ratio ™
EEREE ™

100.0%

92.9%

90.0%

80.0%

70.0%

60.0%

50.0%

40.0%

30.0%

20.0%

10.0%

0.0%

—®— Full year dividend payout ratio
FHFIREE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

1. Special dividend excluded

Constitutional documents

No change during the year.

Market capitalisation

Approximately HK$115.3 billion as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023:
HK$155.8 billion), based on the total number of 9,987,736,800 issued
shares and the closing price of HK$11.54 per share.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this annual report, the prescribed public float of not less
than 10.7% has been maintained, which is a lower minimum percentage
of public float accepted at the discretion of the Stock Exchange. On the
basis that Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited held approximately 72.48% of
the total issued shares in the Company (based on the disclosure of
interests and the number of repurchased and cancelled shares of the
Company available on the Stock Exchange's website as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report), the public float
amounted to not more than approximately 27.52% of the total number

of issued shares in the Company.

*For the year ended 31 March
THEIHIIHLEFE
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RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT

EREEHRS

The Board acknowledges the importance of adequate and effective
risk management and internal control systems which assist them in
understanding the Group's risk profile, allocating resources to manage
key risks and making risk-reward optimised business decisions for

business planning.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT ("ERM”)
FRAMEWORK

ERM is a much-needed core competency and essential tool that helps
the Group continually creates, sustains, and delivers stakeholder
value. We believe a structured approach and framework around ERM-
related processes and governance are critical to the success of our
ERM. Our ERM Framework is tailored to the circumstances and

business context of the Group, and comprises the following elements:
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ERM FRAMEWORK OVERSIGHT

Risk culture & risk strategy
Our risk culture and risk strategy provide the overall direction and
consistent practices within the Group to achieve below objectives:

Balance business risks and returns and support risk-based decision-
making.

Facilitate the achievements of the Group's strategic goals through
better identification of sustainability-related opportunities
and threats.

Develop a common understanding of risk across different business
functions to manage risk cost-effectively on an enterprise-wide basis.

Commit to integrity, business ethics, and legal compliance.

We have a strong risk culture, shaped by leadership, effective
communication and appropriate policies and guidelines. We also
adopt regular steps to sustain our risk culture.

Risk appetite

On keeping with the Group's risk culture, and to reinforce the common
understanding of risk management and consistent risk assessment
practices across the Group, we define our risk appetite in a qualitative
manner. We only accept reasonable and manageable risks that are in
line with our strategy and capabilities. Taking account of concerns to
the Group's sustainable development by internal and external
stakeholders, our risk assessment tool enables the Group to fully
consider the financial and non-financial implications in the context of

its risk appetite.

Leadership 48& &

- Involve sustainability considerations and operational risk
management topics in business plans and business meeting agenda
e RIS
AR EEEE

- Review and validate the ERM Framework regularly and lead by example
to demonstrate the right tone at the top
FHEENREBCFREREEER, HIASFRI, &I IEHE K @b
EIRE

Internal Communication A £B i i

- Conduct workshops to promote the risk culture
SR 915 B 5 LA HE TS TR PR S 4K

- Set clear escalation procedure for reporting risk issues
oL | Bk 35 5 i X BF e 1) [ SR A o

- Set up grievance and whistleblowing channels to report
suspected fraud and misconduct

RUBFRERRE, NERRIBRFRERAETH

Strong Risk Culture
T £ B9 L B S Ak

Policies and Standards K% £0 £ |

- Establish Code of Conduct, Anti-Fraud Policy, Whistleblowing Policy,

Anti-Money Laundering Policy, and Best Practice Principles for
Suppliers to reinforce our expected ethical values and conduct

Tl E LRSI REFMBUR. BRIRBUR. R TR EBUR R HER & £
BERE, MRS EEERST
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Risk governance model JE i 4 ¥ R Y
Our risk governance model is designed to assist the Board of FHMERECELEERNESENESTSEGHE
Directors and Board Committees to carry out ongoing oversight and RENRRYMNERAREERANNYL, ZEUFTII
monitoring on the effectiveness of our ERM system. The model defines B e B Gl B B2 D 2R B, LAID 5 7N 6k () 2 /= B 55 B A
clear risk roles and structure to reinforce the risk-related B ERERE,

accountability and transparency across the Group.

We believe a well-coordinated integration of all the resources and FPHMBERANRGIAXITELS. BURE. AR
expertise necessary to support the governance, assurance of ERIGHNEIRE EHRAOH, ENKEEAHIENE
performance, risk and compliance activities is critical for the Group to BREERBEPENFFEER, BRMUGESHAIKEN
meet its business objectives in the ever-changing business environment B EMANEIR, SR 7 oy B 3 A0 17 58 # 0 sa
and regulatory landscape. An integrated approach is adopted among J\ bR E IR T A,

resources from 3 lines of defence within the Group to manage and

enhance risk management initiatives with adequate facilitation and

coordination.

Board of Directors

EEE

I Report & I Assurance R

+~
©
.Em
o it
>
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Strategy and Audit Committee

Transformation Committee

REEFINESSE BEREEE

I Report ¥RE I Report R

Managing Director Report $es

EEAgE
c Report ¥R I
TS
6 & & | |
BER L
= g &\ First Line of Defence Second Line of Defence Third Line of Defence
25 g E—EHR E-EHR E=EMR
o
o
OE Facilitation Group level SKE/EMH: Coordination
(Bt Corporate GSXEE‘ZCE Department 7@ Internal Audit and
Risk Owners IEsREIan Whistleblowing
JEPREIEEEA Segment level £ EBEA: Officer
Executive Office NEBEZ R ERER
1TIELED
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Roles

mE

Responsibilities
=1iE

Board of Directors
EEa

Evaluate and determine the Group's risk appetite in achieving its strategic objectives
T i K2 788 TE 7N 6K (3 12 A R 08 B A 05 0N 3L B s UF

Ensure that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems
ERAKBERIANERSEL AN ERE R R NPEITRR

Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems

el mEEEERABRERT 2R EER AR

Strategy and Transformation Committee
RENLEEEE

Review risk and control issues through regular reviews and reports coordinated by
Managing Director and senior management team
AEEHRELRENORESREELRSEEEBBAENRS, W5 E R &L
BiEEE

Suggest the priority of risk management efforts at group level
MEEEARREREREATIRLES

Drive risk-conscious culture and promote control environment

e B Jol B = 8 B S K R (2 E N iR IR 1R

Audit Committee

BEREEE

Oversee the internal audit function and the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems on behalf of the Board

NXEFTHEENETHERAREERASEERRZ AR BT R BT

Managing Director
BERIEE

Confirm the results of the Group's annual principal risk assessment, and to arrange
and implement mitigation measures for high-risk issues, including material
sustainability topics

BRFTERBEISEBFLER, HESERER, AFESUHFETRERE,
57 HE K2 B Jifn i ¥ 18 ffe

Monitor the implementation and progress of risk management plans and oversee the
effectiveness of process controls

EREBREEFEMNBETBRREE, BEEREFRERNT

First Line of Defence — Risk Owners

SE—EMER - BBEAEREA

Manage, monitor, and report key risks in line with applicable policies and procedures
RIEEANBERIIE R, B2, BRNMS MR R
Accountable for the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control

HANBREZREERAYIMES
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Roles

AE

Responsibilities
=51E

Second Line of Defence — Corporate

Governance Department

SETEMIER —

AN A/ 3

IF>REIOo

Support Managing Director and senior management team on the risk and control
functions

YHESREELRSEEREKETRE R R BT A

Provide guidance to establish, refine and monitor critical group policies, procedures,
and standards to reinforce risk management and internal control systems

BEE. AERDREEMNHABICR. BFREA, et EREER AR
ERGRHES

Facilitate internal and external communication on the Group's risk management, and
report effectively and regularly to the Group management on the progress and
effectiveness of the risk management initiatives
RELKERBEETFRANESRINGBE, TAIULE RO HRESIEE ERS
B E b 1R TR S B A Y

Coordinate and monitor governance, risk and compliance activities in collaboration
with risk owners

HERRKEBSAGE, RENRREE. BBROGIREH

Second Line of Defence — Executive Office

SEEAR — {TIED

Coordinate, drive and monitor the implementation of risk management and internal
control initiatives in business segments in accordance with the Group's strategy
IRESRBEIRES, Fhod. #HEENM B RA B SRR EBPIAIT R E E R AR RE
Allocate resources to business segments for risk mitigation initiatives; provide
guidance and support to risk owners; and coordinate with business units to meet the
Group's risk management reporting requirements

1 5E065 80 P 60 @ g S R E 1T B IR, WEERAER S ARMIESIAZ
%, R dE SRR P B & 5k ) b T e R 7 oK

Third Line of Defence — Internal Audit and

Whistleblowing Officer

%EEBE%Z( -

NEPERNRRER

Internal Audit — Validate the effectiveness of risk controls through internal audit and
identify improvement opportunities as appropriate

NEPEZ — BEANBEZREERREENERE, TEMNGENIERS
Whistleblowing Officer — Manage and investigate misconduct and fraud cases, and
review the effectiveness of remedial actions

HBREE — BERAEAETARERRMN, Wins]#H8ITEIF Y
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I. BUSINESS OBJECTIVE AND STRATEGY SETTING

Risks are inherent in our business activities and can relate to strategic
goals and business performance. We aim at integrating risk
management into the strategic planning and monitoring process,

resulting in a practical and continuous process.

Business strategy and risk management system integration
We understand that the Group operates in an ever-changing market
environment. In the face of frequent changes in the external
environment, including geographic and competitive market factors, as
well as the trend of increasing sustainability-related requirements, the
Group has to be vigilant in formulating strategic objectives in a timely
and agile manner in order to respond to the challenges and

opportunities arising from these changes.

The Group's risk management system is continuously intertwined with
the Group's strategic development and has been enhanced to identify
the prioritised issues in the business value chain. The business value
chain has been carefully analysed into various key areas under 5 major
management focuses to better align business objectives with
sustainability and risk management initiatives through an unified
language for effective communication. During the year, we actively
communicated with risk owners to confirm the updated risk factors
and management directions, forming a dynamic integral process that
resulted in enhanced management accountability and centralised

tracking of the effectiveness of control measures.

Business Landscape and Strategy
EBERERERRE
- Business value chain analysis
KB EEENIT
+ Market update and impact assessment
MBS R E LTS
- Sustainability trends and requirements
OFFEHEEEAR SR
- Industry benchmarking
TR

I S8 H RS 05w i) 5
BMEEEOEER SRR, HOTM R
OB M. BN S TG R TR ALA B R
R, TV ALS R S R .
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RBEERETHEEEENFEFER. HMHEREEE
BTN, NARSKEHEBIETARNEZEL, AE
EHR—HEES TAEYBE, EfREMMLREEEERET
TEERLEREEEE IIF. FN, HMEEBRE
ERAEESABBREREMEBRREREED,
e EiE, MmN EEREPRMETHE
i 5 3 o

Risk Management Process

EIZERRERE

+ Risk identification and classification
o i 3 2R K2 93 4R
- Risk changes and mitigation

JeBL B 4 Y R R T 3R

+ Enhanced management accountability
BRI E

+ Review and tracking of work plan and progress
TAFEt &0 R & i = 5R it

+ Monitoring of control measure effectiveness
& 13 15 MR Al S E A

Major management focuses under business value chain B EEET T EEEEIR

Business & Market

Supply Chain &

Governance &

Branding & Product Operational . Financial
Development _ Compliance
g B T {2 2% R oo 8 % 7 ta Management =g BT FE
- 1L G R T
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2. RISK IDENTIFICATION

Precise risk identification allows us to manage the risk inventory more

effectively and understand its relationship with the business

strategies, objectives, and performance.

RISK

IDENTIFICATION
2 P 58 Al

2. JR [ e il
WRH A RER MBI EEAREE,
HEEHEE. BEIXRNME.

Objective HIZ

Immerse in business context and goals to manage risk inventory effectively

RATHRAEBRERNBR, AUERRARGE

|

Risk Identification Channels 38 RIER{E

il 7 &

Research &
Benchmarking
iR kg

Data

Tracking
SR IE Ht

. Risk Workshops Stakeholder
Policy & .
. & Seminars Engagement
Process Review N A
e e @& TIE Activities
- = K2 5 P2 BMHESHEEH *
Strategic Internal & Whistleblowing
Planning Process External Audit Mechanism
RIS IR B Fr NFISEIEIE:Y 23 SR

}

Internal Risks

l

}

Emerging Risks ESG-related Risks

REHELS B b ESGHE B /& bz
Risk Inventory J& B & &
Risk Inventory Categories J&l & ¥ Al

Supply Chain &
Business & Market Branding & Operational Governance & Financial Risk
Development Risk Product Risk Management Risk Compliance Risk éﬂ;%;g@;
EBR o hE 2 72 on 48 bR 15 i i £ EiaRGRER R . T

15 3 & 8 b EEERERR

following QR code to access our report:

BRFNESRITHHIFE, NHRTFHEIRRSAN FiR AU T _ERIARGRS:
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Main features of the risk identification framework JE iy ik 9] HE 28 1 G B R B

Diversified risk identification
channels

£ AN ELE S P

To ensure the completeness of our risk inventory, we have established diversified risk
identification channels and with ongoing optimisation in our top-down and bottom-up risk
management approaches to identify internal, emerging, and ESG-related risks that might affect
the achievement of our business objectives and strategies

miEREIRIEEMNZREE, FMEBUSRAMNERESHNRE, THFEBEXRMB LM T
RBTMmEN@ERERTTSE, LAGH RO 88 & & = BEE R B R RS 50 A & /T BAD o] 5
8 3 J= 18 I B4 L B

Portfolio view of risks

% 4 & &

We continuously analyse for risk factors relevant to the Group's strategic and operational
realities and the business value chain to sort out the landscape of significant risks that the
Group may face. Risks are classified into five major categories, namely Business & Market
Development Risk, Branding & Product Risk, Supply Chain & Operational Management Risk,
Governance & Compliance Risk, Financial Risk, and subdivided them into different risk items
with enhanced risk descriptions to help define the risk events
ﬁTF‘i%%ﬁﬁ%E"]%H]%Eﬂﬁ@%ﬁﬂ‘fzﬁ}i%%%ﬁ‘nTfTEi@Z@ FERR R, fIEHS
EogAHMNELERESR, UMENAEBRTHERE. oMk Eao. LEEREE
B, EHEEHR. Eﬁ‘%ﬁi’kﬁl—lﬂﬁ, wmAn N AERBREE REBLBEER, AE
BN xE %o ol B 55 14

Risk inventory management

EIREEER

We will perform a periodic review on the risk inventory in a centralised approach to ensure the
existing risks are still applicable and relevant and also identify the changes to the existing risks

M EHRERRESEER, ERREERRIABEABE, X5E5I1R A @R &1L

Our risk inventory is also informed by the results of internal risk assessments and risk
assurance works, as well as insights from various industry sources

HMEERIEEINSE N BRI A ERES TIFIER, URKEBEEAALHRE

To ensure our ERM Framework incorporates the evolving risk landscape appropriately, our risk

inventory also addresses hot topics in risk management like strengthening ESG risk

consideration in supply chain management

7 B R B P B0 10 5 B IR AE SRR S M R S B AL B R B K i, R AP JEL B 0 B L
SEBEEENMAMGER, FIHERESIEDFENEESG @MERNEEE
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3. RISK EVALUATION

The risk evaluation framework enables us to understand the

interdependencies between risks and their triggering impacts and to

3. Ja Fg BF Ak
EREMIERAGMEMTHRERRNELES I EZE M
FIAE B RAFR, 4 B0 ¥ @ BS & B8 i A2 18RI IR

provide a basis for matching and prioritising risk response.

RISK
EVALUATION

RREHE

Brand Image
and Reputation
mIEH R
mEE

Operational
Impact
EEME

Objective BHIE
Identify the root causes and assess relevant interdependencies

to risk impacts, informing the selection of risk response and resource allocation

i ) P ) AR 70 IR ) R 5 1 g S M A B 1R, 32 422 e R 0 468 it Az B 350 R MR R AL IR IR

|

Risk Evaluation Criteria [E & sF{hIZiEE

Legal and HealtthMncial

Compliance Safety Protection Impact

w;&W&aW%% AT

Risk Evaluation Methodologies & Tools B F i F1ik R T H

Qualitative Assessment

Quantitative Assessment

EEFFETTIE EEFETIE
Interviews Workshops Survevs Sensitivity Financial Cost-Benefit Risk Assessment
ol Iﬂiiﬁp e ﬁeHyg Analysis Models Analysis Matrix
e SEes BURENIT MRS R AT RY 7R 2 53 A &1 B 5 1ih %B P
Risk Assessment & [ 5 {th
Operational Level Entity Level Assessment
Assessment Assessment Result Review
EIE JE T B3R maTfh ML 4G RE R
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Main features of the risk evaluation framework JEL B A A HE 2P T R B

Holistic risk assessment

el

The severity of risks is assessed at multiple levels by risk owners, Corporate Governance
Department, and senior management team and from holistic perspectives to ensure
comprehensive risk assessment

mBEAERESA. EREGHNSEEEERERZAEEREHAERERRKEREL,
VAT RY <2 T B0 Ja e 5 12 45 o

Risk owners in operational units are responsible to assess the risks individually at least once a
year. Corporate Governance Department supports risk owners and management in the process
of understanding the key considerations and feasible responses, and groups common risks
across operating units to assess the risk level collectively at group perspective
EEENUNERREESAGEEIESSFEAFGER —IX, EXREBPERRPZ
ERBAEESAREEEIERENEELIUTERER, 08SEESTRHER @R
AR, LA LASR B M S AR — 5118 3 51 @ B 09 J& B 7

The final assessment result is depicted on the risk heat map, which will be reviewed by senior
management team

RETHERFZERKEHABEREANE, TOSEEEBKES

Relevant and appropriate risk
evaluation criteria

18 BA F0 & & B 2 B 5F 16 1R 42

The Group has developed a set of risk assessment criteria in line with its risk appetite focus to
comprehensively assess the severity and likelihood of the risk consequences
KEHRBEBFEERIABGENE T —ERREFGHER, L2BmFEREBRNEREEND
AR OTREME

The assessment criteria take into account the impact of risks in different dimensions, including
brand image and reputation, operational impact, legal and compliance, health and safety,
environmental protection and financial impact, such that both financial and non-financial
consequences are considered when assessing risks

FHEEREEETHEREANSENZE, ASRBEREREE. EEXE. ZEREGHR.
BRERRGE BERFRELVBEZEHRE LS8, BT EARE, 8= 82 RB&Z IR
FTERER

In addition to the evaluation criteria for evaluating operational risks, we also use "importance
to stakeholders" as one of the criteria to prioritise the ESG-related risks. Both internal and
external stakeholders are engaged to identify and evaluate ESG-related risks which may have
significant impacts to our stakeholders

BRASFHE AR E MR K FE(E BERITN, B[ 2Tt B ES M | 1F & 5F 1S ESG 18 B B bg
BIRIRFRIER 2 —, BEEANEAIEIFNE S EBANFH IR MMELEEARZEN
ESG 1B R @ b

The risk rating assessment results reflect the extent to which management needs to focus on
and address risk. The ratings are set with reference to the Group's acceptable level of risk
EERFEARGEER, RMTEEEFRERIREERBRINIE, RUFRETERIERE
Koz mgig EfFe2E
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4. RISK MITIGATION AND CONTROL

The risk mitigation and internal control framework deals primarily with
risk reduction. The structure of our risk mitigation and control
framework is informed by principles outlined by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission's ("COSQ")
Internal Control — Integrated Framework.

4 JE P JEE 3 0 7 il

ERRESNASEEERNETEENREMRRE, 1M
01 B B S50 A0 BE AR AE 2R 2R A8 2 B3 T Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission([ COSO ])z
BRI AR B EIRIRRITHIE

Objective HIZ
Reduce the likelihood or impact of the risk
P {1 JeE\ P 641 OT A 1 2 EL o &

|

Internal Control System M 8B B F R &%

Control Environment

Control Information & Communication

EHRE NEEEREE
. . . Quality
Commitment to Integrity Risk . . Internal External
. Information with L L
and Ethical Values Governance Model Data Analytics Communication Communication
BTHEREEE % e R B e Bb i i BB i 1
BT ERBEER B R e R B WEARREBEES A BB i 1E J1 8B i
Control Activities B 15 & &
Preventive Detective Corrective
Controls Controls Controls
e B S ife 18 AT 45 e #l 1F 4 5 fife

l

Internal Control Assessment P 8B B 5 5E {4

Operational Units
Self-assessment

EEBENE BTG
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Main features of the risk mitigation and control framework — J2 g 8 35 J2 42 i A 28 () 32 22 45 B

Strong control environment

BREEHNRE

Promote honesty and integrity among our staff on a day-to-day basis

AHEE@EOES THEMNERMNE L

Foster an environment in which our people are knowledgeable and committed to carrying out
internal control across the Group, and confirming the acknowledgement annually
EEEE TABINNRNEERFHITNSRETIFNERE, ISFHEAE TR0

Put into place policies and standards, such as Anti-Fraud Policy, Code of Conduct,
Whistleblowing Policy, Anti-Money Laundering Policy, to enhance our commitment to integrity
and ethical values

HIE R SFE R . AL R ST R BRERBUR R /R o8 BURSF BUR B BRI, FELAND s B P10 i 15 A2
BB E AR

Effective risk & control
communication

ANE R EEEE

Quality Information with data analytics — We are dedicated to exercise deeper application of
data analytics to convert data to risk management information in order to identify control
weakness and evaluate the effectiveness of risk responses

HEANTREBEGE — FMBNREERGENT, HEEBELLZAREEGEE, U#
All B 15 55 B 0 5T 1 o B T B0 AY 21

Internal communication — We adopt both top-down and bottom-up approaches to ensure
management and risk owners are aware of risks that fall into their area of responsibility and risk
responses are consistently implemented. Top-down communication includes regular training,
town hall meetings and regular senior management meetings. Bottom-up communication
includes regular risk reports in management meetings as well as ongoing optimisation of the
reporting channel and follow-up process for employees to reflect fraud risk events

AEPER — FHPERB EM IR TmMENGE, BREEENRBRARERS AINER
HWEHEAKER, TREREMETERESER, B LM TFHREEEEEREINI. 28
ERMEHNESEEREER , B TMEARABERREEEREREXEARSFH, kiF
EEYETIRMEFREREFHN LRRERRERRE

External communication — We perform regular communications and risk surveys with external
stakeholders and risk experts to identify external events that might affect the achievement of
the Group's objectives

ShEDIEE — FMEINEBIE N E R AR B EREETIBE R R, AR B A0 s 2B/ IR
SEBIREINEBE

Internal control assessment

M 8B B = 5T 1

Operational units are responsible to perform an annual self-assessment and individual risk-
based reviews to assess their performance in promoting effective control practices and to
monitor store operational risks and irregularities
EEENBEENTFEERIEEREMERESNES, NFGHEEREAIEEERD
HHIRIR R ERIPY IS EE w2 EREIR

Internal Audit is responsible to perform independent assessments of key control activities to
ensure compliance and conformity of internal control to pre-determined standards
NEBEZE BT GHERTTE, NERASEEMNSRETRERE
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FY2024 principal risks

Through the application of the above business and strategy setting,
identification, evaluation, and mitigation and control frameworks, we

2024 M B AR JEE 2R B

17508 A SR R SR B E . & Al

have identified and responded to the following principal risks in

FY2024:

Key areas of risk implication @l i 5/ £ + S & 15

e

.

*@*

©

K I

5T 16 K2 JE £ A0 12
FIMEAR, FeMAS2024 B BUAF a8 Al 2 0] fE A T~ S /@3

6=

Damage to Declining customer Business interruption Legal disputes Underperforming Property and
brand reputation loyalty and failure and liabilities business profitability financial losses
MR BEZE iR =5 8 A e EE SR oP T Rz K3 BN REE ES Y B UNES B R ISR K
Key risk description
Risk category and potential impact Controls & mitigation Risk trend
| B2 8 7l SREEHRREESE B &% I 5 e | B i 54
Business & Risk of franchisee management Continuously review franchise business strategy and
Market D B2 7 & 1R S business model, implement optimisation work plan and
Development determine key management responsibilities under the
¥ FBEMR In response to the high quality optimisation process
Eedg | development goal of the franchise HERIRNBER AR EEET, SEMHEELT

business, the Group is concerned
about major scenarios such

as quality franchisee entry,
performance monitoring and
relationship management.
Inadequate management of
the above could impact the
Group's reputation and financial
performance

REGNEREFESEER
RER, SEBETEENR
BEEISIA. RIFEREEE
EEFELER, WEEAR
& DGR ESRERER

R

Potential impact:

BETE:
Qs

%
fFetElREEBHRE TR TS EERS

Develop and optimise selection and evaluation
mechanisms, including thorough background checks on
key franchisees

STIL R B HGERADET MR, BB H S R0 B BT

HENERFEDE

Reaffirm the red lines policy in franchise business
management, and strengthen the compliance awareness
of franchisees through training and enforcement of
penalties

BN B EEERARESE, WS BIEIIRAT
SR &1 25 038 10 B 7 5 AR = 5

The Group has established an independent mechanism,
including whistleblowing, store on-the-spot inspection
and data analytics, to enhance timely monitoring of the
operation of franchisees

KEDRUAIUET, BERR. MEREEERE
BAE, WIS NEEE RENEERR
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Key risk description

Risk category and potential impact Controls & mitigation Risk trend
L B %8 R FEmBEHEREEESE B 15 % JiE ¥ 1 i a2 iz 8 54
Business & Risk of ineffective response to Modernise our brand image and marketing campaign for
Market changing market conditions iconic product collections to deepen our reach and
Development MisEE S ESRNE RS rapport with existing and new generations of customers
5 EAn RBAREREERRZIEGETEEZARIINZHEH,
TR The Group's inability to effectively LUIDREIRER FERZSNGE
navigate and respond to the
dynamic market environment Accelerate the use of digital technology and data
and consumer sentiment may analytics to support business and market development,
result in brand image and including integrated impact analysis of product portfolio,
profitability deterioration distribution and store optimisation
N0 R 2 FH 8BTS 521k K2 R N AT AR B SR R T 35 38
SEREAEUERROESE B, BiEENHERES. BERMEBYRGGHT
FimizRBMEE A, OIAE HENN
AR PR KRB EE
Refine management structure with clearer accountability,
Potential impact: empowering the senior executive team to communicate
BrEE: major market updates, including competitors and consumer
N perceptions or actions, and potential hurdles of our business
g@; m plan rigorously and timely for necessary adjustments
SEERBUE-DHARSE, MEsEEEER
FW*DKZH—;HE@&EEQH?%@ B, AEREEFEE
BEMBEZNITH, FHETE LHABEERES, UIF
tH VA S B 58 B
Business & Risk of product loss and Implement data analytics to continuously assess risk
Market noncompliance factors and levels of store operations, including irregular
Development ERBXREAEEERE inventory movements and suspected noncompliance
e RN issues in Mainland China
TR Risks of product loss and brand 175 18 U 4 M7 5 48 A 4 o B P 0 64 P9 S TR B (R 3R Rz Ik
image damage due to control T, OEEEREEMERENUAERER

and compliance issues such as
staff misconduct, unauthorised
discounts and inappropriate
product descriptions

HREIAETHA. BRI
TRAEHRRAZEES
HREE, SYATEREX
R Ga b8 T R Z 18 % Bl By

Potential impact:

%% iE_[J.
‘?\/

O A [ &

Optimise store on-the-spot inspection mechanism,
including risk-based sampling rules, for timely detection
of red flags
BUMIEREGEE/RE,
K2 5 it 458 & R 1B 5

B REH M EURRIZE, LAE

Institutionalise and optimise sales and marketing
management and procedures, covering customer service
and post-sales enquiries, timely review and execution of
marketing activities and product pricing updates
HIEYRBHHEREHEERRFRRE, 8EERP
RAs. EEEH. RIEFFHENTEHTIRERTE
[EES

Enhance practices for appropriate product information
display and management
MaERRFLGEINE R EEERER
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Key risk description

Risk category and potential impact Controls & mitigation Risk trend
J B %8 Rl * = B i Rz i T B 1 I T 1 1 it | B i 34
Branding & Risk of brand image and Monitor and uplift the quality of customer service continuously

Product reputation by improving sales service standardised processes and

0B % K2 2 6o 4R TR R B A R implementing regular training

Damage to brand image and
reputation due to public opinion
or media coverage arising from
customer complaints, infringement
of intellectual property rights,
and inappropriate behaviour of
the Group's representatives or
Key Opinion Leaders ("KOLs")

HEEERF. ERAHERE.
REURFMA@A(KOL )R
ES1T, Mol R EmayR
HE, SlERBERR

i o
KH @1

1)
% EB
il

Potential impact:

BERE:

BEEEHERBRERER ENERGIFEES
RRASFPREEE

Engage professional third-party team to investigate and
enforce infringement clues, and strengthen awareness
sharings on patents, trademarks and copyrights
SHEERFB-2NERFERBRRIETHRE, N
MERN. AREREBFESHNEENZ

Review existing red-line standards for KOLs and platform
cooperation, promote enhancement plans, and strengthen
the monitoring mechanism of KOLs and platform cooperation

R RBRKOLE T & GIFALARIRE, STk iEEE
s, W@ KOLR TaGIFaIEEmHl

Supply Chain &
Operational
Management
L e 2 1%
EEEIEE

Risk of inadequate supplier
management

HER &2 2R

In the face of elevating expectation
of key stakeholders over our
sustainable practices in the supply
chain, inadequate management
and disclosure on ESG practices
and performance of our key
material suppliers could be
detrimental to brand image

BEESZHFNEHEMEMR
JiE % oh B 0T £ 48 3 f B R
PRI, SHES RN HE
FESCER R R EEM
REAR, ¥ERANRK @M
BR

Potential impact:

%% ) S88 .
‘?\/E-

R Oc

Review of critical suppliers and optimise the raw material
procurement management system against global leading
practices, integrating ESG factors into the mechanism
with phased approach

Bel RE R RER, RHRERAEEERUNELR
MERBEERSE, TRNBERMNAESGRER

Enhance risk assessment criteria for diamond raw material
suppliers with ESG hot topics e.g. anti-money laundering
and environmental and labour practice considerations to
strengthen supplier due diligence

N0 A BRA LR B | bR ET R, WA R BEE .
RERE I%XE% ESGHAMEBEMEE, L@tk ftE
[EREEEEY]

Identify, assess and monitor the supplier risks, including
conducting audits. Engage selected suppliers with risk
identified and corrective measures for noncompliance

s Al < 5T 1 RO B A AL L B ILTELT‘_I%%‘I'O B 32
TE 15 71 5 5 2 a8 Al B e B K2 12 AR Al IE 15 i
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Risk category
JE B %8 Rl

Key risk description
and potential impact

FEmBEHEREEESE

Controls & mitigation

BE 15 2 I 1 1 i

Risk trend

Supply Chain &
Operational
Management
1t fEE B &2
ElEEIERE

Risk of customer privacy
breach

B B8 AL ) e B

Risks of system security and
improper staff operation that lead
to leakage or misuse of customers'
personal information, or failure
to meet increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, resulting
in noncompliance penalties and
damages to the Group's reputation

HRERERGAHNZIEHER
ETRIFAEMENRE @
AGRBMIREBRRA, =¥
REEwEBBRENEEE
R, EHCRE R EES &K
mREZiE

Potential impact:
BERE:

Establish the Privacy Governance Committee and appoint
a Data Protection Officer responsible for privacy-related
tasks, including formulating privacy management policy
and related documents

WIUELBEEGEE, ISTEEAGRREESEER
BRI TIF, 135 I REA & 18 KR R A8 E X1

Observe relevant regulatory developments and perform
integrated impact analysis and prioritisation. Enable
timely tracking of mitigation progress with the
assistance of dashboard

HEBEENZEZRERE, TETESEREREBIRN
#r, EEBREFRTERIFIREER TIFER

Conduct privacy impact analysis on proposed business
and operational changes and design and implement
corresponding system security controls in accordance
with compliance requirements
MEMERERREESVETLEZEE T, i
GRERRFTRERBENRAZ2ES

Raise staff awareness of personal data and privacy
protection through privacy training

SENLEREN, RSB THREEAERTEL
FEMEE

Supply Chain &
Operational
Management
5L e 5 A%

EEEESR

Risk of cyber threats
AT m R

Insufficient security controls on
the Group's e-tailling platforms
against increasing cyber threats
may expose the corporate network
to the possibility of intrusion for
unauthorised access to sensitive
information and insertion of
suspicious transactions, resulting
in system interruption or legal
and financial liabilities

EEREARENEREFIHET
802 2 LAEE B 18 1054
BEE, PERERSAHER
N2 78 BU U & 61 A2 JEE 1T O] KEE
Rom, ENRGELALEEEE
o HEARE LB EE

Potential impact:

BEME:
QoK

Develop and update cybersecurity policies and procedures
to stipulate clear accountability on cybersecurity governance
FIENEMASEEEREEFINARAGSSEES
K2 B &

Engage an external service provider to conduct 7x24 cyber
threat detection and monitoring with various technologies
for timely risk response to minimise the impact

B 58 S 8D AR 65 15 r R A 2 R B AT EE 1T 7 X 24 18 8 K2
BRI ERERE, LAREEEEEREREZEREE

Obtain security standard certifications for critical systems
and conduct regular penetration testing
REARRGNS T2 ERERE R EHIETZHAR

Enhance cybersecurity contingency capabilities continuously
by conducting regular simulations to rehearse the incident
recovery and business continuity plans, and providing
cybersecurity training to our staff

HERARGSS B, BIEE R HIRES
R B IEEME ST I F TR, A8 TiRHES
Zaeigil
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Risk category
J B %8 Rl

Key risk description
and potential impact

F 2 o b i 2 B TE R

Controls & mitigation

B 15 2 1 1 i

Risk trend
= B i 5%

Governance &
Compliance

Eiak B

Risk of employee fraudulent
activities
& T S8 m fa

Employees engage in unauthorised
or unethical practices for personal
advantage, resulting in losses to
the Group

BIRTESEANZMmR
FREEBN I NERIAT
&, HAOTEAEX

Potential impact:
BERE:

R 2

Uphold a culture of integrity for all employees through
continuous education

BRFENEREEMAEE THE XL

Review the Group's policies and guidelines regularly,
including updating the Code of Conduct which requires
employees' confirmation and report of conflicts of
interest

EREIREBORAES, BIEEMEE TEMEE
REITHRRRSHE TIT4RT A

Reinforce our identification of potential fraudulent
activities and control weaknesses through enhancement
of whistleblowing and follow up mechanisms,
highlighting key responsibilities and governance with
standardised classification and process
RARE LML RERT, nDa@EnEEEEiTareE
ZiRiE, WMIARESERRIEEEERBSERES

Set up reporting template and tools to enhance
management transparency and operational effectiveness
BUMSERR TREARESEEBAEREFRE

Governance &
Compliance

BERGHRE

Anti-money laundering
compliance risk

R 588 & 1R R

Ineffective measures taken to
address anti-money laundering
regulatory requirements in our
operating regions increase the
risk of unintentional assistance to
money laundering activities and
result in losses from noncompliance
penalties

SEREANERENSE
EMEHRARNEE S
R, 180 Fe 5] AF 8= Bt
REHMNERBREENAGR
B B2 &1 48 2K

Potential impact:

VEE 7T S 488 .
BERE:

QK

Benchmark against best practices and establish relevant
guidelines to stipulate governance responsibilities
HIEREEREREUAMESILARAEEIGES

Monitor the update of anti-money laundering laws and
regulations continuously and analyse the impact on the
Group's operation to ensure compliance with anti-money
laundering practices
FEETIREREZBENEZRETRHSEEERE
ETAN, UWEREERRERIFTZGRERF

Leverage on digital platforms to assist the frontline with
customer due diligence compliance procedures and
record keeping
EABEETSAENMAIRATSFERFEESSER
2RI IRTF

Risk level increased during FY2024
2024 W HUEE = A J@ B Ik £
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Risk level remained broadly the same as FY2023
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Risk level decreased during FY2024
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Management for climate change risk

We adopt the integrated risk management approach to manage
sustainability-related risks and opportunities.

On climate change issues, as a responsible global citizen, we will not
only support a low-carbon future, but also work with the international
community to support climate change mitigation and adaptation
efforts and are focused on improving transparency. From 2020
onwards, we set our climate-related disclosures according to the
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures ("TCFD").

During the period, we continued to monitor updates to the climate-
related disclosure requirements, analysed gaps with disclosure
requirements published by International Sustainability Standards
Board ("ISSB") to ensure compliance and proactively identifying
climate-related risks and opportunities in order to prepare the basis
for the Group's in-depth climate scenario analysis and financial impact

SR A2 A JR B A
BMRAGSAREEMEAEE T FEREDE AR
RS

EREEgUEEL, IMFAREAEEHNEROR, <8
ihLI‘]TEEﬁriREE EE,\IB&H }Eiiﬁ ﬁﬁDL

HHJ;O g 2020 fﬁﬁ_ﬁﬁ’ﬁ%%ﬂﬂ%m%ﬂﬁ% EIII_A\?&EKIT,F
A TCFD 1B SHIERIF R IZIBE G RIRE

AP FFER T REEHNNESRENR, MR
PROJTE R R IERI B EE([ ISSB | )3 ffh 2 1 58 B R IR
PLE R LATE fRE AR, 0 A5 A 7 T B SRR A B B0 JeRL B A A
B, 5K BT IR E R R S s T 2 BB R T AL E
2if, HPMZERZRIERTRWOT

assessment. The consideration factors and framework are as follows:

Aspect Governance Ejg

Ll The Board of Directors has the highest

1 responsibility for climate-related issues

and the Sustainability Committee is delegated

P for O\Erseeing an‘d' n:;maging ESG mattis
II]]]]]I EFETREERHRREEZENERSEE,
— EETFEERSES TR EREEESGER,
Aspect Strategy K&
R

Regularly analyse climate-related physical
2 and transition risks and opportunities and
Vi assess their financial impacts.

TE B 43 A 52 5 1% 48 ) 61 B2 R % i L B A
HiE, REGEMBEYE.

ct Risk Management [ [% & I

Aspe
#HIS .
Integrated risk management approach are
3 adopted to ESG matters, including conducting
regular materiality assessments to analyse
stakeholders' views on climate-related issues and
determine possible management approaches.

NEERREEAZREESGE, AIEEH
{@} ETESUTHEUNTENEHRIZEMASE
HMEMR, WRETFHREEEE,

Aspect Metrics And Targets fEIRF1B IR

Set a 10-year sustainability strategy and work
4 plan and committed to reduce GHG emissions
intensity by 15% by 2029, and will continue to

report on our performance and review.
ST THFOFER BRI R TIEStEl, RE
.%ﬁ» 72029 6461 2 71 B HE LG 0 15 %

& 4 B R 1P B R 3R e A sT B AR

O

:*21

O
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Risk Examples

2 B2 5 1

Opportunity Examples
#iE Rl

Time horizon with regard to our business outlook
HERERBRESEZHHEER:

Short-, medium- and long-term are defined as less than 2 years, 2-6
years, and more than 6 years respectively

2. PIRERINAIABDR2F. 2-6 FRIEBIB6F

Physwal Risk E 88 3 &
Extreme weather incidents such as

-+ Capturing the market
preferences towards low
carbon products and
sustainability performance
transparency
T 12 1 35 T O & e AD
OHFEEREYERE
81 I I

+ Improving business model
for energy and operating

flooding or heavy precipitation and
typhoon may lead to business
interruption

LI BY F= A e a5 Ak i K 5m 56
IR ENEEKZE

Increase in the number of annual hot
days may highlight the demand for air
conditioning and cooling systems for

production and operation efficiency
SESRXENIGCTRE T B4 S SRR R U LA IR S A
ENEEHTRLANRARTHK TRADE B R

Transitional Risk if & J& }&
Uplifting of regulatory requirements
in climate-related mitigation and
compliance cost
HSRR BN R E SRR G R TES
Adoption of new green approaches may
induce challenges to existing production
and operational flows and require
investments in research and assets
RAMNERERAEZTEZSGERAN
TENEERES RIS, TFERE
WARMNEEN@ETRE

o7 =] Please scan the QR code for details of our climate scenario analysis and relevant information in sustainability report.

_ag%%iﬁ%%gﬁﬁﬁmﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁm_ﬁﬁ,/ﬁThﬁ FRIRS
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Emerging risk

We are also concerned that the following emerging issues may have a
long-term and significant impact on the Group during FY2024 period.
We currently continue to monitor the development trend of the

relevant risks and conduct impact analysis in a timely manner in order

57 R b

to set up optimised mitigation measures as needed.

Key areas of risk implication & & %/ 2 I S #i 15 :

o)

s © K

I 2024 B E AN A BT R LA T #7 Bs B A
ZHEBERAREREATE, HMENSHEHENE
B E bR S R 3, WRISETZEENTAETEER

E B EHRENM,

Iz 6=

Damage to Declining customer Business interruption Legal disputes Underperforming Property and
brand reputation loyalty and failure and liabilities business profitability financial losses
mEBEZE B 6 3 B R SR oP T Rz K3 BN R EE S Y B UNES [UP=SUUEE S

Risk category Emerging issue description & potential impact Key areas of concern
JE B %8 Rl T B 5 RE 1 2 i T EHEAERE
Governance & Carbon Tax Policy Development Keep abreast of the relevant regulatory developments
Compliance i A0 Bk % e and requirements
BiaRGHREA BERTBHEEEERRER

The Group's overall business activities are affected
by the regulatory environment and requirements in
the market. In response to the global emphasis on
ESG issues and the development of carbon policies
in various countries, it is expected that Mainland
China may start to impose carbon tax, which will
lead to an increase in the Group's carbon emission
costs in the long run. In the meantime, the quality
and transparency of carbon data will have to be
enhanced under policy implementation, and the
trend of the Group's overall compliance costs will be
a matter of concern
CEBRBEBTOZMBEABEEREREE, &
JEEBEESCHEEMER L SEMNRBERE R,
TEHA oP [ (A b By A B UG BB, RiEM S, HE
R B AR AR IB 0, [ 05 FE IUR HE AT T A% 21 A
BMEBENEERBAERA, SEREBGHRENKRE
AFEHE

Potential impact:

\RE 7 B2 480 .
BERE:

R

Assess the potential impact of the carbon tax
policy on the entire business chain and relevant
key areas of concern

AR BEERERENEERE
KAHBE SR IR

Formulate appropriate targets and work plans
for the Group's emission reduction efforts

HlE SR ERHF TIFEI G B B R R Tt &
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Risk category
e B %8 R

Emerging issue description & potential impact

MBS EER R EESE

Key areas of concern

ERERER M

Business & Market
Development
EREMIFEREE

Geopolitical Tension

ith 4R BB 2ok 8 B

We are concerned about the commercial impact and
extended consequences of uncertain geopolitical
issues, including significant fluctuations in international
gold price and raw material supply

F 1M B8 A T E 0 M AR I8 (K] 3% 0 55 2R 0 7 3 R
ERIERER, 615 RS &R R E X8 K

& 2y mp
TR

Potential impact
BERE

QI 3

Consider to enhance the Group's mechanism
and system for collating and sharing macro
market information such that the Group has a
unified and efficient source of information for
impact analysis
ERGSETEREERAZRZE MGG RIS
REHEN, WBESKEAEK -—RENEMIR
BN i R &

Conduct scenario analysis of uncertain risks,
such as macroeconomic and geopolitical risks, in
order to explore and plan for better responses
to the stability of gold product supply and rapid
changes in the gold price

i n BARB M & BUE % A1 E T R g TS
=, MRARSTRREEEMNENETE
mfEREEREERIREHHRELHR
Dedicated staff in business operations continue
to closely monitor the nature and extent of
geopolitical issues and analyse the relevant
areas and levels of impact within the Group
FHEENETABFEE VIR TIMGRE
HAEMERE, WHKEENBEEYEHERIK
AR

Supply Chain &
Operational
Management
IS K2

EEEIES

Artificial Intelligence (Al) Application
AL ErEER

Al applications can support the enhancement of our
business processes, bringing automation and convenience.
However, if there is insufficient associated risk awareness
or a lack of monitoring for the use of Al technology,
there could be negative consequences affecting our
brand image and reputation, as well as incurring other
losses

AT SERNEREXFRMEBRIERA, FRE
R SEEME, AT, &5 AL E6EERARR
WA EHRZHE, M EREREERE
BELHMBRXZEBEHER

Potential impact
BERE

ON @I =

Monitor the development of Al as well as the
trends of relevant laws and regulations
MEIALIEENBERENREBREZENERE W
k)

Analyse the tendency, feasibility and risks
associated with the application of Al in the
Group's business
AMALSERKERBERA LRE@. o
171 K2 48 B @ B

Explore related risk management processes to
better assess relevant costs and benefits of
applications

RARGEFEREIRENRE, ABEIFimET
JiE Ak B0 RY 7R 3 o AT

Consider the Group's capacity enhancement
needs in the application and management of Al
and related technologies, and conduct relevant
training

= RSB A L BE & 18 B B 1 i A Rz & 18
FHENRARTS, WETHEREEI
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5. EFFECTIVENESS AND PERFORMANCE
TRACKING

The Board acknowledges it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. On
behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee oversees the internal audit
function and reviews the adequacy and continued effectiveness of
the Group's risk management and internal control systems and the
effectiveness of the internal audit function. The Board and the Audit
Committee acknowledge that our risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

To support the effective review, Senior Management Team, Internal
Audit, and Whistleblowing Officer will capture and align information
for reporting at a level that is consistent with Audit Committee's

oversight responsibilities as illustrated below:

Process used to review the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems and the internal
audit function

5. B 22 B 1B HiE

EFEAAEAHEREERNBPEHERKES, A
EERFTZFHNENAENE. EREEENREFTR
BABETHERR AEERREERNEBEERG
RNBEAHERSSEHARTEEN. EFTRERS
EERE, AREERNBEERGSEEEMIFHB
REEMSERFERNAE, MERERFTEEEX
BISK B R Y B R 1F G I M AR R # B R o

ATZFHAEYHRS, FESEEEERK. NBEZR
RREEENTHEZSETRERS JHEANER
BEEHUETRS, BERBERUTERRA :

et B By B R N B P AR AT S N A AT
B RE A Ak BT AR Y

Board of Directors

EEE

f

Report on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
MEREEMNANBEERANEIEELRS

(© 3 times or more per year

BEIRFAIMU L

Audit Committee

BEZEEE

l !

Report on cases of misconduct
and fraudulent behaviour

RABTANZERTABERFLRS
(© 3 times or more per year
BEIRHIAL

Whistleblowing Officer
BRES

140 Governance
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Report on significant audit
findings and control deficiencies

MEAEZERVEERRZEFHRS
(© 3 times or more per year
BEIRFIAL

Internal Audit
A8

Report on principal risks and the approach
to address risk and control deficiencies

MEZEBAEHRREEERRNEFHRS
@ 3 times or more per year
BE3XHEIRE

Senior Management Team

SESEEEERK

I

Report on progress and effectiveness of risk
management practices at operational level

TLEE B R R E 1R TR E R A FE RS
@ Monthly
#A

Management in Operational Units
EEEUEEE

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited
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Those who enforce the review the effectiveness of our risk i & J& Faz 457 B Sz 4 # B 42 R %8 S N 7 3%
management and internal control systems and the internal — BRBEA 2 AT AN B

audit function

Audit Committee
BEzEe8

As part of the Audit Committee's oversight responsibilities with regard to the effectiveness of the
internal audit function, the Audit Committee will:
FAERSEGHANETHEAGIMENEESER—8n, s&ER
— Review the annual audit plan
EHRFEEZTE
— Receive periodic reports on the results of the Internal Audit's work
BIWARNBEZ LIFERAOERRS
— Monitor management's responsiveness to the Internal Audit's findings and recommendations
RREEEHANDHFEZERTVE DK O E

— Review the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, and training programmes of

2

o

the internal audit function

BTN EPE SN EIR. 8 TEFEAEER IR PTEZHIENRER R T

Internal Audit
M 3B E %

Internal Audit plays a crucial role in monitoring the internal governance of the Group

W B & 12 £ B RN B N BB E 6 L8 B i 52 00 B

To provide an independent and objective assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk

management and internal control systems, Internal Audit:

HAEREENABRERKE S AN AYIRMEIISENRE, NEBEZ :

— Has unfettered access to all necessary information, people, records, and outsourced operations
across the Group, focusing on reviewing the effectiveness of the governance, risk management, and
control processes that management has put into place
OERBRHNERL FTERKREENMEUNSHER. BEAERA L. CR0PHEE, X
HEFestEgEERTHEL. AREERRERRZAY

— Adopts a risk-based approach, ensuring that key concerns and significant risks are considered
within the scope of the audit
RAERERA LS, BRREZEEANTEIBENREISTENEX@AR

— Engages an independent consulting firm to assist the internal audit service to further strengthen
the flexibility and independence of the internal audit function

SISE AR A S E U N ERE 2 R, 1 — 1038 N BB 51 I AE B0 2B S MEAD T8 Y1 T

Senior Management
Team

SESEEEEK

Departments at Group's second line of defence support senior management team to assist the Board
in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with regard to the Group's risk appetite, the Group's ERM
Framework, and the governance model that supports it

KEE_HMRBMXESEEEBE, UMNES S ETHERNEE @ R W2 6EREEE

RTEBEENRESE

Detailed responsibilities include:

BRTIIFEE

— Review significant risk exposures and the steps that management has taken to identify, measure,
monitor, control, and report such exposures
metEXEEARERERER . @8, B 603 S A 6 E AT PRELK & 8

— Review significant risk and compliance issues as well as material internal control defects identified,
together with management's responses and follow-up to these reports
B EARABNGHEFEEREAPRERE, UREEEHIFRS IO ENRETH

— Review the scope of planned risk management and compliance activities

ERFEENRREENGHRITINITIFSRE
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Tools used to review the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems and the internal

audit function

el R B R D9 B A R AT e 9 AT
W RE A Rk BT T A

Frequency

X8

Content covered during FY2024
R2024MBEEFRZFNE

Audit Committee
Reports
ERSEERS

3 times or more
per year

BF IR L

Assurance on the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems

HI7IER [ b T K2 N P B AR AR A SUCF L R

Whistleblowing
Reports
EREHRS

3 times or more
per year

BF IR L

Cases of gross misconduct and fraudulent behaviour and the measures
undertaken by the management

BMEAERFEITANESR, Kk EERE RIS

Anti-fraud culture building programme and training

SEUL AV AR R 5T 8] K2 15 3

Internal Audit
Reports

M &P F LIRS

3 times or more
per year

BFIRIUL

Significant audit findings and control deficiencies

BEARAEFTHRODEERE

Progress of remedial measures implemented by management

&I JE AT AU A ) I

Review on the effectiveness of the Group's processes for financial reporting and
compliance with prevailing regulations

BTN ER B AR RS AR R U S R IR AT AR S AR B iR

Senior Management
Team Reports
SESEEEEK
RS

3 times or more
per year
BEINRFIAL

Principal risks identified at the group level and the related mitigation
measures, including the approach to resolve material internal control defects

LA 6K (B /& T 58 Al 00 2 2 @ B LA K2 A8 B E TS i, £ 15 R R A EE N BB BT ER Ak
817 iE

Review on the resources, staff qualifications and experience and training
programmes of the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
BEHRBET. WEEZRVBERSTHENER. BELEERER, UKRIEINE

gl

Control Self-
assessment and
Management
Confirmation
NHBEEBFE
EEERRAS

Annually
8F

Scope and quality of the management's ongoing monitoring of risks and the
internal control systems

EREFERSRR R ASEERANSERER

Management's compliance with applicable regulatory requirements and the
Group's policies including the Code of Conduct, Anti-Fraud Policy, and Anti-
Money Laundering Policy

EIHEETEAER R RREERIER, REEREFBLET. REE
R K2 J 15t % U 2R

As a result of the above review, the Audit Committee, on behalf of
the Board, confirmed that there was no significant issue that would

have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk

BERSEGRER MRS, AREF TN 2024 W IF
ERAEXNEEMHNEERREERNBEERGR
BIRYL SRz 7 B AR R A R 2 &

management and internal control systems of the Group for FY2024.
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6. EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

By their nature, most crises are unpredictable, but we believe it is
possible to determine activities and areas that may be particularly
prone to crises. We believe advance planning for these areas is key to
ensure our resilience against crises, reduce the impact of adverse
events, aid recovery and support business continuity. Set out below

are the pre-crisis measures that help us maintain an appropriate level

of preparedness to respond to crises:

=Y

BRENE E2EEARMNE, BHMEETIAAE DR
MEZBABEEITENF S, TMB5HHZ2FRE
R EERMEME RATUNBRREMEBEE
WeImEN. BEANSAEEMEOZE. FHERI
BXFRBIFEER. TXEINEMAEBARANIENM,
T B F AP 1F 7 2 LA JE S B A

Crisis Management
Team ("CMT")
J& 1 & 12 B Bk

Composition

Led by Vice-chairmen and Managing Director, staffed with Crisis

WahE Coordinator, Chief Officers and Leaders from the Group's corporate function
units and market segments
HEIETRRESREERE, VEEEeHmAE. BEEEREIARRE
BRERAE S PIIMIZ N EREIEE A
Other personnel from varying disciplines and regions would be identified on
an as-needed basis
RERTEBYREMERBENIBENASNA

Functions Identify areas of concern

HE RE st Al 75 S B L B EE E

Assess the impact of the identified concerns

5T 1 B 1 0 B B &

Devise strategies and response plans to overcome crises
il 7E SR B8 D %9 51 3l LA B2 12 15 1

Maintain and monitor cases for tracking and improvements
HESEAD BRI R LAETTIE M 2 B 1k

Crisis Management
Documentation
Guidelines and
Response Plans
EREEBENMHESIR
JiE 1 51 21

Crisis Register and
Management Manual
T B 50 M 2
EIEF

Provide an overall coordinated approach and guidelines for crisis response
and provide a consistent crisis management process across the Group
REmEEEESNEE NI RG], REERE-HHEHEIRRERF
Set out the definition of a crisis and triggering events, categorisation of crises,
the activation guideline, the composition and roles of the Crisis Management
Team, and the crisis communication and reporting protocol
WHIEHEEZEHNES. BRAR. B@NEs. BeHEEEKNG
17 2 B 65 LA K2 7 1% 0 3R D BB 3R AR A2

Tailored standard
operation procedures,
response plans and
playbooks

TE il R HE R R AR Fr
fE£t 5t S0 B B F

Identify critical crisis situations, with step-by-step instructions for
responding to specific crises

sl ES BN, JHERSEEHNEE D RETR

Crisis Management
Training and Simulation

JE B & 12 15 3l 2 i AR

Instruction-based
training

BER I aIE

Aim to increase staff's capability in recognising crisis warning signs and
enhance staff's ability of comprehensive and effective assessment and
management before, during and after a crisis
EERASTHMNECHERRRERBLENA. P, ERIFZEMAEN
BT 1h K2 B 18 2 RE

Provide our staff an initial introduction of crisis management and our crisis
management infrastructure and resources

METRHEEHEERTUAREHEBEERRHREIR

Workshop-based
simulation
TEHEIRN
1 $5k B &Y 5l 4R

Aim to validate the crisis management plan and the capability of the CMT

& TE A 51l FE 1 & TR 51 81 5 pY A0 B 1 B BB

Allow the CMT to rehearse their assigned duties and responsibilities during
a crisis scenario

EoHERERNYEREHIG R TRIEEEIRVEBHROSEE
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7. RISK CAPABILITY BUILDING

We continuously review and enhance our risk management framework
by embedding an appropriate capability development plan to ensure
effective and efficient support to the Board to perform risk oversight
and sustain business resilience. We identified the following capability
enhancement focuses in prior year, covering the areas of governance
and collaboration, processes, tools and information. The enhancement
plan is carried out by phases and set out below is the summary of the

achievements for this year.

7 JE B A AR ) b

Ho P 455 468 A 5 A0 10 96 R (3 /ol B 5 1 AE 2R K2 0 3 R A i &
BIRE1E R5TEl, URANANSYIM T EE EEST

EREERERFRFEIME. RMPBAIEAN S A TR
TrER, ’P]%g/n)fzbmﬂ\ . TENGERFRE,
RISTEINERIETT, NTR2RFEHNMRMSE,

Capability
enhancement area

RENNE LR

Targets for enhancements

BHBIE

FY2024 tasks and achievements
2024 BT EUSF EE B T 1E R B SR

Risk governance and
collaboration

JE B & ) A2 1% [

Apply consistently the risk management
framework to the Group's businesses
FRECE 5 B iE i A s B B IR AE 2R
Strengthen the Group's crisis management
mechanism

LR E B IR

Through the analysis of the Group's value chain, we have
closely aligned the business objectives and related
sustainability and risk management initiatives. In addition, the
crisis governance structure was established to enhance the
Group's overall risk management efforts with optimised crisis
response procedures

BRHEEEEE N, BMEEFEERER %ﬁ—ﬁ—ir%ﬁf*
EREREEIFEBRE, LI, MEITEEREIER
B, MINBHrHEREAREFREAREREEREL

HE

Risk management
process and
standard

JE| b & 1 it A
Q|

Develop and optimise business continuity
plans

il E Rz 18 11 3% 55 2 48 M 5t &l

Revise Group policies and standards
for high-risk issues

5 ERFIREST REBERTIRE

The continuity plan of information system failures has been
optimised to maintain the Group's business resilience. We have
also conducted enhancements of high-risk matters, including
uplifted supplier due diligence in line with industry standards
for diamond raw material procurement on anti-money
laundering, environmental and labour practice considerations
AP B L T B 5T AR A PR B 4 TR ST &I LAME RF SR B SR )
s FMERESSERSBRETTENY, RERBEOR
BRI, RITEREERER. BRESTIERES LN
BE BRI R EE

Risk management
tools and
technologies
AREETIAR
Bk

Strengthen key risk monitoring indicators
o 10 £ S b BRI B LS R
Elevate store risk validation approach
and detection capability

N0 P9 I o B B 58 77 5% R 1880 e

We have reduced the number of false alarms through data
analysis and improved the efficiency of the Group's alert handling.
We have also strengthened the risk detection capability by
applying data analytics to select stores for inspection
FHEBSEATEMERZRENER, R THEEER
BRIBRI S [B 05 MBI N05E PY S | ke 88 1, JE A EUR
AT EREETEE

Risk information and
communication

= B (5 B R &

Optimise the communication process
for risk identification and communication
18 1h 3017 J| B 58 Al Kz 58T B°) I 1
JEFE

We have assisted the Group's management in collating the
risk universe in the key business scenarios, formulating
enhancement plans and following up on the progress; also
worked with the management to understand and analyse
major risk changes for aligning enhancement direction
FMBNEEEEERETEERERRESEREE, §E
B TFstEIRERIRE ; MEEEEHXRTHRENITE
KEEW, LAERBHTIE
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DIRECTORS" REPORT

Rk

o

.IIIn

The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for FY2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of
jewellery products, including gem-set, platinum and k-gold jewellery
and gold jewellery and products, as well as the distribution of various
watch brands. The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in

note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for FY2024 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on p.168.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.30
per share for FY2024, amounting to approximately HK$2,996.3 million.
Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.25 per share paid in
December 2023, the total distribution of dividend by the Company
for FY2024 will be HK$0.55 per share. Such payment of dividend will
be subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 24 July
2024 and is payable to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on
Friday, 2 August 2024. The payment date of the final dividend is
expected to be on or about 20 August 2024.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years is set out on p.268.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2024 amounted
to approximately HK$57 million (31 March 2023: HK$104 million).
Details of the Company's reserves are set out in the note 40 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on p.171.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business and operations for the year, an
analysis using financial key performance indicators as well as a
discussion on the likely future developments, are provided throughout
this annual report, particularly in the "Chairman's Statement”,

"Strategic Report", and "Management Discussion and Analysis".

Further discussion on the Group's principal risks and uncertainties is

mentioned in the "Risk Management Report".

Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations is mentioned in
the "Corporate Governance Report”, "Independent Auditor's Report”,

and "Sustainability Report".

Environmental policies and performance and key relationships with its

stakeholders are detailed in the "Sustainability Report".

CORPORATE CULTURE

The link between corporate culture and the Group's business
objectives; the implementation of the desired corporate culture into
the Group's daily operations; and the assessment of the progress and
success of such implementation, are elaborated in various sections of
this annual report and the "Sustainability Report".

"Chairman's Statement" and "Strategic Report" discuss the Group's
vision, purpose and the alignment of business objectives mainly

related to the values delivered to our customers and the industry.

"Corporate Governance Report" and "Risk Management Report"
discuss the tone at the top and the implementation of desired culture

in the Board and the risk management systems.

"Sustainability Report" contains a more detailed presentation on the
implementation of desired corporate culture into the Group's daily
operations and the linkage between corporate culture to

sustainability objectives.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company purchased some of its shares on the Stock Exchange and
these shares were subsequently cancelled by the Company during the
year. These share purchases were made with a view to benefit

shareholders as a whole by enhancing the value of the shares of the

Jie A

£ RN 21 )0 AR N 18 B 1 P S R R B
HEE L s ]

RABRBZMBEEES TR, BEKALASICKRFENA
%%ﬁ%aﬂxﬁj‘o BEZERNHEAERRES KQSHK

MEESERRRZ G,

Company.
Aggregate
Price paid per share (HK$) consideration
Number of shares gz IHER(ET) (before expenses) (HK$)
bought back Highest Lowest B E(RINRESE )
IEER R EE =11 =113 (i)
November 2023 20238118 4,890,600 11.28 11.00 54,301,756
December 2023 2023%12H 7,372,600 11.28 10.12 80,021,572
12,263,200 134,323,328

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's

listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the

laws of the Cayman Islands.

TERMINATION OF SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme was adopted on 28 July 2021, with the
purpose to attract skilled and experienced personnel, incentivise them
to remain with the Group and motivate them to strive for the future
development and expansion of the Group by providing them with the
opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company. The Board
may, at its discretion, grant options pursuant to the share option
scheme to the directors of the Company (including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors), the directors of the Company's subsidiaries, the employees
of the Group and any consultants engaged by any member of the
Group who the Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group. For other details of the
share option scheme, please refer to the section headed "Share
Option Scheme" in the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

The share option scheme was terminated with effect from 7 July 2023
upon the adoption of the share award scheme. No options have been
granted, exercised or cancelled since the adoption of the share option
scheme on 28 July 2021. As at 1 April 2023 and immediately before the
termination of the share option scheme on 7 July 2023, 1,000,000,000

options were available for grant under such scheme mandate.
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SHARE SCHEMES

Key terms of the share award scheme

Ji 03 w1 i

e 3 % Bl st ) A 32 2K

Date of adoption

R0 B BR 7 July 2023 202347870
Life period 10 years from 7 July 2023 B2023F7H7B25H104E
A A

Eligible participants
BEESRE

o= >x

(i) Directors and employees of the Company
or its subsidiaries; and

(ii) Any other person who is granted share
awards as an inducement to enter into an
employment or engagement contract with
any of these companies

(i) IRATIEIEATINESERES ; &

(i) HESERENZEFABE U RENERES
1T E 12 iz 00 22 B B A o EAth A £

Purpose

B

(i) To recognise and reward contribution of
grantees to the growth and development
of the Group and to incentivise and
motivate them to further contribute
towards the growth and expansion of the
Group; and

(i) To attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group

(i) RFGIEEREASNREENIERDE R
PRIELE BB RN, R 4% 5 BN A IRURN 10 17 it — 25
MARERRRERRZBERMBMEEM ; &

(i) HAKEE-THERRSIGEIAAL

Scheme mandate

ST 8l 1% 1

Maximum 500,000,000 ordinary shares are
available for issue, which represents 5.01% of
the issued ordinary shares of the Company
(excluding treasury shares, if any) as at the
date of this annual report

BZO%{7500,000,000 @A, 1GKER
HEARQAS ERTEER( A EOETR
fr, WA )HKI5.01%

Individual limit on entitlement

8 AR LR

Maximum 1.00% of the issued ordinary shares
of the Company (excluding treasury shares, if
any) within the 12 months' period up to the
date of grant of any share awards

REZTORMERELBEHIERN12@E 8 -
N, RELHTATEHETEER(ABEEME
TR, 105F K1.00%

Vesting period
&7 J& 1A

Minimum 12 months' period after the date of
grant, except for prescribed circumstances

BEHAMESED 12EA, HEFEBRBRI

Purchase price

BEERE

Grantees are not required to pay any grant or
purchase price for accepting the share awards
granted

AR IR R 1 0 BT T 1% R 1 2 B S (TR (T 12
oy e B

Performance targets

FERVERES

Possible performance targets related to
financial and non-financial parameters of the
Group and/ or individual performance
indicators, as specified in the notice of grant
to each grantee

W& AEAFREEROPTSI0A, BN ER B A
RAFRT 51612 K2 / SV 18 A & UE IR A8 B B 0T RE
R =EES

Clawback mechanism

(o) 40 ¢ 7

To be triggered in case of any misconduct
committed by the grantee or there is any
material misstatement(s) in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company

FEABAFBEDRETRIRQSEGE W
WA EEDERGRROVE T M8

Details of the share award scheme are set out in the circular of the

Company dated 15 June 2023.
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Granting of share awards

B i 1y 5% i

Number of share awards during the financial year

U ESL S B P i 1 22 R 8 B
Unvested at
Unvested at Lapsed/ 31 March
Note 1 April 2023 Granted Vested cancelled 2024
R2023 % iR2024 £
4H18 3A318
Name of grantees REABE Bt & K 5R B [=3ch ERE SXW/ HH BN )
Directors £ 3
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry MRAEL (1 - 335,600 - - 335,600
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy BEELE ) - 244,800 - - 244,800
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia MEZY+ (1) - 208,400 - - 208,400
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent EHESLE (1) - 391,200 - - 391,200
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian B Tl 1 (1) - 109,800 - - 109,800
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson BRERAE L (1) - 95,200 - - 95,200
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton R R BE S 4E (@) - 227,200 - - 227,200
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter Fman Rt (1) - 173,600 - - 173,600
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BiR#ATE (1) - 165,800 - - 165,800
- 1,951,600 - - 1,951,600
Employees -1=]
Senior management members SREEBAS (1) - 166,600 - - 166,600
Total ast - 2,118,200 - - 2,118,200
% of weighted average number LEZTIER (2) 0.02%
of ordinary shares in issue (FBLIEE 17
(excluding treasury shares, B, WE )k
if any) THHKBE AL
Available for future grant under BiEsT RIS #REZE (3) 497,881,800
the scheme mandate limit o HEEH

Date of grant: 10 August 2023, at nil consideration

Date of vesting: 1 July 2026, subject to fulfilment of performance targets and other requirements
Fair value of share awards as at the date of grant: HK$12.680 each

Closing price immediately before the date of grant: HK$12.800 per share

Fair value of share awards is determined based on the closing price of the shares of the Company on
the date of grant without taking into consideration the vesting conditions of the share awards. The
Group has adopted the accounting standard in accordance with IFRS 2 — Share-based Payment,
details of which are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements

Performance targets are related to financial, non-financial parameters of the Group and/ or individual
performance indicators.

This percentage represents the number of shares that may be issued under the share awards granted
during the reporting period, divided by 9,996,454,344 (being the weighted average number of shares in
issue (excluding treasury shares, if any) for this reporting period).

The number of options and awards available for grant under the scheme mandate of all share schemes
of the Company was 1,000,000,000 (being the number of options available for grant under the share
option scheme prior to its termination) as at 1 April 2023 and 497,881,800 (being the number of awards
available for grant under the share award scheme) as at 31 March 2024.
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DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Long position in shares and underlying shares

N T IR YR A
i B A3y B AR ] T 40y 1) e

The Company's register recorded Shares held Underlying shares
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO Pl 5 B 153 fHEA AR 15 % of
IRIRE F R EIRGI5HE 352 R E Personal Spouse Corporate Unvested issued
7N 2 ] 5C i Fi § 5T 8 interests interests interests share share
BAEz (AR EEED awards Total capital
As at 31 March 2024 HEHT
k20245 3H31H 7 53 )& Bz 13 28 @ a5t BRAEstk
Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry RAEL 420,000 335,600 755,600 0.01%
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy BEELE 244,800 244,800 0.00%
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia EETT+ 208,400 208,400 0.00%
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent wEELE 12,000 391,200 403,200 0.00%
Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian B0 7 fall fe - 20,000 109,800 129,800 0.00%
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson ERER A S 95,200 95,200 0.00%
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton EPIR BRI A 4,800 227,200 232,000 0.00%
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter Yt e 23,600 173,600 197,200 0.00%
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby BikRALE 12,000 165,800 177,800 0.00%
1. These shares are beneficially-owned by a company wholly-owned by Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian 1. ZEBROBDERELIERGN—RASEHES
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN F= B O W I 1 RE 55
SECURITIES
Long position in shares By B4 B
The Company's register recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO Number of shares held
1R U5 58 95 B2 HA &5 1% 151 58 336 1 #3 & 71 2 5] 5 Mt it 8k 5 8% Pt ¥5 B 192 8B
Beneficial Corporate % of issued
As at 31 March 2024 interests interests Total share capital
220245 3H31H HislEs EEELR a5t HEBITRARENIL
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited 7,239,320,185" 7,239,320,185 72.48%
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1) Limited 7,239,320,185" 7,239,320,185 72.48%
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 7,239,320,185 7,239,320,185 72.48%
Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart &} & 8 402,000 506,860,572 ? 507,262,572 5.08%
Cheng Yu Wai 8345 1% 506,541,354 506,541,354 5.07%
Yueford Corporation 506,541,354 506,541,354 5.07%

As at 31 March 2024, Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II)
Limited held approximately 48.98% and 46.65% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited respectively
and accordingly each of them is deemed to have an interest in 7,239,320,185 shares of the Company
held by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited.

As at 31 March 2024, Mr. Cheng Kam Chiu, Stewart held more than one-third of the total shares in each
of Yueford Corporation and Manor Investment Holdings Ltd and accordingly he is deemed to have an
interest in the 506,541,354 shares of the Company held by Yueford Corporation and the 319,218 shares
of the Company held by Manor Investment Holdings Ltd

Save as disclosed in the two tables above, the Company is not aware

of any person who had an interest or short position in the shares,

underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations as at 31 March 2024 which should be disclosed pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO or the Listing Rules or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this annual

report are:

Executive directors

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Mr. Cheng Chi-Heng, Conroy
Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia
Mr. Wong Siu-Kee, Kent

Dr. Cheng Chi-Kong, Adrian
Mr. Cheng Kam-Biu, Wilson
Mr. Cheng Ping-Hei, Hamilton
Mr. Suen Chi-Keung, Peter
Mr. Liu Chun-Wai, Bobby

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Kwong Che-Keung, Gordon

Mr. Lam Kin-Fung, Jeffrey

Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond

Ms. Cheng Ka-Lai, Lily

Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert

Ms. Fung Wing-Yee, Sabrina

Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric (appointed with effect from
1 December 2023)

In accordance with Articles 83 and 84 of the Articles, Mr. Cheng Chi-
Heng, Conroy, Ms. Cheng Chi-Man, Sonia, Mr. Cheng Ping-Hej,
Hamilton, Dr. Or Ching-Fai, Raymond, Mr. Chia Pun-Kok, Herbert and
Mr. Tang Ying-Cheung, Eric will retire at the forthcoming annual

general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which
any of the Company's subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or parent
companies was a party and in which a director of the Company or the
director's connected party had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following ongoing transactions carried out by the Group with

connected persons are subject to annual reporting requirement under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. These transactions are governed by

respective master or framework agreements which have an initial

term of not more than 3 years and, subject to compliance with the

Listing Rules, will be renewed automatically for another 3 years upon

expiry unless terminated earlier in accordance with the relevant

master or framework agreements.
Lease of premises

Name of counterparties

RAHPBE

CTFE
RXEBEE

R 41 3 22 5
7 85 B BB A L AT

EAMTEE, Mz
R G B ME R o

RS H i 0 B BN = o

E i

NwWD
it R IR

FILA T8
%14A§B’]fﬁf$xﬁiﬁr£o REXAESEG
BIY) i F N =
% B2 Al A& LSk,

Gl iEZR

NWDS
MHREHE

Main purposes of the leases

Standalone retail shops,

residential and office uses

Offices and standalone

retail shops in Hong Kong

Concessionaire counters

operated in department

in Hong Kong stores in Mainland China
HEEEHE REBRBIUIZES. REBHWAZER REEANIMEEQE
EERMAEHIE BUITES A se E B
Master/ framework agreement date 28/11/20M 28/4/2020 22/3/2012
G/ ERH
Next renewal date 31/3/2026 30/6/2026 30/6/2026
TIREHE B
FY2024 (HK$ million)
2024 EFERE(B&EBIT)
Annual cap approved 188 217 85
EHEFE R
Actual amount incurred 107 19 36
BERTLEH
Annual cap approved (HK$ million)
EitEFE FIR(BEBT)
FY2025 189 217 98
2025 T
FY2026 189 217 108
2026 BT &
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Sale and purchase of goods and services

Name of counterparties

ZHEIBE

S 15 D i L R I A

NCE

NWD
iR R

Major types of goods and services

EmRRBESER

Polishing, processing and handling of
gemstones for the Group, and
provision of related technology,
related assets and other
ancillary services, products
and devices

HINEREEAM . MIRERE,
e B, 1B EED
HhBEERK. ERRIA

Collaboration on and marketing of
customer loyalty programmes,
including distribution of loyalty
points to and redemption of
loyalty points from customers of
the Group in respect of such
customer loyalty programmes

EFEEREFEBEGIEFREH,
BREEAMEGERETEIP,
MARKEEFEME RS TR

GERERN

Master/ framework agreement date 29/1/2016 8/6/2021
e/ ERMFE O
Last renewal date 31/3/20241 31/3/2024"
EREEHN
FY2024 (HK$ million)
2024 FE(BTEBIT)
Annual cap approved 155 450
BEiEFE FIR
Actual amount incurred 39 35
BERTLES
Note: Bt 5L -
1. These agreements have been renewed on 31 March 2024 for another three years. As all the applicable 1. ZEMBEM2024F3AINBEB=F. ARZEHEEHZEAMRA, HHEERTHE

percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) of the annual caps in respect of the
transactions under these agreements for the renewed term are expected to be less than 0.1% on an

annual basis, such renewed agreements will be fully exempt from shareholders' approval, annual review BER,

and all disclosure requirements upon their renewal.
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Relationships between counterparties

The Company's substantial shareholder, CTF Capital, has shareholding
interests in the counterparties to the Company's continuing

connected transactions disclosed above.

BRLAE B 5 Y 1] AR
RN E BRI CTF Capital 1 b S 88 B 71 22 3145 4 B
3R M5 EH TP AE R M.

72.48%

The Company

"2 8]

81.03%

CTF Holding 2
FAXEER?

40.00% |

NCE®

Notes:

Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited

Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited

Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited

New World Development Company Limited (stock code: 17)

New World Department Store China Limited (stock code: 825)

New Cutting Edge Limited, an associate of CTF Capital under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing Rules

The approximate percentages of shareholding, directly or indirectly held, are shown for reference only
to illustrate the relationships between the connected parties. The information shown in the chart above
is sourced from the Disclosure of Interests published on the Stock Exchange website as at the date of
this annual report, which however may not be updated or correct.
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Internal control on continuing connected transactions
The Group maintains a pricing policy which serves as a guidance for
the negotiation with counterparties regarding the continuing

connected transaction arrangements of the Group.

(a) For rental of premises, prevailing market rates around the time of
entering into the respective tenancy agreements will be followed.
The Group will obtain comparison from relevant market
information from the market or independent valuers and with

rental rates of premises in similar locations leased by the Group.

(b) For sale of goods and services, retail or wholesale prices (as the
case maybe) and discretionary discounts which the Group offers
or is willing to offer to independent customers around the time of

transaction will apply.

(c) For purchase of goods, services and other assets, prevailing
market prices around the time of transaction will apply. The
Group will obtain quotations or tenders from independent third
parties for goods, services or assets with similarities to compare
with the prices and terms offered in the market. If there is no
sufficient comparable in the market, the Group will make
reference to the reasonable costs for developing or providing
such goods, services or assets plus a reasonable profit margin

that commensurates with industry practices.

The Group will monitor industry practices and market trends on a
regular basis to ensure the terms offered to the Group are either

equivalent to or better than the prevailing market prices.
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Annual review of the continuing connected transactions

At the end of each financial year, the management will prepare a
summary of the pricing and other relevant terms of those non-exempt
continuing connected transactions for the review of the Strategy and
Transformation Committee to ensure that those transactions are
entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business, on normal
commercial terms or better and in accordance with the relevant
agreements on terms which are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of our shareholders as a whole, pursuant to Rule 14A55 of
the Listing Rules. Our internal audit team will further select samples
from those transactions and compare them with similar types of
transactions entered into by the Group with independent third parties

during that financial year.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the Company's auditor to perform certain review procedures
in order to report on the Group's continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) "Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information" and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules" issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
his unqualified letter in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The results of the review procedures performed by each of the
Strategy and Transformation Committee, the internal audit team and
the auditor of the Company were reported to the independent non-
executive directors in the Audit Committee meeting. After review by
the Audit Committee, the independent non-executive directors
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions were entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
either on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company

as a whole.

Announcements were published regarding the Group's non-exempt
continuing connected transactions. The directors confirm that the
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as they are

applicable.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year set out in note 38 to the financial statements include
transactions that constitute connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions for which the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, less than 30.0% of the Group's revenue was
attributed to the Group's five largest customers. Besides, 82.0% of
the Group's total purchases were attributed to the Group's five
largest suppliers and 71.2% of the Group's total purchases were
attributed to the Group's largest supplier. To the best of the directors'
knowledge, none of the directors, their respective close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and any shareholder who to the
knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 March 2024 held any interest in any

of the five largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company's Articles provides that every director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
losses, damages and liabilities which he/ she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of duties of his/ her office or otherwise in relation
thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in

respect of fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors' liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for

the directors.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report regarding the share award
scheme and the share option scheme (which has been terminated
with effect from 7 July 2023) adopted by the Company, neither the
Company nor any of its holding companies or its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate as at the
end of the reporting period or at any time during the reporting period.
None of the Directors and their nominees (if any) held shares or
debentures under such arrangement other than as disclosed in this

annual report.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report regarding the share award
scheme and the share option scheme (which has been terminated
with effect from 7 July 2023) adopted by the Company, no equity-
linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or subsisted as at

the end of the reporting period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the year.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$34.5 million (FY2023: HK$47.7 million).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company
or by the Group after 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this

annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants
and Registered PIE Auditor, who will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Cheng Kar-Shun, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, China, 13 June 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZEETRS

_
pwec s i A i

To the Members of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited HAXEHKESERIRQGINE
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (RHESEHEEAMA TG RLE])

OPINION =

What we have audited AT AR N

The consolidated financial statements of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery BARBHRESEERASI( A TEREI 828 J)EZEBT‘TJE
Group Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (the "Group"), NEl( LATHTE S&EE |)7HRFE168E 267 B4R
which are set out on pages 168 to 267, comprise: ks, B

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024; - R2024FE3A3THHGESIBRIRE ;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other - BHEZHLEFENGSEGREMEEIERE ;
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then - HEZHUEFENGGRGREENE ;
ended;
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; - HEZHUEFENGEHRERESX ;
and
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising - RERBHRERNEE, ABRBEXEFBRERREMR
material accounting policy information and other explanatory BEER.
information.
Our opinion FAM E’J p5)

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and HM@RAR, ZEGRCUBEREREREBE(ERIEBREES
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 A »E%ﬁ'ﬁ hEiRMET BHRER2024F3[H31H
March 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its MGG BRERESREZB EFENGSVHBRER
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with GolRERE, e BREB(QSRG KK ERTE S
IFRS Accounting Standards and have been properly prepared in B

compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing ("ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants ("IESBA Code"), and we have

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to existence and

valuation of inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS continuep)

[67 5t 7 T 2R TR ca)

Key Audit Matter
FRESSER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HMAESHNAHARESFRETER

Existence and valuation of inventories

FEZFEHERIGE

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying value of inventories of the Group was HK$64,647.0
million as at 31 March 2024 which mainly comprised of gem-set,
platinum and k-gold jewellery, gold jewellery and products and
watches. Valuation of inventories was stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Significant portion of inventory cost
includes cost of gold, platinum and gemstones, which are subject to
the risk of changes in market value. The assessment of net realisable
value of inventories was based on significant estimates and
judgements made by management in respect of, amongst others,
the economic conditions, marketability of products and the forecast
market price of gold, platinum and gemstones used to make the
jewellery products.

B2 RiRE IR EE 23,

2024 3H31H, ESH£EMNFERBEROG4647.08EE T,
THOFEERR. HESRKSEM. ESEMRERRER,
FENGEAMNNEISREFEMNS P 2BRESE, FEMARPK
BnkREs. NEREGZAR, SHEEEENERYE., &
BEaf( HhaE )ERR L. ERNSEINEERARREIE
HREERNES. SR EAMBAMRSESIEEEXRGE &
i, LASEhFE o] #I5EE,

We understood and evaluated management's key controls
over inventory existence and valuation.

We obtained an understanding of the management's internal
control and assessment process of impairment of inventories
and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level
of other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to management bias
or fraud.

We validated management's controls over existence by
attending cycle physical counts at selected points-of-sale
("POS") throughout the year to observe the count
procedures at POS. We also inspected a selection of daily
physical count reports and the reconciliation to daily ending
inventories record in the inventory system.

Furthermore, we attended the annual physical inventory
count at year end date and performed sample count
procedures at selected POS, manufacturing facilities and
logistics and distribution centres.

WM THRERFGEEEHFE T FEERGENFERE T,

HMTHREEEMNFERNENABRERTGERE, &
i858 s 51 A i E 14 B0 A2 LA R B & A & k& (K 3R 67K
T, BINnE AT, EE M. SHAE EHEE R Eoy 5K
FIEUEE, SFMEXERNES AR,

FPMzEEEEHFAMERNREZARERNEEES
EXZRBEHEMER, NERRTERNBEER,
HMTREMNBEEMRMRS, TREERFNET
PR H 7 & 50 B E AR

o, FMREFBSRBATER. EERMBRIR
MEXPLKFEEMFERI L MEREER,
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continuep)

[67 5t 7 T 2R TR e

Key Audit Matter
FRESIE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMRSEHNAHARESFHETER

Existence and valuation of inventories (Continued)

FEZFRAEERIGE(E)

We selected samples of gem-set jewellery products, comprising
items of different nature, for the gemmological appraisal carried
out by the independent professional gemmologist engaged by
management to verify their authenticity and to assess their
condition and valuation. We evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the independent professional
gemmologist, understood their scope of work and observed
their examination process. We have assessed whether the
selected gem-set jewellery products were recorded at the lower
of cost and net realisable value by comparing the results of
gemmological appraisal reports and their costs.

We evaluated the net realisable values of inventories assessed
by management with reference to, amongst others, the market
price movement of the materials and the subsequent selling
prices of similar products, on a sample basis.

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
impairment of inventories in the context of IFRS Accounting
Standards disclosure requirements.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
existence and valuation of inventories to be supportable by the
available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other t